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Financial Highlights
MBEBE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
RESULTS E45
Continuing operations BB £
Revenue EER 30,693 27,194
Gross profit EH 27,173 24,225
(Loss) profit before taxation BR AT (B518) B 7 (205,319) 57,321
(Loss) profit for the year from REFELCEEBN
continuing operations FEEBRT (218,804) 58,970
Discontinued operation DRIEEEETN
Profit for the year from REBRIEEEEBKH
discontinued operation FERAF 5,655 4,602
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ARBIRREGEFE
to owners of the Company (E18) B A (213,149) 63,572
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(g =E=5)
(Loss) earnings per share FR (BB &
From continuing and discontinued REFELCERDRLE
operations R
- Basic - BA (2.47) 1.50
- Diluted -y (2.47) 1.37
From continuing operations REFELEETR
- Basic - B (2.54) 1.39
- Diluted -y (2.54) 1.27
As at 31 March
MA3H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets WEE 5,408,807 5,624,267
Total liabilities eb=Y (2,361,611) (2,389,101)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 &A% R (b #E 25 3,047,196 3,235,166




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s consolidated loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$213,149,000 as compared
with profit of approximately HK$63,572,000 last year (2023). The consolidated
loss from continuing operations and profit from discontinued operation
for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approximately HK$218,804,000
and HK$5,655,000 respectively as compared with profit of approximately
HK$58,970,000 and HK$4,602,000 last year (2023) respectively. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$30,693,000 as compared with last year
(2023) of approximately HK$27,194,000, which represented an increase of
approximately HK$3,499,000 or approximately 12.9% as compared with last
year (2023). This year’s gross profit margin was approximately 88.5% (2023:
approximately 89.1%). The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2024 were
HK$2.47 and HK$2.47 (2023: restated basic and diluted earnings per share
of HK$1.50 and HK$1.37 respectively).

In face of an extraordinarily challenging year with global economic
uncertainties and continuing challenges posed by prolonged international
geopolitical tensions and potential market instability with high inflationary
pressure and interest rates, the Group continuously and closely monitors
and explores market and investment opportunities, and constantly and
prudently focuses on its core business operations in order to improve financial
performance and create long-term values to maximize the interests of its
shareholders.

Finally, the Board and | would like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt

appreciation to our Directors, management team, staff, shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support to the Company.

Lai Law Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) announces the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2024 together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”).

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s consolidated loss attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was approximately
HK$213,149,000 as compared with profit of approximately HK$63,572,000
last year (2023). The consolidated loss from continuing operations and
profit from discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March 2024 were
approximately HK$218,804,000 and HK$5,655,000 respectively as compared
with profit of approximately HK$58,970,000 and HK$4,602,000 last year
(2023) respectively. The consolidated net loss compared with net profit of
corresponding last year was mainly attributable to, among other things, (i) loss
on changes in fair value of investment properties; (i) write-down on properties
held for development for sale; and (jii) increase in finance costs.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$30,693,000 as compared with last
year (2023) of approximately HK$27,194,000, which represented an increase
of approximately HK$3,499,000 or approximately 12.9% as compared with
last year (2023). This year’s gross profit margin was approximately 88.5%
(2023: approximately 89.1%).

The basic and diluted loss per share of the Company (“Share(s)”) from
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2024
were HK$2.47 and HK$2.47 respectively (2023: restated basic and diluted
earnings per Share of HK$1.50 and HK$1.37 respectively).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil).

BLUEEERAR(EALTANES(ESDE
([EBE)AHARR RENE AR (FHHEI&R
£E)HZE2024F3A31A L FE 2 EEZE
FREERLIBET - A2FEHEEHAR
RAlzERZEe((EREER)EHM -

2EXE

HZE2024F3A31BLEFEE  AR2EK
R(BRRDEGEEAEBZEEERBNA
213,149,000/ 7T  #HLL 25 (20234 ) B H4Y
/63,572,000 T © #£2024F3A31H Ik
FE RERBEBECEEBREAEBERREE
PR TS B 5 BI85 4) /218,804,000
77T % 5,655,000 7T+ WA F (2023F) &
FIBI% B4 558,970,000/ 7T & 4,602,000
T o FRAEBBEAFRAFRMEEEE
HR(EFREEO)REVEZAFEZEE
B ()VELERRYERE » R(i)#E
B AN AN ©

HZE2024F3A31BIEFE  AEBKREH
RIS TSRS S ¥ FA /R30,693,000%
TC RAF (20234) B4 /27,194,000%
JC - A F (20234 ) 1 hn#3,499,0007% 7T
% KI12.9% ° 5 FEF| E$7:154988.5% (2023
F: #989.1%) ©

HZE2024F3A31HILEFE REFELE
ERRABRIEZEEBOEARRAER(KR]
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1.50% 70 &% 1.3787T) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment (comprising ownership and rental of investment

properties), investment in securities and others and loan financing business

which property development and property investment are the core businesses

of the Group. The review of each business segment of the Group is set out

below.

@

Property Development

One of the Group’s core businesses is property development. The

Group has extensive experience on property redevelopment, in

particular, acquisition of old buildings for renewal and redevelopment.

Below are the major projects of the Group during the year.

(@

(b)

Project Matheson Street

As at 31 March 2024, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the property at No. 11 Matheson
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, named as “THE HEDON”.
The total site area of the property is approximately 2,857 square
feet with a gross floor area of approximately 42,854 square feet
of 27-storeys brand new Ginza-style building. Construction of
the project has been completed and occupation permit has been
obtained in February 2024.

Project King Lam Street

As at 31 March 2024, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the property located at No. 121 King
Lam Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, named as “One Two One”.
The total gross floor area of the property is approximately 7,326
square metres. The property is a brand new grade-A industrial
building 28-storeys with a total of 47 units. Construction of the
project has been completed and occupation permit has been
obtained in May 2024.

E 3 E)

MAFER  AEETBREDEERR Y
ERERERENEEREYME)  EFK
HREREFRERY MOEERNY
ERERAEBEZERLER - KRB Z&E
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@
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AEEEMEERZTERELEER
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BH -

G

(b)

WM EE #E H
R2024F3A31H » AEEFE B
HEBE2EWBRABAMNRE
BRBENMEHIIKE &5
[THE HEDONIZ ¥ % - W%
WEBEmELN B2,857F AR
RPEBEEMBELN R42,854F
FRZIES2TB2 B ERE
FoZBEBIRERK  TER
202452 ARSI FAET A& ©

BHEER

MR2024%F3A318 - AEEGE
BEBE2ENBRAREEMN
REBNEENREI21% - B8R
[One Two Onel Z % - W%
BBREEENET,326F K °
ZMEAETRLETENE 2
=288 - LHATEEL - %A
B I RETAK @ WER20245F5
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EEENWR DN

(c)

(d)

Project Kennedy Town

As at 31 March 2024, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned all the units of (i) Nos. 1B and 1C
and Nos. 1D and 1E of Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong
(“Davis Street”); and (i) Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong
Kong (“Catchick Street”). The combined site area of Davis
Street and Catchick Street is approximately 7,122 square feet
which will be developed into a commercial and/or residential
mixed use development to maximize its usage. Superstructure
works have been commenced and the project is expected to
complete in 2026.

Project Fung Wah

As at 31 March 2024, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned the site at Nos. 646, 648 and 648A
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon. The total site area is approximately
9,206 square feet. The site will be developed into a high-rise
modern industrial building to maximize its usage. Foundation
work is underway and the project is expected to complete in
2026.

(c)

(@

EXEmIE
MR2024F3A31H » AEEER
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BES13B646 - 648K 6B48ATE 2
AR o ZHBAAE AL B9,206
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Investment
The Group’s other core business is property investment.

During the year, the total rental income of the Group recorded
from continuing operations was approximately HK$28,751,000
(2023: approximately HK$24,408,000), representing an increase of
approximately 17.8% over last year (2023).

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential, commercial and industrial
units, and land with attached structure with a total carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,176,600,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
approximately HK$1,200,400,000). For the year ended 31 March
2024, the Group recorded property rental income and building
management fee income from continuing operations of approximately
HK$27,423,000 (an increase of approximately 26.3% as compared
with 2023) and HK$12,000 respectively (2023: approximately
HK$21,706,000 and nil respectively), which is primarily attributable to
acquisitions of investment properties by the Group in February 2023.

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns one (1) (2023: two (2)) residential
unit(s) with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$73,843,000
as at 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately HK$137,041,000). For
the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group received property rental
income from continuing operations of approximately HK$1,328,000
(2023: approximately HK$2,702,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 50.9% over last year (2023), due to completion of
disposal of one (1) residential unit in July 2023.

For further information, please refer to “Material Notifiable Transactions”
section below.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

The Group owned fifteen (15) blocks of factory premises and five
(5) blocks of dormitories in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the
PRC. The Group had not recorded any property rental income and
management fee income since January 2023 due to land resumption
of these properties in Huzhou as detailed below (2023: approximately
HK$4,602,000 and approximately HK$10,807,000 respectively).

(i)

EEENWRE DN

MRERE
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B EH S WA LLTEL /£28,751,0007
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Land Resumption with the Huzhou Government in respect of the

Huzhou Properties

On 5 October 2022, the People’s Government of Zhili Town,
Wuxing District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (the
“Huzhou Government”) and Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.
(“Enterprises Huzhou”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a land resumption agreement (the “Land
Resumption Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things,
the Huzhou Government shall resume, and Enterprises Huzhou
shall surrender the industrial complex of fifteen (15) blocks of factory
premises and five (5) blocks of dormitories erected over two (2)
connected parcels of land situated at Easyknit Science and Technology
City, No. 108 Dongliang Road, Zhili Town, Wuxing District, Huzhou
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC which are owned by Enterprises
Huzhou (the “Huzhou Properties”) for industrial use with a total site
area of 167,739.56 square metres, and the existing developments have

a total gross floor area of 1562,722.24 square metres.

Pursuant to the Land Resumption Agreement, a compensation amount
of RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$439,752,000)
(the “Compensation Amount”) would be payable by the Huzhou
Government to Enterprises Huzhou, and Enterprises Huzhou should
cooperate with the Huzhou Government to complete the change of
land title procedures, and vacate and handover the Huzhou Properties.
The Compensation Amount will be used for the Group’s general

working capital, bank loan repayment and/or financing projects.

The financial results of the property investment in the PRC was
classified as discontinued operation during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2024. The Compensation Amount has
been received by the Group in full in February 2024, and the Huzhou
Properties have been resumed by the Huzhou Government, and
accordingly, the Huzhou Properties were no longer accounted for in the

financial statements of the Group as at 31 March 2024.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”) (stock code: 1218)
and the Company dated 5 October 2022, and circular of the Company

dated 18 October 2023 respectively.

] I BT B8 58 M ) 3 B 1 K E
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment in Securities and Others

The Group adopted a prudent attitude in its well-diversified securities
investment. During the year, the Group had acquired and disposed
of listed securities and unlisted equity securities and other investment
products. The Group recorded fair value loss in securities and other
investments from continuing operations of approximately HK$4,391,000
(2023: loss of approximately HK$4,531,000). During the year ended
31 March 2024, the Group recorded fair value gain in investment in
securities and others from discontinued operation of approximately
HK$204,000 (2023: loss of approximately HK$5,392,000). As a result,
the Group reported a segment loss from continuing operations of
approximately HK$4,600,000 (2023: segment loss of approximately
HK$26,505,000) during the year. The Group received dividend income
from the listed securities investments from continuing operations of
approximately HK$1,373,000 (2023: approximately HK$2,598,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and the United States of America amounted to
approximately HK$47,124,000 (2023: approximately HK$23,914,000).
This value represented an investment portfolio comprising 8 (2023:
104) equity securities which are listed on the Main Board and GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and an overseas recognised stock exchange. The movements during
the year were: (a) net purchase of securities investments which had
a fair value of approximately HK$26,983,000; and (b) net decrease in
market value of securities investments in the amount of approximately
HK$3,757,000.

For further information, please refer to “Material Notifiable Transactions”
section below.

(iii)

EEENWRE DN
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R2024F3A31H  AEBRES
LEB LT 2 RaZFRESH
4 547,124,000% 7L (20234 : 49
23,914,000 7T) - ZITEBELERN
REHE BIESE (2023F  1048) R
EEBARIMBERAB(HERAT)E
REBIZER R BINRAHESRZ ST
EHZERES RAFERZEE
THR@QFBAZFCEZAFEY
526,983,000/ 7T ¢+ M(b)EFKEN
BEL5FR 453,757,000 7T °

HABEHRFE2H TN ERATAMDN
5]
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The Group held significant securities investments as at 31 March 2024 M2024F3A31H - AEEFFUTE
as below: RBHEE -
Approximate
percentage
held to the Dividend Fair value Approximate
total issued income gain/(loss) percentage of
share capital of Investment for the year for the year total assets of
Number of  the company/  cost/cost of ended ended  Fairvalueat  the Group at
Company name (stock code) shares held investment acquisition 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
HARE R HZ20uF 20245
BRA/RE HE0UE 37318 37318
ams 3A31A LEEZ 20245 ]
BE BRES  RERR/ LEEZ AVE 3A%1AZ BgEs
RAEBRHAT) RAEE AAt g 1o REBA Wi/ (B8 DFE BHEIH
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
T Tk T Thx

Best Food Holding Company Limited (1488)

ARERERAR(1480) 33,126,000 2.10 38,195 - 3,207 33,126 061

Symphony Holdings Limited (1223)

MEEEAR AT (1229) 7,170,000 0.24 6,494 - (758) 5,736 0.11

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

(1218)

KEEREEERAF(1219) 1,726,000 2.33 6,468 - (1,808) 4,660 0.09

Other listed shares®

Hih ki 331,000 0.78 4,778 50 (4,398) 3,602 0.07

Grand total:

@5t 55,935 50 (3,757) 47,124 0.88

& Other listed shares included one (1) company whose shares are listed on the * Hith EMIRMD BIESD BB FT L8
GEM of the Stock Exchange and four (4) companies are listed on an overseas —(EBIERN R RIRG RIEFINRA]
recognised stock exchange respectively. HEHR S ETAM4)E AR R

e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group considers the prospects in respect of the investments
in securities and others remain cautiously optimistic. The Group
understands that the performance of the investments may be affected
by global economic uncertainties and degree of volatility in the
Hong Kong financial market and subject to other external factors.
Accordingly, the Group will continuously maintain a diversified portfolio
of investment of different segments of markets to minimise the possible
financial risks. The Group will also closely monitor the performance
progress of the investment portfolio in a prudent and balanced risk
management approach from time to time.

Loan Financing

The loan financing business of the Group is primarily operated by City
China International Limited (“City China”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which is a licensed money lender carrying
on business under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The borrowers of the loan financing business
are individuals and corporate entities that have short-term funding
needs and could provide sufficient collaterals for their borrowings.
The borrowers are primarily acquired through business referrals
and introductions. City China’s source of funding is financed by the
Group’s internal resources. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
the Group recorded interest income from loan financing business from
continuing operations amounting to approximately HK$1,930,000
(2023: approximately HK$2,786,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 30.7% as compared with last year (2023). During the
year, the Group had not recorded any interest income from loan
financing business from discontinued operation (2023: approximately
HK$503,000). The segment profit of loan financing business from
continuing operations was approximately HK$190,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: segment loss of approximately
HK$9,801,000). The outstanding principal amount of loans receivable
as at 31 March 2024 was approximately HK$31,023,000 (2023:
approximately HK$52,250,000). During the year, reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$473,000 (2023: recognition of impairment
loss of approximately HK$8,663,000) was recognized in profit or loss
in its loan financing business from continuing operations. During the
year, no reversal of impairment loss (2023: approximately HK$221,000)
was recognized in profit or loss in its loan financing business from
discontinued operation.

(iv)

EEENWRE DN

AEERABSFLEMREMNSEER
HEBEE - A5EHQ  RERR
IXEHBREFETRERZMEL
SRTENPHRELE  UXIHNEM
SMEBER IR o Hib - ANEE S
HEETRAMSIBNZTLREA
& NUEEREKEBENSEEAR - It
Sh AEBETB I TIERKEM
BHRBERMN - LRIREEMF
BORRERTR -

BEXRmE
AEENEXREXHKHRPERA
BAaal([HAR]) (RARR—FEEE
2EMBRARNEE - ABREBE(REA
1B (BAADE163E) CEEBH
BHEREA EBZEEREFPHRESR
BHESTE  UAREERHEES
KiF@mZBEARAGEE AEBH
BEFHITERBBANAIEBBMER
BEEMEBSIBRMNBES - HFHH
B RRBASEERBERREM - B
HE2024F3A31BLLFER A&
ERABELEEBHREBREERR
BEEEZFBEWALAE1,930,000%8
7L (20234 : 492,786,000/8T) » &
EF(2023F)ALLB A £K30.7% ° B
KEEAN  AEEWESBEMEKE
ERIFEEEBNERREEE ZH
B (20234 : #503,000%7T) °
REFE2024F3A31BILEE » kK H
HECEEBERREEK 2
% 4 /5190,00058 7T (20234 5
ERETIE 49,801,000/ T) ° 12024
F3A31A BRERZAEELRE
+ %4 531,023,000/ 7T (20234 -
#952,250,0008 L) - RAFEA -
RERFELEEBERAREEBR
BRI ERBERRBIA473,000
B (2023F - MR ZBEBED
8,663,000 7T) c RAFENRN - &
REBRIEEEEBERRBREZEBR
BaRER R EEER D (20234 : 4
221,000 7T) °
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The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. Before entering into
loan agreements, the Group focuses on the due diligence procedures
and credit risk assessment work, including but not limited to meeting
with each borrower, conducting research on their backgrounds,
evaluating their current business operations and financial conditions
(such as income and assets proof), market reputation and creditability,
conducting financial and recoverability analysis, and reviewing on
repayment history (including recent settlement records, and any
litigations and winding up or bankruptcy searches) and change in
career or business background and financial position of each borrower
in order to better understand the circumstances of each borrower. The
Group regularly assesses the value of the collaterals or pledges and
guarantees of the borrowers for their credit quality, and defines credit
limits to be granted to the borrowers. To minimize credit risks, the
Group typically requires guarantees, including collaterals or pledges
with expected realized value exceeding the loan amount, post-dated
cheques and/or personal or corporate guarantee(s). The Group closely
monitors on an ongoing review of credit risks of loans recoverability and
collection to ensure that follow-up actions (including issue of demand
letters and/or taking legal actions, if necessary) are taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group continues to adopt stringent loan review procedures
and remains prudent approach on values of collaterals or pledges
by strengthening its overall credit risk management and control
mechanism in its loan financing business. During the year ended 31
March 2024, the Group closely monitored and regularly reviewed its
loan portfolio and assessed the values of collaterals or pledges to
ensure the quality of securities held for the loans receivable. Exchange
of collaterals or pledges was executed and necessary provisions for
potential impairment loss were made for certain loans receivable. For
collection of overdue loans, the Group discussed settlement plans with
certain borrowers, issued demand letters and subsequently initiated
legal actions and court proceedings in order to recover the loans.

AEECHEFEERER  EIRE
FrREERR S 2B AARELE
BREERES  FEFME 2E éJ
A FEEERERTEE o RET
YERBHEN  AEBEETRERE
ESRERAGEARFAETE  #HE
ERANBER  FHHERERERE
BRI (R AREEFR)
MEBEREE  UWRETHK LT
WEEDH - ARBESEERAD
BERESL (BREOMOENLE UKk
ERaFREERABES M) MBE
HEBE SO ECIARB B - A
BEFEEESEEFANER - A
SERERANEELREHFGEE
AR ERLRERNER  LRAER
TRAANEERE - SEEREKRE
SRk AEE-REERFPEMH
BER BREHEREEBEERK
RECHEMNBARIER BHLE
R/ SEAANRRRER - REEBEY)
8% 3 B SR A] [ U D A (E AR L
MEFERS - UERERRETH(E
BELHERERER AEBLEN
ERITE) W BB MET -

AEERERNERNERESE
FFruiBmimeERmE ERmERE
EERBREEET - HER QI E
BERFEEERE - REE2024F3A
BITEIEFEA "EBFYEARE
HEMERRHEA T HEEAKE
HEE UBRREKRES %ﬁmr%
mE e BHITHEARKE IR
%%%%%%%%EWH@%E@&
PNEHEE BERSHERmS
AEBRIHERABIEESR -
BHEEREEE  YHERBUAET
B MOREFANREEK »
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group provided short-
term loans of maturity of not more than three (3) years. The repayment
terms and conditions were determined by factors including the
repayment ability of the borrowers, the Group’s funding and cash flows
management strategies, and the terms and rates of the prevailing
market.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to approximately HK$31,023,000 as at 31 March
2024 (2023: approximately HK$52,250,000), from a few borrowers with
approximately 55% (2023: approximately 60%) of the balance were
secured by properties with estimated fair values of HK$17,745,000
(2023: HK$28,445,000). The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge
the collaterals in the absence of default by the borrowers. There have
not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held
for the loans receivable. In addition, the unsecured loans receivable
as at 31 March 2024 amounting to nil (2023: HK$30,750,000) were
with personal guarantee. The largest borrower of the Group by itself
and together with the other four (4) largest borrowers of the Group
accounted for approximately 31% (2023: approximately 26%) and
approximately 93% (20283: approximately 66%) respectively of the
loans receivable of the Group as at 31 March 2024. During the year,
the range of interest rates on the fixed-rate loans receivable of the
Group was 0% (including an one-off upfront fee, representing 9% of
the loan amount for three (3)-year loan period paid in one lump sum at
drawdown date) to 14% (2023: 0% to 8%) per annum, and the total
number of the borrowers of the loan financing business of the Group is
7.

In view of the foreseeable increase in risk of default by the borrowers
as economic uncertainties continued, the Group reassessed the
credit ratings of individual borrowers and made necessary provisions
for potential impairment loss. As at 31 March 2024, allowance for
loans receivable amounted to approximately HK$1,077,000 (2023:
approximately HK$53,480,000). Except for those credit-impaired loans
receivable, there were no loans receivable which are past due as at 31
March 2024.

EEENWRE DN

REZ=2024F3A31HILEFER - K
EERETBB=ZQ)FNEHER -
BRHRGEHNEBETEAZBEERA
WERET AEENESRRER
EEREE - ARBITTIGER R E

&=

AEEHERERNEERBRER
&+ 202443 318 #1431,023,000
7871 (20234 : 4952,250,000% 7T) -
REDEERARL B55% (20234 -
#960%) fh st A F{E H17,745,000% 7T
(20234 : 28,445,000/ 7T) M EER
iR - ERRARBELOHBERLT -
AEERSLEXFERERD - &
WEFRSENRFREETHEERNY
{b o AN - FA2024%F3A31H » &
I 0 i U B 2% (20234F © 30,750,000
TL) B E AR - K2024F3A318 -
REBSAERALRE RERAEER
H i PO (4) K & FRA 5 BIME A & E FE IR
B #31%(20234F : #)26%) K #193%
(2023%F : #166%) - RAFER & &
SETEERRKEFREFFENTOE
(BE—REEMNER  HER=Q)F
BRHMERSENI%NIERA — X
M) E14E (20235 : OEESE) -
MAEEERMEXBBRABEAT
Z o

PEELEEN RTINS BHE
RABHERIEN  AEEEHTE
BERERANEHATR  THEBED
BEBEELEE - R20245F3A31
B EREZEELR1,077,0008 T
(20234 : #953,480,000/ 1) ° B bAYE
EERENEKREZIN - B2024F3 A
318 - BEa N ERER -
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The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on loans receivable which are subject to impairment
assessment under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
“Financial Instruments” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In particular, the
following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, such as a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of the
borrower that results in a significant decrease in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

AEBEREBEEMEEER(EBEES
BORARRBEEFE SRS RHM
WEEBMBRELENEOR IR T A
HETTRE AT (4 B 8 W SR 1T RUE RT
il - HHEEBENSBENERSH
Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ AR BR B 16 T R LA R B 1S
k=S - R REFEEERR
BAELEABEZEEATER

. FE U & SRE9 SR (A0 A ) B A BB (=
SR BRATAAREE

. s BRSNS IEE R EE
WUZZM* BEEEKNBEKN - &
= /\1*%L%’H$%@ET%K%J:
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. TAHIZT « MBS ERITAR
B RIER R E S G B A RA
BITEBE IR KB T

. ERANREEABRILTAHK
tREE &

o ERANEE  EERRITRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimize credit risk. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation of
financial backgrounds, financial conditions and historical settlement
records, including past due rates and default rates, of the borrowers
and relevant information from public domain at the end of each
reporting period. The borrowers are assigned different grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate ECL, taking into consideration the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of
possibility of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are
expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of
obtaining and selling the collaterals.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the gross amount of loans receivables
were HK$51,930,000, net of accumulated impairment allowances of
HK$51,930,000 due from a group of borrowers including an individual
(the “Borrower”) with gross amount of HK$27,380,000 and other
individuals (with personal guarantee from the Borrower) with gross
amount of HK$24,550,000. In prior years, the management assessed,
taking into account the relevant information from public domain, such
balances became credit-impaired. Since then, the management has
taken various actions (including legal actions) against the Borrower to
recover the balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the management reassessed
and considered the Group has no realistic prospect to recover the
credit-impaired debts and hence the balance of HK$51,930,000 was
written off.

The management has also negotiated with certain borrowers to make
settlements of the loans and total settlements of HK$24,000,000 were
received from the borrowers during the year.

EEENWRE DN

AN SR SRR AR I R B R M R R
EX - UEEREEERR - RMEE
EWERNBEEFTDRES RS
REERANBBER - FHRRK
FEsEE s (BRARXRENE) R
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MBEHRSEROGEFARBHRRRER
0 fm LE 1 2 A RO 3R 0% 8 AN ) (40
B)RERGMHE R RAKA -

M2023F3A31H ' EWERBFESIE
51,930,000 7T * Bk —HABERAKR
sTRLE K5 18 451,930,0008 7T + B1E(E
A([ZfEFRA) € 58 A27,380,000/5 7T
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& F8/524,550,00087C c LATFE -
EEEEERAHASNBEBERE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

B 75 [l 8

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIBLEE

2024 2023 Change
20245 20234 23
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FHET FAT Bkt
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue 0] 30,693 27,194 3,499 12.9
Gross profit EF 27,173 24,225 2,948 12.2
Gross profit margin EFIK 88.5% 89.1% N/A TEHA (0.6)
Administrative expenses THRX (58,483) (47,074) (11,409) 24.2
Finance costs A& AR (55,074) (22,985) (32,089) 139.6
(Loss) profit before taxation AT (8518 &R (205,319) 57,321 (262,640) N/A T3
Taxation (charge) credit FREFEDER (13,485) 1,649 (15,134) N/A @
(Loss) profit for the year from REFELCLEEBLY
continuing operations FE (BB BT (218,804) 58,970 (277,774) N/A i A
Net (loss) profit margin F(E518) BF = (712.9%) 216.8% N/ATEA N/ATEA
Discontinued operation BRI
Profit for the year from discontinued REBKLIELEEET
operation I FEERF) 5,655 4,602 1,053 229
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ARRIRREIFE
owners of the Company (E518) &7 (213,149) 63,572 (276,721)  N/A TiEH
For the year ended 31 March
HBZE3A3BLEEE
2024 2023 Change
20244 2023%F 25
HK$ HK$ HK$ %
BT BT BT Btk
(Restated)
(reE51)
(Loss) earnings per share B (E18) & F|
From continuing and discontinued REFELERE
operations IR RS
- Basic - &K (2.47) 1.50 (3.97) N/A T
- Diluted - #s (2.47) 1.37 (3.84) N/A T
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- Basic -EK (2.54) 1.39 (3.93) N/ATEA
= Diluted - #s (2.54) 1.27 (3.81) N/A i
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations increased by approximately 12.9% to approximately
HK$30,693,000 as compared with last year (2023) of approximately
HK$27,194,000 which was mainly due to increase in rental income. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, no revenue was recorded from discontinued
operation by the Group as compared with last year (2023) of approximately
HK$15,912,000 which was mainly due to the land resumption of the Huzhou
Properties.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2024 was approximately HK$27,173,000, representing an increase
of approximately 12.2% or approximately HK$2,948,000 as compared to
approximately HK$24,225,000 in 2023. Gross profit margin for the year
reached approximately 88.5% (2023: approximately 89.1%), representing a
decrease of approximately 0.6% over last financial year.

Loss/Profit before Taxation

Loss before taxation from continuing operations of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024 was approximately HK$205,319,000, as compared
with profit before taxation of approximately HK$57,321,000 last year (2023).
Profit before taxation from discontinued operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024 was approximately HK$42,980,000, as compared with
approximately HK$8,651,000 last year (2023).

Administrative expenses from continuing operations of the Group increased
by approximately 24.2% to approximately HK$58,483,000 as compared with
last year (2023) of approximately HK$47,074,000. Administrative expenses
from discontinued operation of the Group decreased by approximately
88.8% to approximately HK$1,358,000 as compared with last year (2023) of
approximately HK$12,170,000.

EEENWRE DN

E ]

HE2024F3A31ALFE  AEBEKA
HELEEBNEEBREF(2023F)4
27,194,000/ JT 1 h14712.9% 2 4930,693,000
BT WHEERHNES AT -
HZE2024F3A31HILFE @ AEEI EER
BREERIESEBHNEERE - AF (2023
F)AI4915,912,0007 7T + W EBRHNH
M ER T IR REFTER o

EFER=E
NEBMREE2024F3A31ALFEREAH
BRAEBENTFLH27,173,0008 7T @ 8
2023F #]24,225,000/8 TLIE MN#I12.2% 3 47
2,948,000/ 7T © AEFRBIFEKL L EBEH
ER K49 588.5% (20234 : #989.1%) » &+
& B B LR A £90.6% ©

BB AIEERBR

NEBMREE2024F3A31ALFEREAH
B S XEBHRTATE B4 7%2205,319,000
BT MEFE(2023F)BFBATAEF AL
57,321,000 7T - AEBERE £2024%3H
BTALFERBERIEECEEBOBRBAR
FI#) 542,980,000 7T -+ if1 2 F (20234F) Al
418,651,000/ 7T °

AEBREFHBECEEBNTHRAIRA
£ (20234 ) 4947,074,0008 TTIE IN#24.2%
£#)58,483,0008 T c AEE KRB E K
IFEEEBHITHRAIERAETF (2023F)
Al#912,170,000 LR 2 #)88.8 % =4 A&
1,358,000/ 7T °
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During the year, there was net loss on changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss from continuing operations amounting to
approximately HK$4,391,000 (2023: loss of approximately HK$4,531,000).
During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was net gain on changes
in fair value of financial assets from discontinued operation amounting to
approximately HK$204,000 (2023: loss of approximately HK$5,392,000).

Finance costs from continuing operations of the Group for the year were
approximately HK$55,074,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$32,089,000 or approximately 139.6% from approximately HK$22,985,000
in 2023, of which approximately HK$17,941,000 (2023: approximately
HK$6,833,000) was the effective interest expense on convertible notes.

Loss/Profit Attributable to the Shareholders and Loss/Earnings per
Share

The consolidated loss from continuing operations for the year ended 31 March
2024 was approximately HK$218,804,000 (2023: profit of approximately
HK$58,970,000) while the consolidated profit from discontinued operation
was approximately HK$5,655,000 (2023: approximately HK$4,602,000).

Taxation charge from continuing operations for the year was approximately
HK$13,485,000 as compared with taxation credit of approximately
HK$1,649,000 last year (2023).

Basic and diluted loss per Share from continuing and discontinued operations
for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approximately HK$2.47 and
HK$2.47 respectively (2023: restated basic and diluted earnings per Share of
approximately HK$1.50 and HK$1.37 respectively). Basic and diluted loss per
Share from continuing operations for the year were approximately HK$2.54
and HK$2.54 respectively (2023: restated basic and diluted earnings per
Share of approximately HK$1.39 and HK$1.27 respectively).

RAFER  REFELCLEB R QT ER
ANEZZEREBEC A FEEHHREIBEY
/4,391,00058 7T (20234 : E51E 494,531,000
HBIT) o BiE2024F3A31BILFE - KA
ERIHEEEBHEMEEZ AFEZHK
TIFEEH B204,00008 7T (20234 : BHEYD
5,392,000 7T) °

AEERAFERBBECEEBOBE
XK #) 555,074,000 70+ 820239 49
22,985,000/ 7T 3 11 4732,089,000/8 7T 8 4
139.6% * HR AT RREZZERFEZHL
£17,941,0005% 7T (20234 : #96,833,000/#
TT) °

BRREMESR BIAIRERESR BF

HE2024F3A31TALFE  RAFEL
EEBBERAEELNA218,804,000%8 T
(20234 : EFI%)A58,970,0007 7T) » MK
BE RIS EBIERE B T4 55,655,000
77T (2023%F © #954,602,00077T) °

AEEREFBELEXEBENMRERINA
13,485,000/ 7T © 8 &EF (2023F) HIBEK E
497/31,649,000/ 7T °

HZE2024F3A31AILFE  RAFELE
RREBRIEELEEBOTRERNREEE
BO R E2.47 T x2.477 7T (20234 -
KEVNGREARREERF S BIL1.508 T
R1.378T) - RAFE - REFELEED
MERERLEEEEY BN A2.54B TR
2.54% T (2023%F  KEIEGRERNREER
5 B #I1.89% T )& 1.2787T) ©
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2024, total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$5,408,807,000 (2023: approximately HK$5,624,267,000). In terms of
financial resources as at 31 March 2024, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$299,717,000 (2023: approximately
HK$354,002,000).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$2,066,734,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,871,919,000). The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
Shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.7 (2023: approximately 0.6). As
at 31 March 2024, the Group’s current ratio was approximately 3.2 (2023:
approximately 4.8).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow generated
from its operations, proceeds raised from the capital market and bank

financing.

Set out below are the particulars of the outstanding convertible note of the
Company as at 31 March 2024:

2023 Convertible Note

Holder of the 2023 Convertible Note
2023F A MR EEIFHE A

Principal amount

RN k|

Outstanding principal amount

Interest

B

Issue date

BITHH

Maturity date
ZIE R

Conversion price
HiE
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5,624,267,000/%70) - MIEIRAE © 1
20244 3A31H  "EB 2 RITHEHRIE
T HEEEH) 5299,717,000/8 7T (20234F = 4
354,002,000/ 7¢) °

MW2024F3A31H + AEBEZRITIEER
R4 /52,066,734,000/8 7T (20234 : 4
1,871,919,000%7T) - XEBE r EAREEL X
(BIRITIEBERBEEREEEZAD IO B
0.7(2023% : #90.6) - B 2024F3A31H * A&
EERB R A3.2(20234 : £14.8) o

AEEZEEESTERBELEELNE
RAGR CEAMGEENES LRTR

AT AKRRATR2024FE3R31B Rz A]
IR E &

2023 F A R EIE

Goodco Development Limited
ERERARRQA

HK$209,000,000
209,000,000/ 7T

HK$209,000,000
209,000,000/ 7T

5% per annum
GE5E

20 February 2023
2023%2H20H

19 February 2028
20284 2H19H

HK$3.70* (subject to adjustments)
3.70"8 T (A THE)
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* With respect to the 2023 Convertible Note, (i) upon effective of the capital reorganisation
of the Company on 19 July 2023, the conversion price had been adjusted from
HK$0.106 to HK$4.24 per conversion Share and the number of conversion Shares has
been then adjusted from 1,971,698,113 to 49,292,452 conversion Shares; and (i) upon
completion of the placing of new Shares under specific mandate on 3 August 2023,
the conversion price had been further adjusted to HK$3.70 per conversion Share and
the number of conversion Shares had been further adjusted to 56,486,486 conversion
Shares.

During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2023
Convertible Note was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the
date of this annual report is HK$209,000,000.

For further information, please refer to the sections headed “Proposed Capital
Reorganisation and Change in Board Lot Size”, “2023 Placing of New Shares
under Specific Mandate”, “2024 Placing of New Shares under Specific
Mandate” and “EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD”
below.

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2024, the total number of issued ordinary Shares was
103,148,116 (2023: 2,125,924,676 Shares) and the nominal value per Share
was HK$0.01 (2023: HK$0.01). As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of issued ordinary Shares was 338,148,116.

For movement of the total number of issued Shares during the year, please
refer to the sections headed “Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Change in
Board Lot Size”, “2023 Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate”, “2024
Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate” and “EVENTS AFTER THE
END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD” below.

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$2,066,734,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,871,919,000) which were
secured by the Group’s properties with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$1,211,443,000 (investment properties), approximately
HK$2,520,754,000 (properties held for development for sale), approximately
HK$1,065,891,000 (properties held for sale) and nil (life insurance policies)
respectively (2023: approximately HK$1,297,441,000, HK$3,307,920,000, nil
and HK$13,626,000 respectively).

- B2023F A RBRREM S - (AR AIKRAER
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Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’ s revenues and payments are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, the Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The Group considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2024 (2023: nil).

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group invested approximately
HK$681,000 in the purchase of property, plant and equipment (2023:
approximately HK$562,000, and spent approximately HK$346,547,000
through acquisition of subsidiaries on additions of investment properties, and
approximately HK$2,839,000 on additions of intangible assets). These capital
expenditures were financed from internal resources and funds from previous
fund raising activities of the Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
capital expenditures contracted for but not provided of approximately
HK$4,418,000 (2023: approximately HK$19,635,000).
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Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Change in Board Lot Size

On 29 May 2023, the Company announced to implement the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) which involved (i) the
consolidation of every forty (40) issued and unissued existing shares of
the Company (the “Existing Share(s)”) of par value of HK$0.01 each into
one (1) consolidated share (the “Consolidated Share(s)”) of par value
of HK$0.40 each (the “Share Consolidation”); (ii) immediately upon the
Share Consolidation becoming effective, the capital reduction (the “Capital
Reduction”), pursuant to which the par value of each issued Consolidated
Share would be reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by (a) eliminating any
fraction of a Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the Company
arising from the Share Consolidation in order to round down the total number
of the Consolidated Shares to a whole number; and (b) cancelling HK$0.39
of the paid-up capital of the Company on each issued Consolidated Share
so that each issued new Share (the “New Share(s)”) will be treated as one
(1) fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company immediately following the Capital Reduction and the credit
arising from the Capital Reduction will be transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda; and (iii) immediately following the Share Consolidation
and the Capital Reduction becoming effective, each authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share (including those authorised unissued Consolidated
Shares arising from the Capital Reduction) would be subdivided into forty (40)
authorised but unissued New Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 29 May 2023, the Company also announced to change the board lot size
for trading on the Stock Exchange from 20,000 Existing Shares to 5,000 New
Shares conditional upon the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective (the
“Change in Board Lot Size”).

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by the Shareholders by passing of
a special resolution at a special general meeting of the Company held on 17
July 2023, and had become effective on 19 July 2023. Accordingly, the total
number of issued Shares was decreased from 2,125,924,676 to 53,148,116.
In addition, the Change in Board Lot Size had become effective on 2 August
2023.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 29
May 2023, 16 June 2023, 17 July 2023 and 19 July 2023, and circular dated
23 June 2023 respectively.

EERAEARESSTFEEEN

MR2023F 5290 @ KRB AMETIRAE
HIRAEAD - EFFROTET@O)RAE
NRIFRABE.OTB LB T RAREITIR
B (RERGDEHA—()REREE
0.40B THAMRMD(EHKRH) [RHAE
B (DR S OFERE - BRARERE (TR
AEGRD - E - BREBITEHBROHE
EHR0.40E TR E0.018 T + BB ()5 bk
REHAEHPELEARREHITRATT
MZEHEHEG - NEEEHRMHEEE R
TEEESEIEH  RO)FHAQAE
REBITE RO BB RIRA0.398 T « £
BREFTHRO(FHBRADGHEBEANE
BE AR A HR & AR R PR AR — ()R EREE
0.01B LR R IRA » A AR M EE
HERRABERE AR IE1981F A RAA
AEMARBEHEARKRE  R(i)BERDE
B RBRAYRE RS - BRETERETE
PR 17 (B35 52 B AR AN HIRL M 22 AE SR T R
BITAMIRD) B O T AN+ @0)IRETER K
BITHRG - FREER.OVET °

M2023F5H29H + AR B FEAMEFRA
BHERE  ARABEBIMBEENEGTF
B & B B320,000/% 3% B % 17 5 25 & 5,0008%
RO (EREFEHEN]) -

PRAEACDERRN2023F7 A17B£1T
ZHREFHAE FLBBKARNAR —HERF
BIRZHZE - WHN2023FE7A19B A3 -
I BB B2,125,924,676 RV &
53,148,116[% - it4h - BB FEEEME
R2023F8 2B AR °

AHEMBE2EA AT A SR /202355
H298 - 2023%6A16H + 2023F7A17H
K&202357 198 2 A - LAK2023%6H23
BZ@E® -



SILEEBRAT 2023/2024 F3k

i

Management Discussion and Analysis

2023 Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 29 May 2023, Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) and the
Company entered into a conditional placing agreement (the “2023 Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of up to
50,000,000 placing Shares at the placing price of HK$0.50 per placing Share
(assuming the Capital Reorganisation has become effective) to not less than
six (6) placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent
third parties. The placing Shares were allotted and issued under the specific
mandate granted to the Directors by resolution of the Shareholders passed at
a special general meeting of the Company held on 24 July 2023 (the “2023
Placing”).

On 3 August 2023, all conditions to the 2023 Placing Agreement had been
fulfilled and completion of the 2023 Placing took place. A total of 50,000,000
placing Shares have been successfully placed by the Placing Agent to not
less than six (6) placees at the placing price of HK$0.50 per placing Share
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2023 Placing Agreement. The
total number of issued Shares increased from 53,148,116 to 103,148,116.

The net proceeds from the 2023 Placing (after deducting the placing
commission and other relevant costs and expenses) amounted to
approximately HK$24,750,000 had been fully utilized for repayment of the
Group’s bank loan.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 29
May 2023, 16 June 2023, 24 July 2023 and 3 August 2023 respectively, and
circular dated 23 June 2023.

2024 Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 28 January 2024, the Placing Agent and the Company entered into a
conditional placing agreement (the “2024 Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of up to 235,000,000 placing
Shares at the placing price of HK$0.18 per placing Share to not less than
six (6) placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent
third parties. The placing Shares were allotted and issued under the specific
mandate granted to the Directors by resolution of the Shareholders passed at
a special general meeting of the Company held on 21 March 2024 (the “2024
Placing”).
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The net proceeds from the 2024 Placing (after deducting the placing
commission and other relevant costs and expenses) amount to approximately
HK$41,700,000 of which approximately HK$35,000,000 is used for
repayment of the Group’s bank loan(s) and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$6,700,000 is used for general working capital of the Group.

Further information can be found in the joint announcements dated 23
January 2024 and 23 February 2024, and joint circular dated 29 February
2024 of Easyknit and the Company respectively, and the section headed
“EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD” below.

Material Notifiable Transactions

(1)  Discloseable Transaction — Acquisitions of Listed Securities
Gainever Corporation Limited (“Gainever”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) acquired in a series of transactions for
a total of 1,346,000 Easyknit shares on the open market during the
period from 4 April 2023 to 12 April 2023 (both dates inclusive) at an
aggregate purchase price of HK$4,657,220 (excluding stamp duty
and related expenses) (equivalent to an average purchase price of
approximately HK$3.46 per Easyknit share). On 21 July 2023, Gainever
further acquired 380,000 Easyknit shares on the open market at a
purchase price of HK$1,786,000 (excluding stamp duty and related
expenses) (equivalent to an average purchase price of approximately
HK$4.70 per Easyknit share). Immediately prior to the acquisitions, the
Group did not hold any Easyknit shares. Following the acquisitions,
the Group holds a total of 1,726,000 Easyknit shares, representing
approximately 2.33% of the total issued share capital of Easyknit
as at the date of this annual report. Both acquisitions constituted
discloseable transactions for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 12 April 2023 and 24 July 2023 respectively.
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Very Substantial Disposal — Disposal of Property in Singapore

On 14 April 2023, the Vendor entered into an agreement (the “Option
to Purchase”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) in
relation to the grant and exercise of the option to purchase the property
situated at 15 Ardmore Park #04-03, Ardmore Park, Singapore 259959
(the “Property”). Pursuant to the Option to Purchase, the Vendor
has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase the
Property at a sale price of S$13,008,888 (equivalently to approximately
HK$76,752,400) subject to the terms and conditions of the Option to
Purchase (the “Disposal”). The Disposal constituted a very substantial
disposal for the Company under Rule 14.06(4) of the Listing Rules.

Completion of the Disposal shall be subject to or conditional upon (i)
the Company obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Shareholders
in respect of the sale of the Property pursuant to the Listing Rules;
and (i) Easyknit obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Easyknit
shareholders in respect of the sale of the Property pursuant to the
Listing Rules (if required).

The Disposal was approved by the Shareholders at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2023.

During the year, all the conditions precedent to the Option to Purchase
had been fulfilled and completion of the Disposal took place on 7 July
2023.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued
by Easyknit and the Company dated 14 April 2023, the Company’s
announcement dated 31 May 2023, and the joint circular issued by
Easyknit and the Company dated 8 May 2023.
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Discloseable Transaction — Acquisitions of Listed Securities
Gainever acquired on-market in a series of transactions for a total of
3,830,000 shares of Symphony Holdings Limited (stock code: 1223)
(“Symphony”) during the period from 2 August 2023 to 7 August 2023
(both dates inclusive) for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
HK$3,485,300 (excluding stamp duty and related expenses) (equivalent
to an average price of approximately HK$0.91 per acquired share). The
acquisitions constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company
under Rule 14.06(2) of the Listing Rules.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 8 August 2023.

Subsequently, Gainever further acquired 3,340,000 shares of
Symphony at an average price of approximately HK$0.893 per
acquired share. As at the date of this annual report, the Group
holds an aggregate of 7,170,000 shares of Symphony, representing
approximately 0.241% of the total issued share capital of Symphony.

Major and Continuing Connected Transaction — Revolving Loan
Agreement

On 29 August 2023, City China (as lender) and Main Profit Investment
Limited (the “Borrower”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Easyknit, entered into a conditional revolving loan agreement (the
“Revolving Loan Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other things,
City China has conditionally agreed to grant the revolving loan facility
in the principal amount of up to a maximum of HK$80,000,000 to the
Borrower for a term of two (2) years from the effective date for the
purpose of financing the property development projects of Easyknit
and its subsidiaries (the “Easyknit Group”) and general corporate use
subject to the terms and conditions therein. Pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Revolving Loan Agreement, on 29 August 2023,
Easyknit entered into a deed of guarantee (the “Deed of Guarantee”) in
favour of City China, under which Easyknit has guaranteed all liabilities
of the Borrower to City China under the Revolving Loan Agreement.

The Revolving Loan Agreement and transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a major transaction for the Company under
Rule 14.06(3) of the Listing Rules. In addition, the Revolving Loan
Agreement and transactions contemplated thereunder or the annual
cap amount constituted the Continuing Connected Transaction (the
“Continuing Connected Transaction”) for the Company and are
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and the
Company’s independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Completion of the Revolving Loan Agreement shall be subject to
or conditional upon (i) execution of the Revolving Loan Agreement
and the Deed of Guarantee by the Easyknit in form and substance
satisfactory to City China; (i) receipt by City China and/or the Company
all necessary corporate, shareholder or government or other (if any)
approvals and consents in relation to the Revolving Loan as may
be required under the laws of Hong Kong or the Listing Rules; and
(iii) receipt by the Borrower and/or Easyknit all necessary corporate,
shareholder or government or other (if any) approvals and consents in
relation to the Revolving Loan as may be required under the laws of
Hong Kong or the Listing Rules.

Following the approval of the independent Shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 9 November 2023 for the
Revolving Loan Agreement and transactions contemplated thereunder
or the annual cap amount, all conditions precedent under the Revolving
Loan Agreement have been fulfilled and completion took place on 9
November 2023.

As at 31 March 2024 and the date of this annual report, total loan
balance granted to the Easyknit Group under the Revolving Loan
Agreement was HK$30,000,000 and HK$60,000,000 respectively.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by
Easyknit and the Company dated 29 August 2023 and the Company’s
announcements dated 19 September 2023, 25 September 2023, 6
October 2023 and 9 November 2023, and circular dated 18 October
2023 respectively.
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(5) Connected Transaction — Proposed Alterations of Terms of the
2023 Convertible Note and Proposed Grant of Specific Mandate to
Issue Conversion Shares
On 28 January 2024, Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) as
the noteholder (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit and
a substantial Shareholder, entered into a deed of amendment (the
“Deed of Amendment”) with the Company as the issuer pursuant
to which they conditionally agreed to amend the terms of the 2023
Convertible Note to (i) change the current conversion price from
HK$3.70 per conversion Share to the revised conversion price (subject
to adjustments); and (i) alter the early redemption provision, to give
the Company and Goodco the right to redeem the 2023 Convertible
Note at any time, in whole or in part (the “Proposed Alterations”). The
Proposed Alterations were approved by the independent Shareholders’
approval pursuant to the Deed of Amendment and transactions
contemplated thereunder including the issue of further conversion
Shares at a special general meeting of the Company held on 27 March
2024.

Details of the Proposed Alterations and the Deed of Amendment were set out
in the joint announcement of Easyknit and the Company dated 23 January
2024, announcements of the Company dated 23 February 2024, 7 March
2024 and 27 March 2024, and circular of the Company dated 6 March 2024
respectively.

Proposed Adoption of the Amended and Restated Bye-laws

On 14 November 2023, the Company announced to propose amendments
to the existing bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) (the “Proposed
Amendments”) in order to (i) bring the existing Byelaws in line with the Core
Shareholder Protection Standards as set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing
Rules; (ii) allow a meeting of the Shareholders to be convened and held as a
physical meeting at one (1) or more physical meeting location(s) or a hybrid
meeting or an exclusively electronic meeting by means of electronic facilities;
and (jii) make other housekeeping amendments and update certain provisions
with reference to the latest applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules.
In view of the number of the Proposed Amendments, the Board proposed
to effect the Proposed Amendments by the adoption of the amended and
restated Bye-laws (the “Amended and Restated Bye-laws”) in substitution
for, and to the exclusion of the existing Bye-laws. The adoption of the
Amended and Restated Bye-laws was approved by the Shareholders by way
of a special resolution at a special general meeting of the Company held on
12 December 2023, and has become effective upon such approval.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 14
November 2023 and 12 December 2023, and circular dated 17 November
2023 respectively.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance. As far
as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its businesses
and operations of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group is embedded with a strong corporate culture for corporate
social responsibilities that forms an integral part of its business strategies.
Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to the long-
term sustainability of the environment in which it operates and support the
environmental protection initiatives to conserve the natural resources. The
Group understands global implications of climate change and is committed
to place a high priority on reducing the potential impact on the environment
by its business operations through building awareness of environmental
conservation, minimizing carbon footprints, employing green office initiatives
and enhancing environmental awareness among employees and other key
stakeholders. Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and to adopt effective measures in achieving efficient use of
resources, energy-saving and waste management. Details will be disclosed in
the environmental, social and governance report of the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules in due course.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects are subject to a number of directly or indirectly business risks
and uncertainties. In general, volatility in the worldwide financial markets,
fluctuations in commodity prices and increasing energy costs, strong
inflationary pressures, high interest rates, political turbulence, international
trade competition and supply chain disruptions have all contributed to the
increased uncertainty of global economic prospects.

Climate change poses different risks to the Group’s businesses. Apart from
physical risks such as rising earth’s temperature and sea level, increasing
greenhouse gas and extreme weather condition, have already created
and will continue to create, resulting in a number of negative effects to
the environment and the Group’s assets, businesses and supply chain
management which may pose increased risks for the Group’s stakeholders
such as employees, customers and suppliers.

Faced with such daunting macro-economic and geo-political risks and
uncertainties, the Group devotes considerable effort to focus on developing
its core businesses and to explore new market opportunities in order to create
and realize long-term values to the Shareholders and its key stakeholders.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 40 employees (2023: 38). Staff
costs (including the Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$40,218,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately
HK$29,929,000). The Group regards human resources as its valuable
assets. The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group has participated
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all eligible employees of the
Group in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has made
contributions to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government for the PRC employees. Other benefits to employees include
medical and dental scheme and insurance coverage.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focusing its efforts on the development of its existing
principal businesses, including property development, property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing business while
exploring other potential opportunities and projects with a view to providing
steady and favourable returns to the Shareholders and bringing increased
values to the Group’s stakeholders.

Despite the increasing uncertainties on global economic growth in the macro-
environment brought by high inflationary pressure and escalated interest
rates, and ongoing geopolitical tensions, the Group continuously and closely
monitors the current situation and remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the property and securities markets in Hong Kong and believes
these markets will continue to grow over the longer term.

In line with its investment strategy and policy, the Company will continue to
seize and identify appropriate investment and divestment opportunities during
this challenging period that fit the objective and investment criteria of the
Company, and will continue to seek attractive opportunities to replenish its
property portfolio as an ongoing business exercise. The Board would exercise
utmost caution so as to bring long-term benefits to the operating and financial
results to the Company in the foreseeable future.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures by integrating social and
environmental concerns into business operations of the Group, such that the
interests of the Shareholders and its stakeholders as well as the long-term
sustainable development of the Company can be safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. During the year,
the Company has fully complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
CG Code, thereby ensuring that the Company is up to the requirements as
being diligent, accountable and professional, except for the deviations with
considered reasons disclosed in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LAI LAW KAU
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lai Law Kau, aged 63, is the chairman, chief executive officer, an
executive director (the “Director”), the chairman of the executive committee
(the “Executive Committee”) of the Company, and a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company. Mr.
Lai has been involved in the textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. He
is a brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman and an executive
Director; and the vice president and an executive director of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1218) (“Easyknit”). Mr. Lai is also
an uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Candy Koon”), the president and
chief executive officer, and an executive director of Easyknit. In August 2020,
he was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. In
October 2020, Mr. Lai was re-designated from an executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee to the chairman, chief executive officer,
and the chairman of the Executive Committee.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 66, is the deputy chairman, an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director and vice president, and a
member of the executive committee of Easyknit. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit. Ms. Lui was appointed
to the board of the Company (the “Board”) as an executive Director in 2003
and was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006. She is a sister-in-law of Mr.
Lai Law Kau, the chairman, chief executive officer, and an executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Lui is also the mother of Ms. Candy Koon.
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MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, aged 81, is an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1965
and was admitted as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and
in Hong Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of experience in
the legal field. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as an independent
non-executive Director in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as
an executive Director in 2007. In 2007, he was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Kwong also serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and a subsidiary of Easyknit. In October
2020, he was re-designated from the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company and the chairman of the Executive Committee of the Company
to an executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee; and
resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan Ka Hon, aged 73, is an independent non-executive Director since
2003. Mr. Kan is also the chairman and a member of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kan has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He was an independent non-executive
director of Victory City International Holdings Limited (stock code: 539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau Sin Ming, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director since
2004. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
auditing and is now working as a tax consultant.

MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 2017. Mr. Wu is also the chairman and a member
of the Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. He holds a Master in Finance degree from the
University of Essex and a Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University
of Sydney, Australia. He has over 15 years of extensive experience in the
brokerage industry.

EECREE

BRALE

BRASTE - 815 * RARRZHITESRR
BERE  URPITEEBEKE - BBAER
1965F EXNBEHBKRE - HHIM1970F &
1973F R BB M BB 2 K2R o AR
REBBEI0FET o BEEMR2003FEEE
MAESEEABIIENTESE - HEMN2007
FERATANITES - R2007F - BEEE
BRRRERRERTRESR - BXENA
KRB ZHENBRARIARKE —HHEB AR
ZEE - R2020F108  BWEAARREFFR
BERTHRARENTZESEIRERAT A
TEERRTZESNE + URBHTIREE
BERHEMEBGKE -

BYFAITES
[GE P

3T AE - 735% © B 20034 e A1 L IEH
TEF -BEENALRABEZZES (B
BEEEEREKE - UAFTMHZES R
REEZEERE - GEHEEEREEELE
7 WARBERFHARSHTRMASEREE
REBGHMAEEE - BLEREHES
MAEEABOFLER - B ATEREE
BRABEMRAR(BRMDAIE - 530) B IFHITE
g °

BERARE

ZIZMHEE  625% 0 B2004F AR IE
HWITEE - BIRENATHNEESER KK
B THABEXZECRREZESRKE -
AREBBTFARSHTMACEREERES
SHAAEEE -  AAERARANFESH K
ZEE S - BATIEER -

REERLE

REBESLLE 395 0 B017TFRRABIIE
HWITEE - REENAREBEZESER LK
B UTHABEZZEERFHEZESKE - &
BAEEANERHAZSHMBEBE L2 KR
MNBERABEBBLEN - HIELLITER
BE15FNLEETLE -

35



36

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company is
dedicated to maintaining and developing a good standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework with key practices
and procedures by integrating social and environmental concerns into the
business operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential for upholding the interests of the stakeholders and
maximizing the shareholders’ value. The Board is committed to excellence
in corporate governance. It is responsible for developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
complying with statutory and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone and shape
the corporate culture of people-centered, risk-prevention-oriented, legally
compliant and steady progress, which is underpinned by the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group. The
Board leads the management in defining the purpose, values and strategic
direction of the Group and in fostering a corporate culture that is building a
long-term sustainable business models where customers, partners, investors,
suppliers and employees can benefit in the shared value of corporate
success. The desired culture is developed and reflected consistently in the
Group’s business operations, workplace policies and practices as well as
relationships with the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
other stakeholders. The Board, together with the management of the Group,
create an organizational culture of maintaining and developing an effective
corporate governance framework with stringent corporate governance
practices and procedures through workforce engagement, employee retention
and training, robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy and anti-
corruption policies, and legal and regulatory compliance. The Group promotes
its culture continuously by setting out various policies, including but not limited
to, the whistleblowing policy, the anti-corruption policy and the Shareholders’
communication policy. Taking into account the corporate culture in a range
of contexts, the Board has reviewed and considered that the Group’s culture,
purpose, values and strategy are aligned as at the date of this annual report.
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Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective of enhancing long-term
values and interests to the Shareholders and other stakeholders, the Group
focuses on achieving sustainable growth in both financial and environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) performance. The Group executes disciplined
management of revenue and profitability, margin and costs, capital and
investment return and other financing activities. The Group’s core competency
in operational excellence in its various properties projects is a key initiative
to capture continuing cost and revenue opportunities in its core businesses.
The “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report include discussions and analyses of the
Group’s performance, the basis on which the Board directs to generate the
Group’s core values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s corporate
culture, strategy and objectives. The Group is increasingly conscious on ESG
and focusing on supporting the global low-carbon and sustainable future
transition. Further details on the Group’s ESG initiatives and relationships with
its key stakeholders are disclosed in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
ESG

The Group recognizes the significance of sound ESG practices and is
committed to the environment protection, provision of quality workplace, and
serving our community. The ESG considerations are reflected in the policies,
procedures and processes that are relevant to the Group’s daily operations.
The Board plays a key role in ESG strategy and oversight in order to create
long-term growth and sustainable value for the Group’s stakeholders. The
Group had established a ESG governance structure to advise and oversee
the Group’s sustainability and ESG-related issues and risks. The ESG
management approach and policies are overseen by the Board. The Board
identifies and evaluates the material ESG issues related to the Group’s internal
and external stakeholders, including risks to the Group’s businesses. With the
ever-changing ESG-related risks and the growing prominence of ESG-related
issues to the Group’s stakeholders, the Group will uphold and strengthen its
risk management system in order to cope with the ever-changing ESG-related
risks and opportunities. The ESG policies and performance of the Group are
contained in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
has fully complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, thereby ensuring
that the Company is up to the requirements as being diligent, accountable and
professional except for the deviations with considered reasons disclosed herein.
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Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
(the “Chairman”) and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year, Mr. Lai Law Kau (“Mr. Lai”)
served as the Chairman as well as the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”). This dual leadership role has been adopted
by the Company for a number of years and is deemed appropriate as it is
considered to be more efficient to have one single person to be the Chairman
as well as to discharge the executive functions of the Chief Executive Officer
thereby enabling more effective planning and better execution of long-term
strategies. In addition, the Board considers that a balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals, with half of
them being independent non-executive Directors. The Directors also meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the Group’s operations. As
such, the Board believes that with the support of other executive Directors
and senior management of the Group, vesting the roles of both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Lai can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operations. The
Board will review the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5

The issuer should have an internal audit function.

Code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code stipulates that the Group should have
an internal audit function. The Group does not have an internal audit function.
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and considered that
the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. In addition, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal control functions in relation
to the Group’s critical operational cycles including the establishment of
arrangements to apply financial reporting and internal control principles in
accounting and financial matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules
and relevant laws and regulations. The Board considers that the existing
organization structure and close supervision by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Group can maintain sufficient risk management
and internal control of the Group. As such, the Board was of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. An
annual review will be conducted.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested in the
Board, who assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
operational performances, interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and that all issues are considered in an objective manner.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including three (3) executive
Directors and three (3) independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Mr. Lai Law Kau and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, both being executive Directors, are
family members. Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of
this annual report. Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) for a term of up to
three (3) years pursuant to bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) and code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly to
ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills
and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the Group.
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Board Independence

The independent non-executive Directors bring to the Board independent
views and judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts, and enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The established governance framework and effective
mechanisms are kept under annual review by the independent Board to
ensure their effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of at least three (3) independent non-executive Directors,
representing at least one-third of the Board and with at least one of them
having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a
term of up to three (3) years and subject to retirement by rotation at the
AGM pursuant to the Bye-laws. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that
each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming has served as an independent
non-executive Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board
is of the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise
of independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
as the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Re-election of the retiring
Directors will be subject to a separate resolution at the AGM to be approved
by the Shareholders by way of poll.

The Chairman meets at least annually with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee to the Board and then by the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Bye-
laws, all Directors, including those appointed for a specific term, are subject
to retirement by rotation at the AGM no later than the third AGM since the last
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment, or
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with at least
fourteen (14) days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Additional meetings, if necessary, are arranged
and will be held as and when required. All Directors or Board Committee(s)
members will receive the meeting agenda and accompanying Board or Board
Committee(s) papers at least three (3) days before the date of the regular
Board or Board Committee(s) meeting(s) pursuant to code provision C.5.8
of the CG Code; and may attend Board or Board Committee(s) meeting(s)
either in person or through electronic means of communication. A total of
eight (8) Board meetings (including four (4) regular Board meeting(s) were
held and written resolutions of the Directors were circulated and passed for
approving significant matters during the year ended 31 March 2024. Pursuant
to code provision C.5.5 of the CG Code, draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors or Board Committee(s) members for comments
and records respectively. The attendance records of the Directors are set out
as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Group of every business segment,
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the Group’s
operations, business and governance policies. In addition, our external legal
adviser meets with the new Director to ensure that he or she is fully aware
of the responsibilities as a Director under the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development (the “Continuous Professional Development”) regarding the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities, and the latest updates on rules and
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant in compliance
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. According to the training records
confirmations received from all the existing Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year ended
31 March 2024 in the following manner:
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Name Type of Training
e FHlE
(Note)
("15t)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lai Law Kau FRERIRSTAE v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EERHEZL v
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B RARNEE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BFHITES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon L Pt v
Mr. Lau Sin Ming LEALAE 4
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REE L v

Note:

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/

conferences/forums/online training/reading relevant materials

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance by monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group to
ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company’s
annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board had performed the
abovementioned corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any claims against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees (the “Board Committees”)

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and
to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and
holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board Committees
meetings. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are reviewed and
updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance
practices. Each Board Committee is required to report to the Board on its
decisions and recommendations, where appropriate. The terms of reference
of each of the Board Committees are available on the Company’s website.
The attendance records of each member of the Board Committees are set
out as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND BOARD COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS”.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three (3) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held two (2)
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during two (2) years after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.
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The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems;

- to review the financial controls, and risk management and internal
control systems of the Company with particular regard to their
effectiveness;

- to perform the corporate governance functions;

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee members met
twice with senior management of the Group and the Company’s auditor to
review (i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters, and
management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2023 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2023; (i) the draft consolidated financial statements of the Group in relation to
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2023 and recommended the same
to the Board for approval; and (i) the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and
satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor
and the audit fees including non-audit services provided by the Company’s
auditor to the Group and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Company’s auditor for
the ensuing year at the forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2023/2024 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the Company’s auditor. Based on this review
and discussions with senior management of the Group, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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The Audit Committee (including all three (3) independent non-executive
Directors) performed annual review of the Continuing Connected Transaction
regarding the Revolving Loan Agreement.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3) independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, and one (1)
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group;

- to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and senior
management of the Group with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

- to review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or
dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive Directors and senior
management of the Group which shall be fair and not excessive.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Remuneration Committee held
one (1) meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Group by reference to factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the market;
and to make recommendations to the Board on the Directors’ fee for
independent non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
or her own remuneration. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue to discharge
its major roles to, among other things, approve the terms of the service
agreements of the Directors and senior management of the Group, make
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration and policies
of the Directors and senior management of the Group and to review and
recommend to the Board the remuneration package including salaries,
bonuses and incentive awards for the Directors and senior management of
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming, and one (1)
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of the Directors for the
Board’s consideration;

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the succession planning for the Chairman and the chief executive of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Nomination Committee held
one (1) meeting to review and make recommendations to the Board for
approval on (i) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(i) the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company; (i)
the terms of reference for the Nomination Committee; (iv) the assessment
of the independence of the existing independent non-executive Directors;
and (v) the nomination of the retiring Directors for retirement by rotation and
re-appointment at the AGM. The Nomination Committee reviewed that the
current composition of the Board satisfied the Board diversity policy of the
Company which considered to be effective.

Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The nomination policy of the Company sets out the nomination procedures
for the nomination, appointment or re-appointment, and succession planning
of the Directors. It provides the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such recommendations. In assessing
the suitability for directorship of any proposed candidate, factors which would
be considered by the Nomination Committee include, inter alia, reputation for
integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Group’s businesses and corporate strategies, commitment in
respect of time to discharge Director’s duties, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s businesses. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval.
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The Board also adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieving Board diversity in the Company in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team of Board
members, which is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the authority
to review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to the Board diversity policy when
identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy has been
and will be reviewed annually taking into account the Group’s structure,
business models and corporate strategy to ensure its effectiveness.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31 March
2024:

Number of
Directors
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6

JL"M\Aiﬁﬂ:
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REFHFRENVELR -BEFECOEE
REZEEBBEAERTARNE  BHEE
TRIER - Fik - MERBESS - %
e TR BB MRAMRGES
B MFEEFENZTIZE - HiEE
& REBEEZBRENWERIEABEERA
BE SEEREFEUBZTILEE &
BEIREENRE - XHEAMD KR
REZEECIBEFESRBE - UER
HAEMIE -

TEBRN2024F3ANAEEEKE ST
{EROBER

Trading and
brokerage

R R4

Accounting
and finance
2t Rk
B

3
2
1
0 Gender Designation Age Length of Directorship Area of
group service with other listed experience
(number of companies
year(s)) (number of
company(ies))
MR 187 FheER EEEH REM AR KEREE
(FHIEH) HIES
(REIHA)
Remarks: Mt -
ED - executive Director BE-NTEF
INED — independent non-executive Director BE -BUIFNTES
Further information on the biography of the Directors is set out in the section EREERE 2 E—SPHBIRAFRIES
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of this annual report. ZERE]—&A -

47




48

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board currently has one (1) female Director out of six (6) Directors and is
committed to maintaining gender diversity at the Board level. The Company
has also taken, and continues to take steps to promote diversity at all levels
of its workforce. As at 31 March 2024, total workforce of the Company
comprised 50% female and 50% male. The Company will continue to strive
to achieve an appropriate balance of gender diversity in the workforce as well
as the Board according to business needs and future development so as to
develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board in the future.

Both the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company are
available on the Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Law Kau (chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated by
the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and
trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte has been re-appointed as the external auditor of the Company at the
2023 AGM until the conclusion of the forthcoming 2024 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the audit and non-audit fees paid
or payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte, were made up of
an annual audit fee of approximately HK$1,700,000, assurance service fee
on continuing connected transaction of approximately HK$35,000 and tax
compliance services fee of approximately HK$22,000.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS

Details of the attendance records of each individual Director at the Board
meetings (including regular Board meetings), the Board Committee(s)
meetings, the AGM and the special general meeting of the Company (the
“SGM”) held during the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

TRERBE
EERESERGHANHERE

M2024F3A31HIEFERN « ARIZERER
ARFIBRzZESE SR (BEEFE TS
#) EFTELER - REBAFAEREARQ
ARERFIAE((RRESIARE) ZEERL
BHBERFEBET -

Attended/Eligible to attend
i/ REKEE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Name meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM SGM
EXg® ERZEE® HMNZEEE REZEE RREF  RREMN
®H g3 g% = = PN -
Executive Directors HEE
Mr. Lai Law Kau BEMREL 8/8* 2/2 11 11 1 77
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BERkut 8/8  NANERE N/A T FR N/A T iE B 11 5/7
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 8/8  NATHEA NATEAE NATEA 11 77
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUEHTES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon BEHLE 8/8 2/2* 11 11 11 77
Mr. Lau Sin Ming Bz 8/8 2/2 11 111 1n 6/7
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REELE 8/8 2/2 11 1/1* 1/1 77

* Chairman of the Board/Board Committee(s)

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Mr. Lee Po Wing (“Mr. Lee”) who is
not an employee of the Company and is an external service provider of Paul
Kwong & Company, was engaged by the Company as the company secretary
of the Company; and Mr. Lee has confirmed that Mr. Lee has taken no less
than fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, the executive
Director is the contact person of Mr. Lee at the Company pursuant to code
provision C.6.1 of the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management framework. It covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (including but not limited to,
administrative, system, human resources and reputation), market, liquidity,
legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is continuously monitored
by the Board through the Audit Committee. The internal control system
includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority.
The Board has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
division to ensure adequate checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information, and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year under
review, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
that the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. The Board is of the view that the
enterprise risk management and internal control systems in place for the year
and up to the date of this annual report is effective and adequate. In addition,
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. An annual review will be conducted.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company encourages reporting
of concerns and actual or suspected misconduct or malpractice or unethical
acts by employees and/or external parties in any matters related to the
Company. In this regard, the Company has adopted the whistleblowing
policy which aims to provide reporting channels and guidance on reporting
possible improprieties and concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The
Board delegated the authority to the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of any matters raised and appropriate follow-up actions are
taken.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of bribery
and corruption and is committed to observing and upholding high standards
of business integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its
business dealings at all times. The Company has adopted the anti-corruption
policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all
directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group who must conduct
their activities in full compliance with this policy and all other applicable laws
relating to bribery or corruption.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements of the
Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates are made. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements for the reporting year on a going
concemn basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
is set out in the “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT” on pages 96 to 102
of this annual report.

TEERRE

HBFEE

ARBBNEZRERFDRKTOEAE - K
BEMEY - RRTHEIEE R HINBF
TRARAEENERNEEREIARE
B BRUTEEAFELTERNTR - B
b RARRABBRIE - EEREHEBER
BRIES UWREMERNT A BHATEER
" ETANRE BEFERTERZESHE
HABBERERERENOEFNERETAFM
BIMAESYRICEEWRETBHMELE
EHRHE -

REFHEE

ARAH - ABEENESRNERTBHN
RE - YHAOREMRAEBR S P EREER
BRETNEESSENBEHARE  #E -
DF - REMBRE - ARFCDRARES
BE - AIRERRAEBESAMEES 5
RBENEEMNEATRER  REZTAH
WA RETARBEMAA L EEEE
SAERHERER -

B E
EFRREAERETAEAFIIRRALE
B B RO R A R B AR R & 5T AR 2 B 75
RABREREZAEEGBRE - LB
PREMRBEERE  LhRNAELERS
FHER| - AEBEREMBEHRERE - CET
FEMBHREED  BEERSENS K
RYF—BUER - THEELEEMSELOH
BTG - EERBEKEEERERESF
B2 BA TSR -

EERRNREF AN BERDHHAEE
2 EHRR R BRI L AN 98T A
WA SAZTE  WRERETIRERE
¥ o

BB

RARINEZ BN H ¥ H E2024F 3 A 31
BIEFEMBREZB|ERETEDL 2R -
R ARERFISET 1028 2 B ZHEATRE
ﬂq °

51



52

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for the Directors in their
dealings in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiries by the
Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2024. The Company has also adopted the Model Code to regulate
the dealings in the Company’s securities by its employees and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group who are likely to possess inside information relating
to the Company’s securities.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the guidelines for the Board and the Company to determine (i)
whether dividends are to be declared and paid, and (i) the level of dividend to
be paid to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy is to allow the Shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for its working
capital requirements and future growth.

In determining or recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year or period, the Board shall, inter alia, consider the
following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(ii) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iii) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth

aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future liquidity position and capital requirements of the
Group;

(v) the interests of the Shareholders; and
(vi)  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim dividends as it
considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by the Shareholders at general meetings and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM.
Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meetings
The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company:

() any number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 Shareholders holding Shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

Proposing a person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“RULES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS”,
which can be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board
in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company considers that effective two-way communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication policy which aims to
promote an effective communication with the Shareholders, enabling them to
exercise their rights in a timely manner so that their views and concerns are
appropriately addressed, and to furnish the investment community with ready
and equal information about the Company.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.eminence-enterprise.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders and in particular, through the AGMs or other general meetings
to communicate with the Shareholders. During the year, seven (7) physical
SGMs were held, and the last AGM was held on 23 August 2023.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy during the year and considered it to be
effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 14 November 2023, the Company announced to propose amendments
to the existing Bye-laws (the “Proposed Amendments”) in order to (i) bring
the existing Bye-laws in line with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
as set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules; (i) allow a meeting of the
Shareholders to be convened and held as a physical meeting at one (1)
or more physical meeting location(s) or a hybrid meeting or an exclusively
electronic meeting by means of electronic facilities; and (i) make other
housekeeping amendments and update certain provisions with reference to
the latest applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules. In view of the
number of the Proposed Amendments, the Board proposed to effect the
Proposed Amendments by the adoption of the amended and restated Bye-
laws (the “Amended and Restated Bye-laws”) in substitution for, and to
the exclusion of the existing Bye-laws. The adoption of the Amended and
Restated Bye-laws was approved by the Shareholders by way of a special
resolution at a special general meeting of the Company held on 12 December
2023, and has become effective upon such approval.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 14
November 2023 and 12 December 2023, and circular dated 17 November
2023 respectively.

A consolidated version of the memorandum of association of the Company
and the Amended and Restated Bye-laws are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present this annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development, property
investment, investment in securities and others and loan financing and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 103 to 104 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including an analysis of the Group’s performance,
material events that have occurred since the year end date and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are contained in this
Directors’ report and the preceding “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” set out on pages 5 to 33 of
this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance policies and performance are reported in the “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” set out on pages 75 to 95 of this

annual report.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five (5) financial years is set out on page 233 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2024 by
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers and the gain/loss
arising from changes in fair value of investment properties was recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. Details of these are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages
107 to 108 of this annual report and note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:
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31 March 2024
2024%3H31H

31 March 2023
2023%3A31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Contributed surplus A BER 458,830 438,102
Accumulated profit REFFIE 261,193 174,722
720,023 612,824

Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to
the Shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

() the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,154,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 34 to 35 of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws and the Corporate Governance Code,
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (“Mr. Kwong”), an executive Director and Mr.
Kan Ka Hon (“Mr. Kan”), an independent non-executive Director, shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Kwong and Mr. Kan, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information of
the Directors since the date of the Company’s latest published 2023 annual
report and up to the date of this report are set out below:

1) According to the Company’s policies and practices, the remuneration
packages of the Directors were reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”). The
monthly salary of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui”) was reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, and revised
from HK$315,000 to HK$570,000 with effect from 1 September 2023.

2 There was new directorship of Ms. Lui in a member of the Group.

(8)  There were new directorships of Mr. Kwong in a member of the Group
and a member of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”)
(stock code: 1218) respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors
as regards their independence to the Company for the year ended 31 March
2024. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming
has served as an independent non-executive Director on the Board for more
than nine (9) years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will
not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors and
believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
will continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three (3) years under bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one (1) year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTION”
and “CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION” below, there was no
contract of significance relating to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no contracts of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) had any interests or short positions in the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), which were
required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which the
Directors or the Chief Executive were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors and the Chief
Executive, the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
other than a Director or the Chief Executive, in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total  issued Shares
HE#ES
BRELER 5EER Dk
ITERREH M & R#A REA it R
Ace Winner Investment Limited (“Ace Winner’) () and (i) ~ Beneficial owner 12,113,454 - 12,113,454 11.74%
ERREFROA(ER]) ki) EREFA
Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) () (i)~ Beneficial owner
and (i) 14,055,799 56,486,486 70,542,285 68.38%
EFERERAFN(ER]) ), (k) EmEEA
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited ), (i)~ Interest of controlled corporation
and (i) 14,055,799 56,486,486 70,542,285 68.38%

i, (iR FEHEEZEE
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total  issued Shares
RERST
BELER EEEE DGR
TERREB Wz & D] RAEE st RER
Easyknit (i), (i) Beneficial owner
XE and (iv) 675,000 - 675,000 0.65%
), k(v E&HFEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 26,753,937 56,486,486 83,240,423 80.70%
REGZE 2 R
27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
Magical Profits Limited (if), (i)~ Interest of controlled corporation
and (iv) 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
(i), (i R(v) FREEHIEE
Accumulate More Profits Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
iRk REHZEz#ER
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited (i) and (iv)  Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
REERETERLA iRk REHZEz#ER
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
k) REHZEz#ER
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
k) REHZEz#ER
Markson International Holding Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
k) REHZEz#ER
lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 27,428,937 56,486,486 83,915,423 81.35%
k) REHZEz#ER
Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng’) (v) Interest of controlled corporation 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 4.84%
LEYEA( 53 ) Vv REHEEzER
Beneficial owner 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 4.84%
ERAEA
10,000,000 - 10,000,000 9.69%
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(v)

In the 26,753,937 Shares, 12,113,454* Shares, 584,684 Shares and 14,055,799
Shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Ace Winner, Landmark
Profits Limited and Goodco (which was wholly-owned by Easyknit Properties Holdings
Limited) respectively, all of which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit. 675,000

Shares were also beneficially owned by Easyknit.

According to Form 2 filed on 12 April 2023 by Magical Profits Limited, on 4 April 2023,
Magical Profits Limited, which was interested in approximately 41.25% of the issued
share capital of Easyknit (including 1,343,000 shares of Easyknit held by the Group),
was wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn was wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust.
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited was owned as to 60% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited, which in turn was owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr.
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper, and 40% by Markson International Holding
Limited, which in turn was owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Ivan Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper, respectively. As at 31 March 2024, Magical Profits Limited, which was
interested in approximately 41.77% of the issued share capital of Easyknit (including
1,726,000 shares of Easyknit held by the Group, representing approximately 2.33% of

the issued share capital of Easyknit).

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a Director, was also a director of Ace Winner, Goodco, Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, Easyknit and Magical Profits Limited and a substantial
Easyknit shareholder.

On 20 February 2023, upon completion of the sale and purchase agreements, the 5%
per annum coupon rate 5-year convertible note (the “2023 CN”) in a principal amount of
HK$209,000,000 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.106 per conversion share was
issued by the Company (as issuer) to Goodco (as noteholder). A total of 1,971,698,113
conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the 2023 CN.
According to Form 2 filed on 21 July 2023 by Easyknit, upon effective of the capital
reorganisation on 19 July 2023 (the “Capital Reorganisation”), number of issued
Shares has reduced from 2,125,924,676 to 53,148,116 Shares; and conversion price of
the 2023 CN to Goodco has been adjusted from HK$0.106 to HK$4.24 per conversion
Share and number of conversion Shares has been adjusted from 1,971,698,113 to
49,292,452 conversion Shares, Easyknit’s shareholding interest remains unchanged at
144.35%. According to Form 2 filed on 7 August 2023 by Easyknit, upon completion
of 50,000,000 placing Shares on 3 August 2023, total number of issued Shares has
increased from 53,148,116 to 103,148,116 Shares; and conversion price of the 2023
CN to Goodco has been adjusted from HK$4.24 to HK$3.70 per conversion Share
and number of conversion Shares has been adjusted from 49,292,452 to 56,486,486
conversion Shares, Easyknit’s shareholding interest has reduced from 144.35% to
81.35%.
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(v) According to Form 1 filed on 20 October 2023 by Mr. Cheng, on 18 October 2023,
in the 10,000,000 Shares, 5,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng,
and 5,000,000 Shares were held by JFT Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Symphony Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1223), which was owned as to
36.96% by Goldsilk Capital Limited (which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng) and
5.62% by Mr. Cheng respectively.

* According to Form 2 filed on 2 July 2021 by Ace Winner, on 25 June 2021,
300,000,000 Shares were pledged to Hang Seng Bank Limited. Upon completion of the
Capital Reorganisation, the number of pledged Shares has reduced from 300,000,000
to 7,500,000 Shares, representing approximately 7.27% equity interest of total issued
Shares as at 31 March 2024.

Apart from Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, no Director was also a director or an employee
of any substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2024, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the Directors in competing businesses as at 31 March 2024
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of competing business

ESABRONEREE 2 EF

AR B H AR B A R R A E AR
BB EMLH  BEEFUTEBER
RERAEMEAMEAE B Z RS EREE
Bz THEBEESHERBIRNIBHTL
R T EMERARE AR B R EAME
ANBEZBAREHES - TETEEAZ
FHER -

EENBFEKES

MR2024%FE3A31H » IR LR BIZES. 1015
BEARARAREEENBEFEBNERD
T

Nature of interest

EENE NCIEY REEKME EEtE

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Easyknit Property development, property Director of Easyknit and
investment, investment in securities substantial shareholder
and others and loan financing of Easyknit

EERHRT KE MEER  MERE BHFRHEM KEEEFRKEBEFERR

REREF@E
As the Board is independent of the board of Easyknit and maintains three

(8) independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of Easyknit.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2024.

BEXgBUNKBREZE  THK=Q%H
VHERTEE  AEEBIROKEXRBINL
BAPEEREHE -

BE -« HENER FHES
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 23 January 2024, Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) as the
noteholder (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit and a substantial
Shareholder, entered into a deed of amendment (the “Deed of Amendment”)
with the Company as the issuer pursuant to which they conditionally
agreed to amend the terms of the 2023 Convertible Note to (i) change the
current conversion price from HK$3.70 per conversion Share to the revised
conversion price (subject to adjustments); and (i) alter the early redemption
provision, to give the Company and Goodco the right to redeem the 2023
Convertible Note at any time, in whole or in part (the “Proposed Alterations”).
The Proposed Alterations were approved by the independent Shareholders’
approval pursuant to the Deed of Amendment and transactions contemplated
thereunder including the issue of further conversion Shares at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 27 March 2024.

On 17 April 2024, upon completion of the 2024 Placing, all conditions
precedent under the Deed of Amendment have been fulfilled and completion
of the Proposed Alterations took place. The 2023 Convertible Note in the
principal amount of HK$209,000,000 at the revised conversion price of
HK$0.18 per conversion Share (subject to adjustments) and the alteration
of early redemption provision, to give the Company and Goodco the right to
redeem the 2023 Convertible Note at any time, in whole or in part has been
issued by the Company to Goodco in accordance with the terms under the
Deed of Amendment.

Further information of the Proposed Alterations and the Deed of Amendment
were set out in the joint announcement of Easyknit and the Company dated
23 January 2024 and 17 April 2024, announcements of the Company dated
23 February 2024, 7 March 2024 and 27 March 2024, and circular of the
Company dated 6 March 2024 respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29 August 2023, City China International Limited (“City China”) (as
lender), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Main Profit
Investment Limited (the “Borrower”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Easyknit, entered into a conditional revolving loan agreement (the “Revolving
Loan Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other things, City China has
conditionally agreed to grant the revolving loan facility in the principal amount
of up to a maximum of HK$80,000,000 to the Borrower for a term of two
(2) years from the effective date for the purpose of financing the property
development projects of Easyknit and its subsidiaries (the “Easyknit Group”)
and general corporate use subject to the terms and conditions therein.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Revolving Loan Agreement, on
29 August 2023, Easyknit entered into a deed of guarantee (the “Deed of
Guarantee”) in favour of City China, under which Easyknit has guaranteed all
liabilities of the Borrower to City China under the Revolving Loan Agreement.
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The Revolving Loan Agreement and transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted a major transaction for the Company under Rule 14.06(3) of the
Listing Rules. In addition, the Revolving Loan Agreement and transactions
contemplated thereunder or the annual cap amount constituted the
Continuing Connected Transaction for the Company and are therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement, circular and the Company’s independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Following the approval of the independent Shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 9 November 2023 for the Revolving Loan
Agreement and transactions contemplated thereunder or the annual cap
amount, all conditions precedent under the Revolving Loan Agreement have
been fulfilled and completion took place on 9 November 2023.

As at 31 March 2024 and the date of this annual report, total loan balance
granted to the Easyknit Group under the Revolving Loan Agreement was
HK$30,000,000 and HK$60,000,000 respectively.

Further information can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section above.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the Continuing Connected Transaction and the report
of the Company’s auditor and confirmed that the Continuing Connected
Transaction was entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties; and (i) according to the Revolving Loan Agreement governing on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Continuing Connected
Transaction with regard to the Revolving Loan Agreement in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “Auditor’s Letter”). The Company’s auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transaction disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been provided
by the Company’s auditor to the Audit Committee for review.

Save as disclosed above, the Company or its subsidiaries did not have any
material connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
was subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
March 2024.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal course
of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
For those related party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than those
described in the above sections headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTION” and
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION?”) under the Listing Rules, these
transactions were exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement and
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Bye-laws provides that, among others, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.
In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the
year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 92.36% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 57.67% of the Group’s purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
26.96% of the Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 8.36% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued Shares) have any interest in the five (5) largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong have been carried out by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers. For the investment
property in Singapore, the valuation as at 31 March 2024 was carried out by
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd, another independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers. Their valuations were based on residual value
approach, income capitalisation approach and/or direct comparison method
as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2023/2024 final
results. The Group’s investment properties were valued at approximately
HK$1,250,443,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,707,555,000), a decrease
over 2023 after adjusted for the exchange adjustments and disposals
of investment properties. The decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$9,563,000 was recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year. Development properties
and non-investment properties of the Group were stated at cost less
impairment, if any, in these consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant risks
are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions of
the economy as a whole and the property market may have significant impact
to the Group’s financial results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas
laws (including those of the PRC, Bermuda, Singapore and the British
Virgin Islands) and regulations, including but not limited to property sale,
management and construction as well as companies and securities laws.
The Group has constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group value its employees who are the Group’s most important assets.
Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration packages and benefits. The
Group is committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-
free working environment.
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Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group’s
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees
from any occupational hazards.

Customers

The Group strive to provide high quality and reliable services to its customers.
The privacy of the Group’s customers are well protected through a privacy
policy. Any complaints from customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership with its suppliers
and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the executive
Directors on the basis of employee performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after review and
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
factors such as the time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, the
Company'’s performance and the prevailing market practice.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where
the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date
of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of
the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee comprises all three (3) independent non-executive Directors as
at 31 March 2024. The Audit Committee has met in person or by electronic
means the Group’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements, and risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 36 to 55 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company (or “we” or “our”) has prepared an annual environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report for 2023/2024 in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. This
section highlights the ESG policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The Company is committed to addressing
sustainability issues and managing ESG risks through prudent business
planning and operational implementation. The Board, assisted by the
management of the Company, has the overall responsibility to review policies,
oversee sustainability issues and address ESG-related risks. Through this
internal sustainability governance framework, the Board has developed and
formulated relevant policies which better align with the Group’s business
goals and objectives.

Discussion on Environmental Performance

The Group is devoted to the integration of corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) into our day-to-day business operations to create long-term positive
value and contribute to a better future for the community while minimization of
its operational environmental footprint is resulted. We have focused our efforts
on environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, resource management
and cultivation of environmental awareness amongst employees. We remain
attentive to different energy-saving opportunities and adopt hardware
upgrades to improve our energy efficiency with a comprehensive approach
to waste and resource management, our goal is to create a paperless office
to minimize our paper usage. Apart from undertaking hardware upgrades
to further enhance the energy performance of existing infrastructure, we
apply new technologies to our new properties, including the installation of
low emissivity or double-glazed windows which help reduce heat loss and
optimise thermal insulation. Furthermore, we work hard to ensure waste
materials and other useful resources are reused, recovered and recycled
whenever possible before the consideration of landfill disposal.
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Account of Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Employees

We make great efforts to create a supportive, inclusive, caring and safe
work environment which facilitates professional development and protects
the health, safety and well-being of our employees. We emphasize on equal
opportunities, and a fair and transparent recruitment process. We reward
our employees with attractive remuneration packages and benefits, which
reference industry standards, and are commensurate with individual merit,
work experience, qualifications and job duties. Tailor-made functional training
programmes were arranged for our employees to keep abreast with the latest
professional knowledge and skills. Additionally, we have set safety guidelines
and systems to protect our employees and minimize potential occupational
hazards across our operations.

To ensure all staff understand their responsibility to uphold the Group’s ethical
standards, the employees handbook of the Group specifies clear expectations
for professional conduct. All relevant anti-discrimination and personal data
protection regulations are strictly observed.

In support of continual learning and development, the Group encourages
our employees to pursue different interests and offers internal and external
opportunities to realise their full potential. We continue to provide internal and
external training opportunities such as seminars and training courses in order
to strengthen our workforce and stock our talent pipeline.

We ensure our work environments are free from any potential occupational
health and safety hazards, our internal safety guidelines were formulated
in accordance with the requirements set out by the Labour Department to
minimise risks. During the year, we fully complied with all relevant health and
safety regulations and we are pleased to report that there were no work-
related fatalities or lost days due to work injury.

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group has put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures on quality
assurance, customer service, health and safety requirements, procurement
procedures, and regulatory compliance. Our management approach stresses
control measures to ensure our stringent requirements are met, in cases
where quality concerns may arise, a thorough investigation will be carried out
and corrective actions will be promptly implemented. A complaint-handling
mechanism has been formulated to ensure we handle customer complaints in
a consistent and timely manner.

To promote corporate responsibility along our supply chain, we give
performance to businesses who share our sustainable practices and ethical
standards. Regular supplier assessments and audits are conducted to ensure
their compliance with our requirements.
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Operating as a responsible business operator, we strictly adhere to all
relevant data privacy regulations and maintain a high level of business ethics
and product responsibility. The Group’s privacy policy is established in
accordance with local regulations to ensure that all personal data are handled
in strict confidence.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Business

During the year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on the
Group’s businesses regarding the environment, employment, occupational
health and safety, labour standards, product responsibility, anti-corruption,
data privacy and intellectual properties.

The ESG policies and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2024 are set out in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 75 to 95 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. Completion of the 2024 Placing
On 17 April 2024, all conditions to the 2024 Placing Agreement had
been fulfilled and completion of the 2024 Placing took place. A total
of 235,000,000 placing Shares have been successfully placed by the
Placing Agent to not less than six (6) placees at the placing price of
HK$0.18 per placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
2024 Placing Agreement. The total number of issued Shares increased
from 103,148,116 to 338,148,116.

With respect to the 2023 Convertible Note, upon completion of the
2024 Placing, the conversion price had been adjusted from HK$3.70 to
HK$3.49 per conversion Share and the number of conversion Shares
has been adjusted from 56,486,486 to 59,885,386 conversion Shares.

The net proceeds from the 2024 Placing (after deducting the placing
commission and other relevant costs and expenses) amounted to
approximately HK$41,700,000 of which approximately HK$35,000,000
will be used for repayment of the Group’s bank loan(s) and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$6,700,000 has been utilised
for the Group’s general working capital.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement of Easyknit
and the Company dated 17 April 2024.
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Completion of the Proposed Alterations

On 17 April 2024, upon completion of the 2024 Placing, all conditions
precedent under the Deed of Amendment have been fulfilled and
completion of the Proposed Alterations took place. The 2023
Convertible Note in the principal amount of HK$209,000,000 at the
revised conversion price of HK$0.18 per conversion Share (subject
to adjustments) and the alteration of early redemption provision,
to give the Company and Goodco the right to redeem the 2023
Convertible Note at any time, in whole or in part has been issued by the
Company to Goodco in accordance with the terms under the Deed of
Amendment.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement of Easyknit
and the Company dated 17 April 2024.

Major Transaction — Disposal of Limited Partnership Interest

On 31 May 2024, Prime Avenue Ventures Limited (“Prime Avenue”) (as
transferor), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the deeds of assignment and assumption of interests (the “Deeds
of Assignment”) in Templewater |, L.P. (the “Limited Partnership”)
respectively with each of Full Fortune Legacy Limited and Ulisse
Holdings Limited (collectively, the “Transferees”) and Templewater
I, G.P., the general partner of the Limited Partnership, pursuant to
which Prime Avenue has conditionally agreed to assign and transfer to
the Transferees all of the rights, title and interests of Prime Avenue in
the Limited Partnership (the “Limited Partnership Interest”) and the
Transferees have conditionally agreed to accept the assignment of the
Limited Partnership Interest at the total consideration of US$3,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$28,860,000), subject to adjustments
as provided in the respective Deeds of Assignment (the “Disposal’).
The Disposal constituted a major transaction for the Company under
Rule 14.06(3) of the Listing Rules.

Completion of the Disposal is subject to or conditional upon (i) the duly
passing of ordinary resolution(s) at the special general meeting by the
Shareholders regarding the approval of the Deeds of Assignment and
transactions contemplated thereunder; (i) all necessary consents and
approvals from the Stock Exchange required to be obtained on the
part of the Company and/or Prime Avenue in respect of the Deeds
of Assignment and transactions contemplated thereunder having
been obtained and remain in full force and effect; and (jii) the Deeds
of Assignment having been executed contemporaneously with each
other, and the completion of the transactions contemplated under both
Deeds of Assignment occurs simultaneously with each other.

Further information can be found in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 31 May 2024 and 24 June 2024 respectively.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed at the AGM
to re-appoint them as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lai Law Kau
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024

In case of any inconsistency, the English version of this annual report shall
prevail over the Chinese version.
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OVERVIEW

This annual environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report”) provides an overview of the management approach as well as
sustainability initiatives and performance of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(“‘Eminence”, “we” or “our”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the reporting period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (the “Year”).
The ESG Report was reviewed and approved by the board of directors of
Eminence (the “Board”) on 27 June 2024.

1. REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and “comply or explain” code provisions of the
ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”).

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope for the Year remained
the same as last year. The scope of the ESG Report covered our
principal business operations, including industrial, commercial and
residential properties in Hong Kong and industrial properties in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) and their references within the ESG Report, an ESG Guide
content index is included on pages 75 to 95 of the ESG Report.
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Reporting Principles

FRERBRATENRO B RIE ©

REE AR LAy 7 2 Fi B 3 R RA S AR SR 1T

E /R A
Materiality Material ESG issues were identified and prioritized with the Group’s stakeholders for
BEEM disclosure.

BEAREEFOHENERGEY - BAIEENRE HEREAEEERAEESE -
Quantitative The Group accounted for and disclosed KPIs in quantitative terms for proper evaluation
21k of effectiveness of ESG policies and actions.

C AERERHERE - 48 RERBE R

Consistency

disclosure.

TARENLEIARE R EMIERE -

The Group adopted consistent measurement methodology to achieve meaningful
— B comparison of ESG performances over time whenever practicable with updates

AEERA-HWEENE  AATHERTRERER - RS  d@RERERE

Balance

B RERBERNTERE -

The ESG Report aimed to disclose data in an objective way in order to provide the
i Group’s stakeholders with a balanced overview of the overall ESG performances.
RE MHEREAMGEETEBEENE  UMERAEERFHERMHEEEER &

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of the Group’s sustainable
development and business operations. The Group values and
cherishes the valuable opinions of our key stakeholders. To better
understand the expectations and suggestions of various stakeholders,
we maintain close communication through diverse channels with key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers,
business partners, government authorities and regulatory bodies. By
continuously receiving their feedback on the Group, we are able to
constantly review and optimize our operational performance.
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Key Stakeholders
FEFHE

Communication Channels
BERE

Employees
E&

New hire orientation

8 TEEE

Regular performance reviews

FEIRBE R

Remuneration and benefits

# R e R

Meetings and discussions

EE Y EE

Training programmes, seminars/webinars and briefings
EIEE - e B e RERe
Internal emails and publications
ERE E Ko R 4

Employee activities

BEEH

Customers

=9

Company website
NSIE A

Property sales activities
MEHEED
Property management

MEER

Suppliers and business partners

HEER K ER BT

Quotation and tendering processes

REERF R

Screening and assessments

8 AT

Site inspections, business meetings and work reviews

BERER  EBERRTEORE

Investors and shareholders
REERKRR

Annual and interim reports
FREPHRE

General meetings

BREXE

Announcements and circulars
Company website

NSIFER

Government authorities and
regulatory bodies
BT HEREEKE

Consultations

i

Laws, regulations and practices
SRR ERRER
Seminars/webinars

mae  BRTag

Community
e

Community investment
HERKEE

Donations and sponsorships
B8 & B

Social contribution

HeaR

Media
iHee

Press releases
FER
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Materiality Assessment BEMTE
In the preparation for the ESG Report, the Group conducted a ERERE  HEREGWMER - K
materiality review to identify and prioritize a list of material ESG issues SEERBUNT=Q)ELEREET
for disclosures by following a three (3)-step process as below: EZUEE  UHEAREXBEIFERE

Step 1
g

Step 2
£=%

Step 3
E=H

BE-ZINERE HEREREEE

Issue Identification % Blz% 58

e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.

o EHREARNRIE HEREARESR - ARSIEEOREED -

Analysis and Prioritization 72 #7 I #& E & X 8 5

e Consolidated and analyzed the results of the peer benchmarking exercise to develop a
prioritized list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.

o BAEUNMAERARNELARNER - UHIE—FITREZHRANNERE - HERER
EERERBEDIAHER

Results Validation T&:24 £

e Revised and validated a finalized list of material ESG issues and KPls for disclosures.

o ERINHMR—RIRKEEZNRIE  HENEAFENERENEENIRIERRESER -
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Eminence, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) is an integral part
of our business operations. As part of our CSR philosophy, we are
committed to creating long-term positive value for our stakeholders and
the community where we operate while minimizing the environmental
footprint associated with our operations.

Over the past years, we have continuously strived to maintain
sound governance practices, cultivate a sustainable and resilient
workforce, and engage actively in different community programmes.
A comprehensive framework is a foundation for effective ESG
management, ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations within an organization.

The Board oversees our ESG performance and regularly reviews the
Group’s CSR policy which sets out its long-term sustainability goals.
The Board is responsible for identifying, evaluating, prioritizing and
managing material ESG issues related to the Group’s operations and
risks, and the overall ESG strategy and reporting. The effectiveness
of ESG-related measures and the progress made against targets
are reviewed by the Board in its meeting(s). Meanwhile, the audit
committee of Eminence at the board-level is responsible for reviewing
the risk management and internal control framework.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

3.1 Introduction

Throughout our operations, Eminence has consistently
demonstrated our commitment to responsible environmental
management. Our internal policy identifies and outlines our
approach to environmental conservation with a focus on
environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, emission reduction
and cultivating internal environmental awareness on natural
resources protection.

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases relating
to all applicable legal and regulatory requirements' regarding air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

1 including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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3.2

3.3

Energy Consumption and Emissions

As energy consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon
footprint, we remain attentive to different energy-saving
opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades to improve our
energy performance over time. In the future, we target to
continuously reduce emissions and energy consumption by
implementing several energy-saving measures and initiatives in
our daily operations. Aside from our ongoing energy-efficient
LED light fixture replacement programme, we adopted automatic
motion sensors and switch-off timers at our properties to avoid
unnecessary energy consumption, save electricity expenses
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. We also adopted air-
conditioning zoning to maintain a controlled indoor temperature
and turned off electronic appliances when not in use to ensure
both energy efficiency and comfort in the working environment.
We have been introducing low emissivity or double-glazed
windows to our new property projects which helps reduce heat
loss and optimize thermal insulation. We conducted video and/or
telephone conferences to maintain the business communications
smoothly so as to control the energy use and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions. The Group will continue to promote a “green
office” and adopt a set of environmental protection and energy-
saving measures to minimize its environmental impacts.

Waste and Resource Management

As an integral part of our environmental stewardship, Eminence
has developed a comprehensive approach to waste and
resource management. Our goal is to follow the “3R” (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle) principle to minimize the environmental
influence in managing non-hazardous wastes in our operational
practices, and to create a paperless office where electronic
communication and document sharing are widely promoted.
As such, we use recycled and Forest Stewardship Council
certified paper, encourage employees to practice double-sided
printing and reuse paper whenever possible when a hardcopy is
necessary. We have likewise installed recycling collection points
at all our major properties, and we encourage employees to
separate recyclables like paper, glass, aluminum and plastic.

The Group had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
considering our business nature and geographical locations.
We have put in place various water-saving measures to manage
our water use efficiently, as to achieve the goal of reducing
water consumption. We have installed sensor water taps, flow
restrictors, and dual flush toilets at our managed properties and
office buildings along with regular inspections of pipes.
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Cultivating Environmental Awareness

Despite our business does not have a significant environmental
impact, we remain committed to practice environmental
protection. We believe driving positive behavioural change is
conducive to a sustainable future. To build a lasting green culture
within the Group, we have implemented internal environmental
policies and programmes at our office and properties, which
serve as practical guidance for staff on energy conservation,
waste reduction and resource management. For instance,
internal signs and notices have been posted in common areas
and washrooms to encourage responsible consumption of
energy, water, paper and other resources. We give preference to
office electronics and light tubes with high energy efficiency.

In the near future, we will keep striving to work towards creating
an environmentally friendly culture at work.

Climate Change

Climate change, in particular brought by extreme weather
conditions due to global warming, remains a global challenge
and poses material climate-related risks to the Group’s business
operations. To address the climate-related impacts and risks
caused by typhoons, rainstorms and/or floods to our business
operations, we have been adopting different strategies to
enhance our governance and improve our resilience to climate
change. In terms of risk management, we have identified the
climate-related risks as follows:

Climate-related risks

RIxEEA R

Impacts to our operations
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Hurricane and other extreme
weather events

JBE L e L At 48R iy KSR R

Change in long-term rainfall
pattern

EHRE AR

In terms of precautionary measures to minimize the potential
damages related to the risks:

Possible damages to the physical properties and building structure, and disruption
of utilities supply which may lead to loss in business and revenue.

AR ERYERBFTEBERES  URAASEHRESE - &7
BREEFEX -

Possible damages to the building facilities and structure, and an increase to the
building operation and maintenance costs.

FIRE IR TRk M AEHE - ARUE B TR E RMERR -

wHEEEAE  AEER D E
BB AR R BIE B E

(@)  Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the (@ HEEFERUERTREBER
buildings. S ©

()  Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock the doors () REMAFPZEHWEERL
securely. &P E -

)  Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of ) BEKRRZFIEHREM

drainage outlets and channels.

(d) Ensure routine inspection and/or maintenance on (d)

buildings and facilities.

HkO &% BREEY) e

BREEFREEETH
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The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate
change on the operations and will constantly review the policy to
improve the measures and disclosures.

4. OURPEOPLE

4.1

4.2

Introduction

Our business success depends on the dedication of our
employees. In this regard, we make great efforts to create
an inclusive and supportive work environment that facilitates
professional development and protects the health, safety and
well-being of all employees.

Caring Company

In addition to providing equal employment opportunities, we
also ensure our employees receive fair treatment throughout
the employment process, including recruitment, promotion,
compensation, dismissal, training and development, regardless
of nationality, race, religion, gender, disability, age or any other
basis prohibited by law.

To safeguard and protect human rights, the employment of child
and forced labour is strictly prohibited within the Group and
throughout our supply chain. During the recruitment process, the
Group takes measures (such as background screening, age and
identity verification) to prevent the employment of child labour
and forced labour. Immediate action will be taken according
to the relevant laws and regulations and investigation will be
conducted if any child or forced labour is found.

Employees are the most important assets for every company.
In addition to the mandatory provident fund contributions to
the employees required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
our competitive remuneration packages include fringe benefits,
medical health and dental insurance and a range of leave
entitlements and overtime compensation to attract and retain
talents. Our human resources department is responsible for
conducting annual performance appraisals and determining the
promotion arrangements and salary increments. We encourage
employees to maintain a work life balance and regular staff
engagements and activities such as weekly breakfasts, festive
gifts and lucky draws (that is Christmas, Chinese New Year,
Tuen Ng Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival), fitness classes were
arranged for our staff, contributing immensely to the sense of
belonging and cohesion within the Group. To enable employees
to share festive joy with their families, early leave for celebration
is provided on Chinese New Year’s Eve, Mid-Autumn Festival,
Christmas Eve, Winter Solstice and New Year’s Eve. High levels
of employee engagement promote retention of talent, foster their
loyalty and improve organizational performance.

FEERNPORERIRE(CHE
BOXE UBTHEEER
B ABUER R E -

4. EMAWET

4.1

4.2

e
HPIEBR A RBR IR E
BUASENMNE - £ETH
BMPENRFEREAE—ER
BRSO TIERE - MRER
SNEXBR  TRERSHORE
Bt~ e KRR -

HIREEN AR

BT REFENRERS - R
ERARMANESERERERBE
RPFIATHE  SERE -
BT HM - BE - BIIRE
R AAREE - ER =
MR~ B - FECSEM R
RFR RO EE o

RTHENRREAE  EAEH
REMmEEES - REERE
IREHIST - R BiED
AEBEFRDEREER(WERE
L FREGNRE) - UL
BAETREGIST - ERE
a2 T a5 hls5 T - iR B IA
ERFOERRIEREGTE) -
THE -

REREBHARREZNEE -
BT AR CGRAIE R TR 2R BIE
I (BB EDIF485%) i TE HI B
THEFS BRPIEBHFHOH
Bs - BEMEEN - BRE
B R IF RMR B A e — R B R B
BNV E - ARSI FIEEA
T BHPIMANERAPIEEE
TEEEMGHE R T T
Kpngr - BAIEER FETIE
HA - THEIZERES -
PlansE M E TREFGEN R
E SRk EEmRAE
FEE - BEHF  mFEHRP
REIR  RAREFHEAE
BHEBERNREEN - RTEER
TAIERADZEHAEN - £R
BHERS - PIKE - FRRE
RERKSEHA BTERT
THUBEER - mKFHEES
HEDBEAT - BERSZHND
HE - AREEBHRE -



4.3

i

SILEEBRAT 2023/2024 F3k

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

There were no non-compliance cases reported during the Year
regarding compensation, dismissal, recruitment, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare and relevant legislation, including but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group puts efforts into providing our employees with a
safe and healthy working environment. Our health and safety
guidelines and systems are designed to protect employees and
minimize potential occupational hazards in accordance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). As part of our emergency protocol,
standard procedures were established to deal with extreme
weather situations, such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings.
At our office premises, apart from conducting regular fire drills,
pest control and carpet cleaning, we ensure a clear indication
of emergency evacuation routes which are unobstructed at
all times. Similar control measures have been put in place at
our managed properties alongside regular inspections of the
firefighting system, including sprinklers and smoke detectors.
During the Year, we conducted cleaning of water tower air-
conditioning systems and split-typed air-conditioners, and the
Group has remained committed to putting health and safety of
our employees as the priority by ensuring workplace sanitizing
measures by installing air purifiers in offices which effectively
eliminate virus to safeguard our employees.

During the Year, there were no reported incidents of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations that significantly impacted the Group.

4.3
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4.4

4.5

Development and Training

Equipping staff with up-to-date industry trends, knowledge
and the right skill sets is essential for a business to succeed
in an ever-changing environment. We tailor functional training
programmes to meet the needs of our employees across
different departments and at various career stages. Furthermore,
we support our staff’s participation in different forms of
external training, including courses, seminar and workshops to
enhance their professional knowledge, practical skills as well as
confidence in their abilities and continuous career development.
For instance, we have provided training courses to develop
and refresh the employees’ knowledge and skills in using our
accounting system.

Business Ethics

The Group adheres to the highest ethical standards and is
accountable in all aspects of its operations and has zero-
tolerance for any form of bribery, corruption or malpractice. The
Employee’s Handbook outlines our expectations for responsible
business conduct for all our employees. Our staff is also required
to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Eminence has provided guidelines to regulate work ethics of the
Group’s employees and to prevent and detect activities related
to money-laundering and terrorist financing to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations and help detecting and
reporting suspicious activities, including the predicate offences
of corruption, extortion, fraud, financial crimes, money laundering
and terrorist financing, such as securities fraud and market
manipulation.

On 31 October 2023, the Hong Kong Business Ethics
Development Centre of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption has organized an integrity training webinar on the
topic of “The Gong Dream — Ethical and Governance Roles of
Directors and Senior Management of Publicly Listed Companies”
and an email containing webinar materials was circulated to all
directors and our employees inviting to visit the website and
attend the online anti-corruption training.

To ensure that employees are acting in a way that is reflective of
the ethical standards set by the Group, on 24 November 2023,
we have emailed to all directors and our employees to read
webinar materials on the topic of “Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Seminar for Money Lenders” which
was held in November 2023 by the Money Lenders Section of
the Companies Registry.

4.4

4.5

3R K3

FEfE BB E MR ERTPIUSK
Y REIRGBSHNERS
g HMERERORTEEHE
2 - ZFEF B REIEEIIR
2 Ul R REED
Rl BB 2 B BR MO TS AN » 3R AP
XFEB T2 MR SN
B - BERE - g kIE
b DMRBWENEENS - B
BREBEA RSB EANBEL R
BENARSERELR - Pl
BMC ARERMHIEIIRIZIAZ
EIFHESEMEMOEAR
SRR RN K Bl o

HEEE
AEBMETHRRMEBRIZE I
MEEEEFEAE - BYHIM
AR B5ERTAK
BEAZ - B8 FMsfas My
EFNEEASIRETANE
Z-HBMMWE T HEEZE T
LEFE B IR 1) (BB A B 8201
) - GREANGER) (BEEFISE
16316) R GTBAEE R BM D T
BSEERN) (BB EPIE615
)

S RHESIREAEEET
BV ZEETE - PARY IE R E B
BREMD FESEEEMNE
8 WRARETHBERIE
o AR W BRI R SRR T R R
¥ 8885 R K- 2
AL  ABRBMHO FELSE
SELRTR - MFFRFFE R
B -

2023 10A31H * REAE
EEBEBREERTLOEN 5
ATRES - LHRBEERD
RERABNBEELRACIR
BOBEEIRKHANE - L@
MAEEREMNEEEMN —H
EFHHRETN AR AR
TR ERL k2 EE FRES

o

AFEREERETAEEMTE
HBEIZ2 - A2023%F 11 824
B ®RMAMBESKERMOE
B E 7 A AERRK2023
FUABREBRREMEREA
A EERRNERE ARE
MEARPAITE R RS
TESESEE | ABENR LT
HEAER



i

SILEEBRAT 2023/2024 F3k

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

Our whistleblowing channel allows notifications to the Group of
irregularities of a financial and accounting nature, in addition to
potential breaches of the code of conduct and unlawful activities
undertaken in the organization. Whistleblowing complaints
are investigated thoroughly and treated in strict confidence by
designated personnel, so whistleblowers can voice concerns
without fear of reprisal. Whistleblowers will be assured of
fair treatment including protection against unfair dismissal
and victimization and their identities will be kept confidential.
Eminence has adopted the anti-corruption policy and the
whistleblowing policy; and there were no confirmed cases of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
corruption during the Year.

5. OUR VALUE CHAIN

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

In line with our supply chain management approach, we
give preference to businesses who share our commitments
to sustainable practices and ethical standards. A variety of
factors is considered in the selection process, including but not
limited to supplier reputation and experience, as well as past
performance and record with that supplier. Suppliers who have
obtained reputable environmental-related certifications, use
environmentally friendly products and services are preferred.
Before engagement, the Group reviews company information,
including but not limited to examining their business licences,
business and product and other materials. To properly manage
risks, including ESG-related risks, arising from our supply chain,
we closely monitor supplier performance and conduct regular
supplier assessments and audits to ensure their compliance with
our requirements. Suppliers who fail to deliver the committed
quality are subject to a series of inspections and reviews. This
holistic approach also enables us to build effective long-term
relationships with our business partners and suppliers. During
the Year, all major suppliers were reviewed and evaluated.

Responsible Services

We have put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures
which provide our employees with the guiding principles in
relation to quality assurance, customer service and privacy. For
instance, to ensure the product quality, we have established
assurance procedures and conducted checks. Also, we have
formulated a complaint handling mechanism to handle and
address customer concerns in a consistent and timely manner.
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Moreover, we strive to ensure the confidentiality of personal data
and information collected from our customers. We have set out
clear privacy guidelines and procedures covering the use and
management of data and information in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Only authorized personnel are allowed to access
customer data on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis.
Documents containing personal information would be shredded
before discard.

Intellectual property is an essential asset to the Group. Eminence
protects its intellectual property by using copyrights, trademarks,
confidential information, and other applicable forms of legal
protection. We also work closely with law firms to regularly renew
and protect our copyrights and trademarks in accordance with
the requirements of the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group raises employees’ awareness
of intellectual property protection through work practice.

During the Year, there were no complaint and non-compliance
cases relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy,
copyrights and trademarks matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

OUR COMMUNITY

Eminence is committed to contributing positively to the community
where we locate and operate as well as all around the world. We
have developed long-term partnerships with charitable organizations
and offered financial and in-kind donations, with special focuses on
education, health and social welfare to fulfill citizen responsibilities.

During the Year, the Group contributed over HK$1.15 million in
community investment, supporting non-profit organizations from
areas of local and the PRC education, health and social welfare,
including Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited who provides
completely free learning support to disadvantaged students facing
financial difficulties; J Life Foundation Limited who offers immediate
food assistance and education to underprivileged families living below
the poverty line; and the Global Chinese Breast Cancer Organization
Alliance Company Limited who is dedicated to serving and supporting
breast cancer patients.
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7. HKEX KPI DATA TABLE 7. TARABIFIEREINISERERXR

FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22

HKEx KPI i 202324 2022,°23 202122
BT TR AEIER = HEREFE BEREFE BIEE

A. Environmental

A BRI

A1.1 | Air emissions®
BERBERC
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kg 5.83 5.93 not applicable
REY T TEA
Sulphur oxides (SO,) Kg 0.15 0.15 not applicable
maiy F= NiEm
Particulate matter (PM) Kg 0.43 0.44 not applicable
FERLY) F5= TEA

A1.2 | Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BAERBRHEHEREE

Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO.e 186.95 187.52 12.95
HEHERE WE—EftiE
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of CO.e 56.89 93.82 177.77
#HE2H M E M_SbiE S
Scope 3 emission® Tonnes of CO.e 1.40 1.64 1.65
HE P EP WEoEtiEE
- In total Tonnes of CO.e 243.84 282.98 192.38
- 25 W —f(tixE =
- By intensity Tonnes of COge/l-—FE 6.10 7.45 3.01
- AZEEt mE — S ik E

EH%%EE

A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity ©
BEBRREYEEHERREES

Concrete and metal Tonne not applicable 1,705.60 2,838.00
BELREE 7 TiE A
Waste paper Tonne 0.94 0.89 1.00
BEH 145
Recycled concrete and metal Tonne 7.82 907.95 118.00
AT EIYBCREE T RSB U
Disposed materials, metal and general Tonne 10,375.77 2,300.70 not applicable
refuse in landfill2 7 NiEm
EEREEENEEME  2BR—R
Bk
- Total amount of waste generated Tonne 10,384.53 4,915.14 2,957.00
- EXNEEDRE U7}
- By intensity Tonne/FTE 259.61 129.35 43.49
- REET W, ER2BIES
a The Company starts to disclose the data in FY2022/23. a AR AIF2022/238 B E IR TR R B ©
b We take into account the greenhouse gas emissions for processing fresh water by b I 58 BT A6 P BE IR A K B R = REE BRI
government departments. E-
c Fluctuations in the non-hazardous waste figures are attributed to varying construction c BEEEYHENRDEERTRELEKRD
activities across different project stages. The reported quantities will vary annually BRERE(L - HEMBEBRBEEEETHNE
depending on the specific development phases underway. BERERMSFEMTE -

B
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FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22

HKEXx KPI 202324 202223 202122
BB TERANER MREFE MREFEE BBEFE

A2.1 | Energy consumption by type and intensity
RERIDWEREERREE
Direct energy consumption

BERERER
= In total 000 kWh 91.71 93.66 43.56
= LAEER F1E T FLBF
Indirect energy consumption
HELREE
- In total ’000 kWh 145.88 209.55 253.96
- LA#RE5 FEF FA
Total energy consumption
BERFEE
- In total 000 kWh 237.59 303.21 297.52
= NEEF FEF R
- By intensity ’000 kWh/FTE 5.94 7.98 4.65
= LAZ E 5t FREFRE~
ZRE2BIEES
A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE
Water consumption
FkE
- In total m? 3,227 7,804 5,946
- LAfR 25 TR
- By intensity m3/FTE 80.68 205.37 92.91
= AZ E 5t SR E R 2R
(=
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HKEX KPI Unit FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22
BRERTBRENER Ef 2023/ 4HBEE 2022/ WPHEE 2021/ 2HUEE

B. Social

B. #8

B1.1 Total workforce by gender and Male Female Male Female Male Female
employment type 2 T 2 g3 B i
EUARERRLEI NESLY
Full-time Number of people 20 20 18 20 40 24
2 AH
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 AH
Total workforce by age group and Under 30-50 Above Under 30750 Above Under 30-50 Above
geographical region 30 50 30 50 30 50
RERENRHEAINESEY 303 0w E 505 0% | 0WE | S0 303 0RE 503

AT 507 WE BF 50%% BE AT 50 A

Hong Kong Number of people 0 20 17 0 17 18 0 18 19
B AH
The PRC Number of people 0 1 2 1 0 2 3 3 21
G A

B1.2 Employee tumover rate by gender Male Female Male Female Male Female
RURIEANEERALE St L4 Elid it i i3
- Byrate % 25,00 35.00 22.00 500 12.50 12.50
- DA ARl
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50 | Under30 | 30-50 | Above50 | Under30 30-50 Above 50
RERANIINEERKLE 308 HE 503 N | RE | 50E 303 RE 503

AT 505 ME W 503 BE AT 50 It

- Byrate % 0.00 42.86 15.79 0.00 500 8.00 0.00 2381 750
- DAL BAlt
Employee turnover rate by geographical Hong Kong The PRC Hong Kong The PRC Hong Kong The PRC
region Bl G B i B f
RHBAANESRALE
- Byrate % 3243 0.00 13.00 0.00 12.50 0.00
- Bk g

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24
RIfBEMRTHARRILE 2020/ 1B HER 2021/ 285 R 2022/ 23 HER 2023/ UHBER
= By number Number of people 0 0 0 0
N G AH
- Byrate % 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
- DAE ARt

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
RIBEXIERY
Lost days Number 0 0 0
BXIERE #A




90 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

HKEx KPI Unit FY 2028/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22
EEMRBRANER Efi 2023/ UHBEE 2022/ BHBER 2021/ 2 BEE

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
RERIREEEREINTIEER AL
Male % 35.00 44.44 27.50
il R
Female % 35.00 35.00 29.17
it R
Junior staff % 26.67 23.53 22.58
NRET Ant
Middle managers % 11.76 23.08 11.76
hRERE Antt
Senior managers % 100.00 100.00 56.25
BRERE ARl

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category
RERRESENES  SEEETAIINTYIRE
Male Number of hours 6.25 4.75 480
St B
Female Number of hours 5.95 4.46 413
it B
Junior staff Number of hours 3.00 071 2.71
IRET B
Middle managers Number of hours 1.53 1.64 1.41
PRERE 2
Senior managers Number of hours 21.63 17.84 11.44
RRERE 2

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
BRI HHERHE
Hong Kong Number of suppliers 110 35 50
Bk G
The PRC Number of suppliers 0 4 10
i R
Singapore Number of suppliers 8 1 4
s R

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
REBNERRRBHRAFEE
Number of complaints 0 0 0
RAFHA

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HAARRLYBEANESHARHNEYE
Number of cases 0 0 0
RHH2A

B8.2 Resources contributed
ERER
Donations (HK$'000) 1,164 1,322 1,278
RE(THATL)
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8. HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. EBEBIMURE *HEBRERRK
HI551YAAR &L

HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BRERIEE | mut BE B
A. Environmental
A BRI
Al Al General disclosure 79-82
Emissions —RREE
HER) Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data 87
HERUE SR N B R R R
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 87

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
HEEE) ReREZ (GEE2)RERBHENE AN
B EEREEABES B - BFHERXMTE

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Due to the business
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | nature of the
per facility) Group, this KPI
FEAEEREEYEE CAMEETE) R (ER) %E (EAF | is considered not
ESBAN - BERMETE applicable.
ERAEER X
ME - LLRARE
BIERERRR/TE
A o
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 87

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)
FEAEEEEYAS UM E) R(ER) ZE (NIAF
ESE - BERMAE)

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 80-82
achieve them

HIRPTRT L HERE B IR ROBIERE L B EATERER R P 5%
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 80-82
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
HIlERIE A E REEERYNTTE - RIS PTE] L8R EE
B IR R AEDE L B R AT ERER ) 5%
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HERER

HE

HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
=] BRERIEE B
A2 A2 General disclosure 80-82
Use of Resources —RHEE
BIRER A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 88
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
REMNISNEER SEEEREEERTE (WNUE
EE B - BERBTHE)
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 88
production volume, per facility)
BFEKERTEWMUEESEN - BHERMAE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 80
taken to achieve them
H At AT ET SZ MY AR IR (R AR s B IR R IE BB L B IRFTERER
BB
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 80
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
it SRERGE A KOIR B R B R RIRE - DA RPRTET SZEY A K3
@ B R R AREDE L B IR ATERE 2P 5
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products| Due to the business
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit| nature of the
produced Group, this KPI
SRR EE (U E) & (EA) 84 E | is considered not
BhE=E applicable.
ERAEBRED
HE - ERE
B R/ TE
Ao
A3 A3 General disclosure 79-82
The Environment and —ARIRER
Natf"al Res\(‘)urces A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 79-82
BRERRRER environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them
HAEBEDEHRBERRABRNEAFEREHNER
B ERTE
A4 A4 General disclosure 81-82
Climate Change —RHE
AR A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 81-82

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them

BB RAReHBETAEEYENEARKEBRE
B - REHITE

2
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HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB T
B BARERIEE | mut BE B
B. Social
B. &g
B1 B1 General disclosure 82-83
Employment —RRIREE
(0 B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time 89
or part-time), age group and geographical region
RMR - EEER(NEBEGRE) - FRRARI KR E D
B E B 42K
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 89
geographical region
RIER - FRAR KRS SR ESRKAL X
B2 B2 General disclosure 83
Health and Safety —RRIREE
feRERE B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 89
of the past three (3) years including the reporting year
BE=QF (BHEERFE)BFEITHMAS KL E
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 89
EIBEAIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 83
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored
HEIR P ER AN BV BB B I BR B 2 2 1 b - AR T R B R
DAl
B3 B3 General disclosure 84
Development and —RRIEEE
Training B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 90
TR NS employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management)
RURIRESHEINERERE  PREEE IAHINZ
JEEADL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 90
gender and employee category
RUERIREEBERIZD - BEESTHZ I TR
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HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
EmE BRENEE | #H B
B4 B4 General disclosure 82-83
Labour Standards — MR
HTERA B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 82

avoid child and forced labour

Hst ARt RSB (I A0 HE He DA SR B T I o8 145 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 82
discovered
Fo AT 23R E RIS R R EBR B B 18 S FT B ER A R
B5 B5 General disclosure 85-86
Supply Chain —RRIREE
Management B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 90
i A
GRS EE BRI R B
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 85

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored

A A EEENED - mERTERENNHER
HEH ARBERTRERAE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 85
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored

H A SR S EIRE R LA SRR EH
ARMERNIT R ER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 85
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored

MM TEREHERRRESARRERRREOES - LA
RBERTRER A
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R -HERERBE

HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB T
B BRERIEE g BE B
B6 B6 General disclosure 85-86
Product Responsibility — R E
EmAft B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Due to the business
recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the
EEAERERAERAHPTRL 2 BEREAMARYHE | Group, this KPI
P2 is considered not
applicable.
ERAEE R
ME - %%%?
)&(?E *T%BZ WLA
Ao
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 86, 90

received and how they are dealt with
BREANE D RREHIRFE B A REEH T A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 86

intellectual property rights
Fh aft B4 v I R P8 N S EE M S A 1B D

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 85
procedures
S 2 80F B2 M E m B

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 86

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored
T B EERHRIE RALBEBUR - ARBBERTRERS

=
B7 B7 General disclosure 84-85
Anti-corruption —RRIREE
RES B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 90

practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHEITASERERETESENE THAR
HEB B MR R

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 84-85
procedures and how they are implemented and monitored

TS R R AR T - A RBERIT RER A

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors 84
and staff
HilmES R E TRENRESEF
B8 B8 General disclosure 86
Community Investment —ARIEEE
HERE B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 86

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)
EIEREEWHE  BEEH BIFK BE X
v 85)

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 90
area

B TR MERAE RGNS 82 H)
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 103 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

=ED

(REFETMA LB B R F])

HSLEEERIAME

=R

RN EED (A TERBIBEM) ERAVNEHNRE
103E232E M & LU EAR A A (A T EHE
[BERARIDREWBARIATHBIEEE])
iR G B HmE - HBER20243H31H
MG BRAREHEZB L FENLEE
BREKEMEEBER REESZEHRM
RARERER  URKREMIEHRERMZE -
BRERERNGHBERER REMBEER -

BMRE  ZEREUBEHRRECRERES
TR g((BEesMAg)BHHNEBHT
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FibRERT BEBMR2024F3A31HMER
BMBRARBEZB LFENRAEVBER
RRZEERERE  WEEREBQRIEH
B R B SR AR o

BRRHER

BMERBERSHMASRONEERG
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SR THAENBEEEEARE AZEEI
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TR - RETEEHMOGRMNELS
sHEDERTRIOATERIFAD - BB
B EEE YEBRTTFATHHEMGERE
£ - BPEERMMESNRIRERETE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESFSE

Valuation of investment properties

REYF214E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgments and assumptions made by management of the
Group in determining the fair value.
HRERBSREVBEREACZERZFEE Nt E5EHE
BENEEQFERS RERZ HE RRE - HMBNRE
MEZHER—IABBEETEE -

At 31 March 2024, the fair value of investment properties was
approximately HK$1,250 million with a fair value loss recognised
in profit or loss of approximately HK$10 million.
20243 A318 + REWE A F(EL1,250,000,0007 7T -
PIEEHER 2 N F{ER1E£910,000,000/8 7T ©

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers (the “Valuers”). Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
ERBEREMEZ N FEDBEBEY & EREXMEHERMT(E
ERDERZHAESR - REMKAZEETEZREEB AR
B2 FBEERGEAEMBRERMTITARE -
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BRETSRGE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMHET O REREEET SR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BPEREMEZEEZRBRFRE

° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
REEME BEXREERBETHRMEETE DETSR
B RAZEERE  FEHESHE - HERKAZ

FEBARBE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers;
FHEMEREERS - eI RFEIM

° Assessing the integrity of information provided by

management of the Group to the Valuers by comparing,
on a sample basis, details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements; and
FRUAMES AL BEBRAEOZHEFH1E U
it ESEERERMGEMARHRIEN 2 TEBY K

° Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing
relevant market information with similar properties, and
assessing the appropriateness of specific assumptions
make on adjustments of the properties by reference to
character, location and other individual factors which
affect the valuation of properties.
FRLBFRARYENEATISER - S EER AR
SEEEECANEERANGEN  WR2EZEME
BEMNFMT ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@?ﬂ% RS TR AE

HEFERRETEEE -

7
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESBE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale (“PUD”) and properties held for sale
(“PHS”)

I EL ERBEYE ([FFEH EREYFE]) RIFIEHEYF
([FF1EHEY X)) 2 Al # 5 )FE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
PUD and PHS as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the judgments and assumptions made
by management of the Group in determining the net realisable
value.

BREREGEMBRR BEEZEHEE - Nt BE5EE
B BEREE Al S BUFERF SR HENRR - Bt RS
HSFHERRMERBIEHEMENER FENTHET
REARETEE -

The Group’s PUD and PHS were stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value
are determined based on best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the estimated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales, if applicable.
The selling prices are estimated by reference to the market
prices of similar properties in prevailing market environment with
adjustments to reflect different locations or conditions for the
properties. The costs to completion of the PUD are estimated
by reference to the development budget, actual development
cost of similar completed properties with adjustments based on
current market data.

AEBOBIELEERMERKNAMAI R FEFHIREE
PR o A BIFEMNMGTREENKENTAEELLZHMHEN
FEARR A TEET B FERCBC AR SR AR X 85 & FT 7 2 B 1 B 5E &9 (A
HA) c EELERTMSRE NREUME 2 5 ERETH
BT W RMZEMEMBETRMESGR R MEL A - &
EHEERVETRERER AL L2 ZRREE  BUER
IMEZERFRKAEITH - WRBRRITHISEURED

B -

BREGTSRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BPNE O REERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable value of PUD
and PHS included:

B ELHEERYELMBELEMENTEIFENRER
BIE

. Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
FEEMAN EEEEERETROERN  BHETS
= HANSBERE - SE2NHEEE - B5E AN
HEDEREIE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;
FHEHEMAER e N FREE

o Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the management’s estimated
costs of completion by reviewing terms and conditions
of the signed construction contracts, inspecting the
contract sum and budget information, and assessing
the appropriateness of changes in the estimated costs
of completion by inspecting the supporting documents
including signed construction contracts and certificates;
and
BBESLEENELSRANKRINGEY - BEGRE
BNEEEEURTMTIHEEREHNFEE N - U
TR AREEEN T IAEERNSEMNEE 4
RBARSESIR/RNE  BEEIINBIARNES &



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESSE

At 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of PUD and PHS were
was approximately HK$2,521 million and HK$1,066 million, with
impairment loss on PUD and PHS recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$103 million and nil during the year ended 31
March 2024, respectively.

20243 R31H » HIFHEBERMERBFELEMENRE
F{BE ) A2,521,000,000/% 7T K 1,066,000,000/4 7T+ B 22024
FIABBILFE  EERTHEIANFELERRMEREE
& MR E RSB 47 4103,000,000 7T R THE T ©

The calculation of net realisable value of each PUD and PHS
is performed by an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuer (the “Valuer”). Actual realised amount may differ
from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the
net realisable value of the PUD and PHS for sale and additional
write-down or reversal of write-down previously recognised may
be required.
BEFFLEERMERBIEFLENENATERFENTE
REHBVAGSGEABNEEFEG QR ([EERD]) AT
B BRERNSEAEEGTONSBEAMIR - tmB%%
HENFFHEERVERFFELREWENATETFERD
I AN - I B R] 88T ZAE 1T HR SN IR S Sl 8 St B BE R A
iH o
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BRETSRGE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

PN E O REEERETSE

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuer and management of the Group by comparing
relevant market information with similar properties.
ABEAFRUMEENERTISE BEITLE - FHEE
EMMASEEREFEANEERANSIENE o

gie)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

ERAEEZFYHHMES B8
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WRERPIORBEN RS o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

R TR CE:
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEsEkEMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, £ 20243 A31 B I FE

2024 2023
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
B3 FBT FAT
Continuing operations BECEER
Revenue EERE 5
Rental income GiEEAL YN 28,751 24,408
Building management MEER 12 -
Interest income from loan financing REERBE 2 F2WA 1,930 2,786
30,693 27,194
Cost of services rendered RUREAK A (3,520) (2,969
Gross profit EH 27,173 24,225
Other income EAbug A 7 8,101 8,353
Other gains and losses EAh i as RSB (9,241) 1,409
Other expenses HibF X (1,175) (303)
Administrative expenses TS (58,483) (47,074)
Finance costs [ELESIDFN 9 (55,074) (22,985)
Share of result of a joint venture DME—EEERREE 142 113
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of KREMELZ NTEED
investment properties (E518) Wz 17 (9,563) 78,967
(Write-down) write-back on properties held 31 & 2 B ¥ 3 = (i 3%)
for development for sale, net Ec{EIpEE 21 (102,937) 40,394
Net loss on changes in fair value of financial ZAF{EFFABRSZ SREE
assets at fair value through profit or loss Z AT EZHEERFE (4,391) (4,531)

Release on disposal of debt instruments HERATEFAREMEE

at fair value through other comprehensive  Uizs 2 (&7 T BB R4

income (2,119) -
Reversal (recognition) of impairment loss on 4 B & & 2 J5l (B 518 # [E]

financial assets, net: (FER) - JF88 -

~ Loans receivable - EER 18 473 (8,663)
~ Debt instruments at fair value through - RAFEF AEMEERE
other comprehensive income ZEHITHE 1,775 (3,530)

Loss on revaluation of intangible assets | AE s EMEE = (5,847)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmEE 2 RERE - (3,207)
(Loss) profit before taxation bR AT (B 18) & A (205,319) 57,321
Taxation (charge) credit BIEFEX)EE 10 (13,485) 1,649
(Loss) profit for the year from R EFHER S TR

continuing operations FE (18 &7 12 (218,804) 58,970
Discontinued operation [EEJIFEE 3
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEEEEBR

operation FEAF 11 5,655 4,602
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to AABIRREEFEE

owners of the Company (Es18) &7 (213,149) 63,572
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEakAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

2024 2023
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET
Items that may be reclassified subsequently &1 ] sEE#T 7 HE 2 18m.2
to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on translation & § /N2 BRI IEIRE 2
of financial statements of foreign EHER
operations 1,078 (36,244)

Change in fair value of debt instruments BRATEFAREMEEKE 2

at fair value through other comprehensive &7 T H 2 A FEE S

income (993) (1,454)
Release on disposal of debt instruments HERATFEFALMER

at fair value through other comprehensive  U2a% 2 (&7 T AR iR fR

income 2,119 -
(Reversal) recognition of impairment loss on &+ A8 2 & A FEA

debt instruments at fair value through HEtzrmElmsEBIA

other comprehensive income included in BB E538 (B [E]) FERR

profit or loss (1,775) 3,530

Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEHMEERAFES)
for the year 429 (34,168)

Total comprehensive (expense) income AARIRRENAFERH
for the year attributable to owners of the (AW A B

Company (212,720) 29,404
Total comprehensive (expense) income AARIRREMLEE

attributable to owners of the Company: (AU ABE

- from continuing operations - RERBBLEEL (207,012) 63,123

~ from discontinued operation - REBRIEEEER (5,708) (33,719)

Total comprehensive (expense) income ARERREERNFEE2E
for the year attributable to owners of the (AW ABEE

Company (212,720) 29,404
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#=751)
(Loss) earnings per share B (E18) &R
From continuing and discontinued REFELCEEBRELILE
operations KRR 14
- Basic -ERK (2.47) 1.50
- Diluted - e (2.47) 1.37
From continuing operations B FHEE ST 14
- Basic -EK (2.54) 1.39
= Diluted e b1 (2.54) 1.27

h—.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

At 31 March 2024 7202443 H31H

2024 2023
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FBT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N L] 15 4,669 4,728
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,634 1,228
Investment properties B 17 1,250,443 1,337,441
Investment in a joint venture "E—HEE QA 255 113
Loans receivable JEME R 18 13,639 13,664
Financial assets at fair value through BERAFEFABRZER
profit or loss BE 23 6,264 48,930
Debt instruments at fair value through BAFEFAEBEEKE
other comprehensive income ZEBIA 19 100 471
Debt instrument at amortised cost R AT EZER T A 20 22,576 22,576
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary Bl —ERRENBAGERE 33(f) 30,000 =
Deferred tax assets BERTEEE 29 328 8,975
1,333,908 1,438,126
Current assets MEAE
Properties held for development for sale BIELERRME 21 2,520,754 3,307,920
Properties held for sale FEHEWE 1,065,891 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H Y RIE 22 33,567 48,132
Prepaid income tax TEHFTEH 17 = 25,424
Loans receivable FEWE R 18 17,384 38,586
Amount due from a joint venture FEW—ME & A RIIE 1,850 1,921
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABEZE/M
profit or loss BE 23 104,553 39,418
Debt instruments at fair value through BRAFES AR MEEKE
other comprehensive income ZERTA 19 = 624
Time deposits over three months BBR=EAMNTERFR 24 31,183 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERFCEEY 24 299,717 354,002
4,074,899 3,816,027
Assets classified as held for sale PHEARELEZEE
- investment properties -REME 17 = 370,114
4,074,899 4,186,141
Current liabilities mEE &
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ER RIE 25 93,750 85,266
Deposit received for disposal of assets BRSEARBIELECEE
classified as held for sale R& 17 = 226,802
Tax payable FES B8 19,511 10,112
Secured bank borrowings BERFRITIEER 27 1,161,664 544,578
Lease liabilities HERE 28 2,335 1,162
1,277,260 867,920
Net current assets mBEEFE 2,797,639 3,318,221

Total assets less current liabilities

BEEMBRTBARE 4,131,547 4:756;347
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MR R

At 31 March 2024 7202453 H31H

2024 2023
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FBT FHT
Non-current liabilities EMBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EREFRIEEE 29 7,936 33,793
Convertible notes AR 26 167,954 159,949
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEER 27 905,070 1,327,341
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 3,391 98
1,084,351 1,521,181
3,047,196 3,235,166
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital %N 30 1,031 21,259
Reserves =] 3,046,165 3,173,283
Amount recognised in other B E At 2 T W am Ke iE IR
comprehensive income and REEIBEREZEE
accumulated in equity relating to BEAFIE
assets classified as held for sale - 40,624
3,047,196 3,235,166
The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 232 were approved ZEEEN2024F6 A2THILERRIERKSE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2024 and are 1032 22B Z G MBIHE - YR TIES
signed on its behalf by: REEF:
Lai Law Kau Lui Yuk Chu
FEEIR =Rk
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Eizi2024¢3ﬂ JN1RILFE

Property
revaluation
Convertiole Investment  reserve for - Accumuated
Share Share  note equity Capital  Contrbuted ~ Exchange  revaluation assets held profits
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve for sale (losses) Total
HELEZ
TEREE & mE - REEA
Bx BROEE EaRE  RAEE  S0RR  ERRE  ERRE  EREE (B8 &8
HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKSO000 - HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Thr TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEn
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
(&) () (KizEii)
At1 Aprl 2022 H2022F4A18 9315 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 438,102 32,213 1,622 40,624 39,561 3,015,187
Exchange difierences arising on HEREERIBRE
ranglation of financial statements of ~ ZEHEE
foreign operations - - - - - (36,244) - - - (36,244)
Change In air vlue of debt BATEHAEM2EN
instruments at fair value through HZERTAIATE
other comprehensive income 29 - - - - - - (1,454) - - (1,454)
Impairment loss on debt instruments st ABBZ ZRATFETA
at far value through other A2 EbE s B
comprehensive income included i~ TEZREFE
profit or loss - - - - - - 3,530 - - 3530
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - - - = - 83572 B35T2
Total comprehensive (expense) KEE2AEDRA
income for the year Eek | - - - - - (36,244) 2,076 - 63,572 29,404
Recognition of equity component of ~ BRAAREE 2R
convertible note (note 26) R (i 526) - - 56878 = = = = = - 56878
Deferred tax liabiity on recogniion of ~ BRTARZE 2B
equity component of convertible AR ELREAR
note (note 26) (Rzo6) = = (9,385) = = = = = = (9,385
Issue of shares upon placing REREARH
fnote 30() (H£300) 9% 5124 - - - - - - - 518
lssue of shares upon conversion of AR EFEELT
convertible notes (note 30(i) Tt (B330() 4008 159756  (93151) = = = = = - 70613

Deferred tax liability released upon

RATARRERER

conversion of convertible notes EEsEaE

(note 26) (Hizko6) = - 13280 = = = = = - 13289
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H 21259 2,531,694 47,493 53,194 438,102 (4,031) 3,698 40,624 103,133 3,235,166
Exchange difierences arising on HEREERHBRE

tranglation of financial statements of ~ ZEH 2

foreign operafions - - - - - 1,078 - - - 1,078
Change In air vlue of debt BATEHAEM2EN

instruments at fair value through uﬁZEf%IEZ TE

other comprehensive income £8 - - - - - - (993) - - (993)
Release on disposal of debt HERATEH AL

instruments at far value through 2ENEBRIAR

other comprehensive income i - - - - - - 2119 - - 2119
Reversal of impaiment loss on debt BB AERZ

instruments at fair value through BATE AL

other comprehensive income 2ENEBRIAZ

included i proft orloss HEEE = - - - - - () - - (L)
Loss for the year AEEER - - . S - - - - (13149 (13149)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

Property
revaluation
Convertiole Investment  reserve for  Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation  assets held profits
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve for sale (losses) Total
HELES
HREE & ESEE il
kx  ROEE BEEE  RAEE  SARR  ERBE  ERREE  ERER (BB a%
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§'000
Tén TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TR TEn
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
() (i) s
Total comprehensive income FERRERARR)
(expense) for the year 24 - - - - - 1,078 (649) - (213,149)  (212,720)
Reduction of share capital upon uerisyd vt
capltal reorganisation (note 30(il) ~ (HF3¥30) (20,728) = S - 078 = = = = =
Issue of shares upon placing REREARG
(note 30(v) Eip) 500 24,250 - - - - - - - 24,750
Release of property revaluation HENERRIRER
reserve pon disposal of the Gl
properties - - - - - - - (40,624) 40,624 -
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3F31A 1,031 2,555,944 47,493 53194 458,830 (2,953) 3,049 - (69,392 3,047,196
Notes: PtsE -

(i)

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction of
share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September 2005 and can be applied
in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction
of share capital of the Company. The balance may be utilised by the directors in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate
the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain leasehold properties and land use rights of the Group when these leasehold
properties and land use rights were transferred to investment properties. These
investment properties were reclassified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 and
disposed during the year ended 31 March 2024, accordingly the property revaluation
reserve was released to accumulated losses. Details are set out in note 11.

(i)

AEBEZBAFBRERARFN2004F3A R
200559 A BB AR AP EE A 2 HE AR - AT AS 2R
DIRTRR

REB 2 BA BB RA D TR AE A E
EZENR - ERURBAARERAAIRAE
BRZEDTIMERZAER  BEBREHEA
REIZBFTER -

REBrMESEHERR DAY ER L
FAHEEZREMER A£EETHAYD
EEHI 2R TR - 0202363 A
318 - ZEREVECET B ABIELE
ME  YEREE2024F3A31BILFEEAH
& MMESERER REEMG o FER
G E R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

sale, net

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Operating activities KEEE
(Loss) profit before taxation Bial (B8 & (162,339) 65,972
Adjustments for: P -
Bank and other interest income HRIT R E AT S UA (6,701) (2,676)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEIRREZITE
equipment 700 806
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEZTE 2,470 2,542
Dividend income from investments BEZRBWA (1,373) (2,598)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WEREREZ
equipment Iz (10) =
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE 2 W
properties (66,611) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZREREE - 3,207
Interest expense B 5 55,074 22,985
Interest income from debt instruments REHEK AT EZEB
at amortised cost TRZHBHA (1,884) (1,718)
Interest income from debt instruments BATFEF AHMEEK
at fair value through other w((RAFEFAEMS
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) i 2EBITAZ
FLEWA - (64)
Interest income from loan financing TEHERME 2 FSWEA (1,930) (3,289)
Loss on changes in fair value of BAFEGFABR(ERATF
financial assets at fair value through Bt ABE Dz &@E
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) EZATEEZYEE 4,187 9,923
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of REMEZ AT EE
investment properties &5 18 () 9,563 (87,831)
Loss on revaluation of intangible mILAE - EMEE
assets - 5,847
Loss on write-off of property, plant WEEME - BEREHEZ
and equipment [E5i8 38 =
Release on disposal of debt HERAFETARM
instruments at FVTOCI EEWE EBTAR
AR IR 2,119 -
Reversal of written-off of other payable P8 [0 HL Ath B A5 SR 2 8 = (1,732
(Reversal) recognition of impairment (BE)EREZE AT EF AR
loss on debt instruments at FVTOCI thEmKRcEB IR
Z R EEER (1,775) 3,530
(Reversal) recognition of impairment (BRDEREBERZ
loss on loans receivable, net REEE - FRE (473) 8,442
Share of result of a joint venture DE—EEERRIEE (142) (113)
Written-down (write-back) on BIEL S &RV E 2 MHE
properties held for development for (BE) - F58

102,937 (40,394)
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mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

2024 2023
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FBT FHET
Operating cash flows before movements in A&t &8 & & & B 5 2 (&4
working capital REmnE (66,150) (17,161)
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at ~ EAFEFABZZ SHEE
FVTPL (& )R (47,012) 16,347
Increase in properties held for development #5 {F 5 35 & ) £ 12 41
for sale (313,646) (191,227)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & E A FEMGRIE R 37,249 70,413
Decrease in loans receivable FE B SRR 21,700 31,771
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B 5 RHEMERKIE
payables EACE ) 8,484 (3,722)
Cash used in operations AREEZRE (859,375) (93,579)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBREH (452) (561)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REIEBEFNEH = 100
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) BEftREAREMBE(HE])
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid EREHRTEEMEED (32,559) (27,062)
Dividend received from financial assets at KB IZ A FET ABHE 2
FVTPL TREEZEHRE 1,373 2,598
Interest received from loan financing REEFRBE 2 F WA 2,028 3,352
Net cash used in operating activities AREEEB RS F58 (388,985) (115,152)
Investing activities REES
Proceeds from/deposit received for PEARBELEZEEZ
disposal of assets classified as held for FTSsIE/BWmZiES
sale 202,426 224,253
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYE B RIEA
properties 75,323 68,150
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of BRAFEGFABREZ
financial assets at FVTPL CRMEEZLE FH
FiS IR 18,857 604,403
Interest received =L EIESS 9,297 5,170
Repayment from (advance to) a joint —EEERRER
venture GiESSENES) 71 (1,921)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment FR5 38 10 -
Placement of time deposits over three BEAZEAUENEEEFER
months (31,522) -
Advance to a fellow subsidiary AN —ERRNE AR (30,000) =
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BEREE
equipment (681) (562)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HERFEEEZMEHRIE
assets - 401
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BARAFEFABRZ
SRAE - (574,306)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of BRUENEBARBARKRE
investment properties through YRS R L FE
acquisition of subsidiaries 31 - (129,353)
Addition of intangible assets A EEIG N - (2,839)
Net cash from investing activities REREFB 2HEFHE 243,781 193,396
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, £ 20243 A31 B I FE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT F&T
Financing activities MEED
Bank borrowings raised EERITIEER 306,798 564,298
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon Ao & 1TRID TS IR F 5
placing 24,750 59,180
Interest paid EAAE (115,085) (74,183)
Repayment of bank borrowings BIEBIRITIEE (111,256) (346,759)
Repayment of lease liabilities EREEARE (2,410) (2,570)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERTHER (500) (8,179
Net cash from financing activities RERMEEB2HSFE 102,297 191,787
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash & RIMEEEY 2 (i)
equivalents 18105 48 (42,907) 270,031
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F# 2R & MIREFEY
the year 354,002 82,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNPEFE R B) > & (11,378) 1,872
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZAGRACEEY -
of the year, represented by bank ERITHEB LIRS

balances and cash 299,717 354,002
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Company is a subsidiary of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”), an
exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed
on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.
The Group also operated in the PRC which was discontinued in prior
year (see note 11).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual periods beginning on 1 April 2023 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
International Tax Reform
= Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” is amended to
replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies
the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. ERFIIRKETREBVMERELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) A& BMEREED]D (&)
(Continued)

BREMENRERZRIETE R
BREER

RSB EIEAT A EME R RE
M BT BT RS AR

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets BB RE £ REEHEBENT
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its %105}?&%%@% HEENAIHNE

Associate or Joint Venture' RIE8H (B EHEIRA

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BB TS RE &R EREETPHEE
Leaseback? £16 (B374) afe

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEEENE1H BEESEARDR
Current or Non-current and &3] ERBULEER
related amendments to Hong B 5552020 )
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Z BB

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

BEGHERER

AR IETE

Covenants? (fE3TA) BE
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements? EHOHERNEIRE  HERRELH
HKFRS 7 BREBHREER
E7% (BITA)
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® EHOHAERE215E S A s
CHES

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. { RETEHIZEMABFEHRBE
e

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 20241 A1 Bz &R 2 FE AR
R o

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 3 H2025F1 A1 k2 &R 2 FE 1R

ER o

BTGB ERM RS LN
ARBEEMR  BAMEEMRE
RIEBBRELEINNAER KD
BHERAM MR EREATE -

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to HKAS 1
“Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)”

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on
the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date which are conditional on the compliance with covenants, the
requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been modified
by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022 Amendments specify that
only covenants with which an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

R REET BB BRESE
A(TEBMHHREZER D) &)

BREMENRERZRIETERIBE
& EQ ()
EBETE 5/%15/5{5,:1'74%‘7’%’,@\/:’?
BBRBBIFTEUREELTEE
#(20204F) Z 15T 1 (/. 2020?/@‘5]
) REBEEREFNSET A7
ZEHIF R B BB ([20225F 1557 7))
ZE20205F ERT At ATl B W A 5
BED+ZEAZEHRFEEFEMH
BB REINES - U EESBERR
BIERE - Heb -

. EEWERBEZ R ER S Y
FHEEE FREFERES
ZERIARBERRE BEEZ
ERGEEEEBERRERE
BETERIERRIERIA
2 EFTAR  WWEKER
TTeXBRaBEIBERRPK
#mug °

. AR AES EARENIERE
BEEENREHREFEIE
Ao BBRME  ZFBIILER
DETEZINEEESE L
TE12BANBEEBEIFE -

HHREAHBREHEEEL+=M@A
WEFBETETRAEHIEE R
2020$1 IR S| AR TE B #2022F
BRI A{EDR ° 2022F (ER] A TERA R A
fﬁﬁﬁf\i&iﬁﬁ RIS Z ATE TR
EHEYETRBNRESAHBRENE
BEEEEL Lt ZM@ANER - RaEEA
REHBETHNEETEELY
THRZENEERBERE ;EETIT
Eo

115



116 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to HKAS 1
“Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)”
(Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments
for that period.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s right to defer settlement for
borrowings of HK$905,070,000 is subject to compliance with certain
financial ratios within 12 months from the reporting date. Such
borrowings were classified as non-current as the Group met such ratios
at 31 March 2024. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments,
such borrowings will still be classified as non-current as the covenants
which the Group is required to comply with only after the reporting
period do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
date and such borrowing will still be classified as non-current.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values
or revalued amounts, at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Group.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER (8)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) HEBREGE)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in investment properties section.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control-of the distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. IR %‘—ii?/—\ﬁﬁ%iﬁéégiﬁﬁijt%%
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER (&
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Qutput method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. When
a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

REGREMBRREERERET

HREF (&)
32 EXREFHBEENE
I (4E)

MEIEGREMBHRERME - A%
BN EBZBEERABEDRR
ERRZBATEXRBERALE
Z2YEHEENET)  MRARK
Fisx AR ERA T IgE R E - B
FEZ R 2 E R BIREAE
RUEERT - BIBRAR 5 A8
ZHITER - IELAELEZR
(W) R E A 2 E S R
A TREFEERE

EEHA

HUE  RRUAERTBRE
R ER IR IR A BEE S i
EZRERBEEERELZEE
KA - BEFAZEEEZRA
BEEAWEERE LA ERER
BRHERIL

A EEDFEE A £ Ak A i
SRR HREENTFRER
FEA—RER - FHE—RER
MERLE - ERFERENEE
MHZAE BEBENRERE
PRI R B MmN A E AR
AR BERARRNE -

FrA B BB R AR E L B
RIBRFER o

1EIEE R

RIKIEFHK A
mREHRFRKEN,BEREE
ZRREREE RN AES
FHEMER Z R RERREH
R MAEETE HREERRH
% o



BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. IR %‘—ii?/—\ﬁﬁ%iﬁéégiﬁﬁijt%%
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER (&
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)
Employee benefits (Continued) 1E1EE 7 (48)
Short-term employee benefits FHIE S5 F)

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable (loss)/profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERE R (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)
Taxation (Continued) HIE ()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxation entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model and properties held for development
for sale that are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

() cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development are classified as
current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties held for development
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties
less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties held for development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERE R (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) T T A(E)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER ()
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)

Financial instruments (Continued) ThT A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CRMEEZDEREZE ()

(Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL iy BEAFEFABZHNSH
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being TREREBHEKN AT EK
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as BAFEFAEMEER
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. @A EEREATERA

Hth2ERES GRS R
BEDRATEFABRR

ATE -

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value BAFER ABZ E’J%rgﬂ
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value BERSHRERROR
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain BitE - ”THEHSZE
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest HEERBETER -
but excludes any dividend earned on the financial asset BaERN kS ER /%?
and is included in the “net loss on changes in fair value of BEFBEMANEETEE
financial assets at FVTPL” line item. et é@?ﬁﬂy\ﬁ’ﬂi fa] &

B Wit AR FER
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Film right investment is the Group’s investment in a film %?Zﬁ&%&é)ﬂ‘éﬂ‘%l
production project which entitles the Group to share HEZRIEBEEMNERE

certain percentage of income to be generated from the Zl»‘%lﬁﬁé B 1% E 7 A
related film based on the Group’s investment portion as BEEMIERE BT
specified in respective film right investment agreement WRELLG - HhEBE
but the Group has no control nor joint control over the %ﬁﬂ%@i”ﬂl?\ﬁ’\]%?ﬁ%
investment. Film right investment is classified as financial ’f’ﬁﬂiﬁlﬁﬁiﬁﬁi
asset at FVTPL. EET—H il 4 ok k(R %E )
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model (including trade and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary, loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instrument at amortised cost, time deposits over three months
and cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and lease receivables.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

REGREMBRREERERET

HREF (&)

32 EXREFHBEENE
SFT A
EREE (B

RBEER I REERNFOIAE
TTRER AN EREERE
AEBREBEEMEERBR (AR
EEEREDEXAREARBERY
B ELERNFEOSETTRER
MemEE(BEESNEME
WHIR - B — A E AN
B - R RKERRK
- BWER - BOFEFAR
thrEkRz BB TA - REH
RAFEZEBIA  BE=1E
ANEREREBREE RREEE
ETRENE - HHREES
BeERESREAHEN - UK
R {Z & R B 1146 HERR A SR O 22
) o

E2HEREREERESRERT
BEOEMFHAEMA A EED
EMmMEENEMEEEE - 8
1218 AR EEE B R (1 2(E
AHEEEBRDERAR RS
B #1218 A AT Be B A AR LY
=SB MAEREREER
He &5 - sHEDRBEAEE R
EEEBREREL - UHES
ABREREZER - BEEHRIK
HRIRE HEE RTOR BRI
IR L TR -

IR BB B E 5 e GR R
SRWFERAEHRBEER

B

MAEEMEEMS - AEEE
BREM2EAEREEBEN
EERE  RIFEERRE A
HRAR—ERZLI - AIARE
EHEREMEMEEEBRE - 7T6E
EEERZHRREREBRDR
T B MR FER AR EE L E ]
e ERBEEM -



BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
borrower or debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower or debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (i) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
the credit risk of the debt instrument mainly with reference
to external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

REGREMBRREERERET

HREF (&)

32 EXREFHBEENE
SFT A
EREE (B

RBEER I REERNFOIAE
TTRER A B EERE ()

(iv)

WK

18 BB EURH 77 BRI R
EFRREERK DAL
B (Pl o5 o5 ek 2
EAWERFE) - K&
BRIMESRMEE - £
BARBEAR (AR
WHEHR 2B E E A e iD
AR A BN O FETT
SREIITIEE) o MIHIEAK
ARLEEREIR o (B EIR
WOl fE B as A RERR ©

BHEEEE 8 R
R
BHMEEEENGERE
WPE - BOBRRXEWE
BHORNBREE)RE
HEBEKE o FHEEL
BRI 2 (R K R 2 KT
SEEE - WIRATEIEER
HE - RBEEBENG
ANLEREXNEFS S
B ABBEREENNRE
BREEERE

—HRmE - RHEEBR
BRAEEERRAHOHERE
NOmEEHREREN
AEEBHRINHAAER
ERBZHEMNEZRME
Y196 TR R E B B IR
FERFH - HREE K
B AREERBEES
BEOHReRBEREEE
B ERAFE 165 AR
AEHEEREFRHNBREDSR
E—%-



BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of loans receivable and debt instrument at amortised
cost where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the changes in the
investment revaluation reserve in relation to accumulated
loss allowance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, the liability
component of convertible notes and secured bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERE R (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) T T A(E)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible notes, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets with finite useful live to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.

RRES

MR BRREERERST

HREF (&)

3.2

EXEHBEER @)
AT AGE)
EREERKATAGE)
riIrEReBaE
EARRE R - HXiéﬁZ
E‘JHHE‘J' REEARILER S
BfE- ,%%JJ:TJQM\Z%HQE\EZEE
EERDNRENREZZER
BT R

X  BERRK
EBlfE
RBEHR  AEERHED
¥ BERRBAREREEE
ZIREE  AEERE A EMD
SFBTRREEERTRERSE -
WA ERZERRIFE - BhE
EHEEZATREOSENETE
REBEME) -

BUREEE

ME - BELRBAREREE
EE B AT U [ RE R M Y #E AT
at o ARG EHE R A E R AT IR
Ce%E  AIXAEESMAZEE
MEBRSELEUHNITKREOS
B

RRESEXBETRERNR - &7
NETAEM - D RCER
B BREIEESRAS MRS
EEBEM - BRI BESELAAY
NEZEEM—BNDEER
BNREELET - RAIEEM
BB cELSETHRCELS
THARTEIRESEE  BLERE
AEARCEEETRIASELE
TAERREEE -

AR EEEARFEBLERA
MiEREEzREE - FHER
BER - HERERRETHS
Freth e 2 R EEZ AR
RENHE=HREBE MRE
EE R ERESEEBMN) 2 HEG
ARBEREBARERHEIEER
B e



BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RAGESUBHRREEREARES

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EAEBERER(E)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under the standard.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment properties
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong and Singapore are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the deferred taxation on investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore, the directors of the Company have
determined that presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, during the
year ended 31 March 2023, as initiated by the municipal government,
the Group entered into a land resumption agreement with municipal
government to surrender these investment properties. Such investment
properties have been classified as assets classified as held for sale
as at 31 March 2023 and the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sales is not rebutted. However, since it is a land
resumption conducted by municipal government, the transaction is not
subject to land appreciation tax.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to perform valuation
of the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is disclosed in note 17.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale and properties held for sales,
which are situated in Hong Kong and amounted to HK$2,520,754,000
(2023: HK$3,307,920,000) and HK$1,065,891,000 (2023: nil),
respectively, as at 31 March 2024, with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable
value. The estimates of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale are determined based
on estimated selling prices less estimated costs to completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale of these properties,
if applicable. The selling prices are estimated by reference to the
market prices of similar properties in prevailing market environment
with adjustments to reflect different locations or conditions for
those properties. The costs to completion of the properties under
development for sale are estimated by reference to the development
budget, actual development cost of similar completed properties with
adjustments based on current market data. Actual realised amount
may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the
net realisable value of the properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-
down previously recognised may be required.
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REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations represents the aggregate of
rental income and building management from property investment and
interest income from loan financing during the year. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue is as follows:

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed rate for
services provided on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in
the amount to which the Group has a right to issue the invoice and
that corresponds directly with the value to the customers of Group’s
performance completed. The Group acts as principal and is primarily
responsible for providing the building management services to the
property owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefit provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue over time and all related building management
costs as its cost of services. The Group elected to apply the practical
expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the
scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from contracts with customers
from continuing operations for the year ended 31 March 2024
amounted to HK$12,000 (2023: nil).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZEEH
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being the RERIERAPERRAEMES - 2
chief operating decision maker (“CODM?), for the purposes of resource WEARE T ELEARRE(EEL
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types ERAREDERITREBHEZER &
of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the basis of PFREMRNSIRBGRME 2B - It
organisation, whereby the management has chosen to organise the Mtz B2 EEEEZLR
Group around differences in products and services. BRASEERRREZEZE -
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 RIEE BN G HREERERIEL D
“Operating Segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property Bl AEBEEREWROPER (@)
development, (c) investment in securities and others and (d) loan MERE  OWEERR - OBHFLEE
financing. HITE R (EREE
Operation in the PRC, including the property investment, investment in THEMER  BEVERE  FF
securities and others and loan financing were classified as discontinued REMBERERME  RENFE
operation in the prior year. The segment information reported does WAOBAREBRIEKEER - REND
not include any amounts for the discontinued operation, which are HEETRIEERIEEEEBHEM
described in more detail in note 11. DR M1 ET T B AN
Segment revenue and results DREEBERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from RRAFBEEEBREBOEIN
continuing operations by reportable segments: REBZEEBEREENT -
For the year ended 31 March 2024 B2 2024F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Consolidated
EER
MERE MERR HEthiRE BXmE ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T THER TART TAT
(Note) (Note)
(PffzE) (Fff=E)
Segment revenue SEEEE
External INER 28,763 - - 1,930 30,693
Segment (loss) profit SE(BE)ER (23,254) (104,880) (4,600) 190 (132,544)
Other losses HinEE (9,241)
Other expenses Hitfx (1,175)
Finance costs BEAKA (65,074)
Other income HigA 8,101
Share of result of a joint venture AE—HEEAREE 142
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARRY (15,528)
Loss before taxation from continuing IR B B L L £ K B AT
operations BB (205,319)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZSEEHE
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEEBREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 2023F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Consolidated
EHER
MERE MEER HiniR g EXEE g4
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TR THT TR TR
Segment revenue NEREXE
External AR 24,408 - - 2,786 27,194
Segment profit (loss) AR (ER) 82,022 37,105 (26,505) (9,801) 82,821
Other gains Hipla 1,400
Other expenses Hinfi (303)
Finance costs BMEKAK (22,985)
Other income HibgA 8,353
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEEAREE 113
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIRY (12,087)

Profit before taxation from continuing 7 B # 48 48 4 £ 1R B AT

operations B 57,321

Note: Rental income generated from properties held for development for sale was MisE : ARELEREMEEEZHSRAR
included in the property investment segment. BREEYEREDER -

Segment (loss) profit represents the result from continuing operations PSR &ZM S EREBELE
of each segment without allocation of other gains and losses, other ¥ REE  BETRASRAEMKE
expenses, finance costs, other income, shares of result of a joint LEE HEtHAY - BERA - Hib
venture and unallocated corporate expenses. There are asymmetrical WA - DIE—HEERRIEERED
allocations to operating segments because the Group allocates all fair BEARIAY - KEDHEEFETEE
value changes of financial assets at FVTPL to segment of investment in DB DAEAARNEESEABEREAT
securities and others without allocating relevant financial instruments to B ABRZEeMEEZ A TESE
those segment assets. This is the measure to the Group’s CODM for EERHFREMBES T - WARDEAE
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. BemIAZZEDHEEAE - LALE

BRAKEZEIBEEREE R
BRDBERRATEZ2E -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by EER/)EINMAEB2EERARE
reportable segments: AR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Segment assets DEEE
Continuing operations FRBAC TS
Property investment VXA 1,261,392 1,410,317
Property development bE:3 3,599,366 3,319,725
Investment in securities and others BHERHEMBE 119,797 76,736
Loan financing EX@EE 70,222 52,589
Total segment assets DIEEELRE 5,050,777 4,859,367
Assets relating to discontinued operation ERIEREEFEE = 370,114
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL EHEIRAFERTA
BacemEE 20,961 36,240
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 5,634 1,228
Time deposits over three months BE=EA M EBRFER 31,183 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 299,717 354,002
Unallocated corporate assets B EEE 535 3,316
Consolidated assets REEE 5,408,807 5,624,267
Segment liabilities PEEE
Continuing operations FFER S ET
Property investment MERE 21,871 253,178
Property development MEERE 72,313 50,681
Investment in securities and others BHEREMEE 98 103
Loan financing BEXpE 306 553
Total segment liabilities NEBEERE 94,588 304,515
Secured bank borrowings IR ITEE 2,066,734 1,871,919
Convertible notes AT AR SRR 167,954 159,949
Lease liabilities HEaRE 5,726 1,260
Unallocated corporate liabilities molhEAE 26,609 51,458
Consolidated liabilities FeBfE 2,361,611 2,389,101

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

AOBRREZRRDERZERSD

resources between segments: BEmE -

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments .

other than assets relating to discontinued operation, unallocated
financial assets at FVTPL, right-of-use assets, time deposits over
three months, cash and cash equivalents and other assets.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments .

other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible notes, lease liabilities and other liabilities.

ERAVEHFABGZZEHE
E-ERAgEE #8=EAN
EHES  RekBReEBUR
HMEESN  MAEEEC AR

rERE2®mOR -

BABMRITESR - TRRER
BEHY HEAGMEMERE
o FIBRBESRERERE

WA -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)
Other segment information HibpEEHR

EEERERECLEERTEN SRR

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment

assets from continuing operations: wHDBREECERE
For the year ended 31 March 2024 B Z2024F 3531 HILFE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment ~ development  and others financing  Unallocated Total
#ER
NERE NERR HitRE ENRE BAE 8%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr Fhr T TR TEn TiEn
Capital additions ERRE - - = = 7,557 7,557
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BEREEZ
equipment bk 6 416 = = 278 700
Loss on changes in fair value of RENEIATEEY
investment properties Bi 9,563 = = = - 9,563
Write-down on properties held for BELERRNEY
development for sale, net WiE 38 = 102,937 = = - 102,937
Reversal of impairment loss on loans RERKERZ
recelvable, net HEEE 78 = = o 473 = 473
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEABRL
financial assets at FVTPL SBEEZATEEY
BEFE S = 4,391 = = 4,391
Reversal of impairment loss on debt BEREATEH AL E
instruments at FVTOCI, net Ek#zBEIAZA
BEE 58 = = 1,775 = = 1,775
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)

Other segment information (Continued) Hih 2 EE R (E)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 2023F3H31HILFE

Investment
Property Property i securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Unallocated Total
Erk
NEEE NRER EftRE EFRE BNl 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TARL TAR TAR TAR

Capital additions BERE 346,547 437 2,839 - 125 349,948
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERZELZ
equipment & 8 421 = = 325 754
Gain on changes in fair value of RENEIATEEE
investment properties 6= 78,967 - - - - 78,967
Write-back on properties held for BIENERRNEL
development for sale, net BO3E = 40,394 = = = 40,394
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets ~ EFAEZ EfEER - - 5,847 = = 5,847
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREAELRESSE - = 3,207 = = 3207
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net  [EWE 2 FiEEE -
T8 - - - 8,663 - 8,663
Impairment loss on debt instruments at -~ AT EF AL 2E
FVTOCI, net Wik BRI ZHE
BB 58 - - 3,530 - - 3,530
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEI AR
financial assets at FVTPL tRHEEZATEED

EiB3E = = 4,531 = = 4531
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZSEEHE

Geographical information b 15 & K

The Group’s continuing operations are located in Hong Kong (place of AEEREFBEEEB 2 EEMR
domicile) and Singapore. BB (F1Eih) RET I -

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of its REBEREIREP 2 EXBIREER
customers for segments and information about its non-current assets P RIE S 5 H R IR & BE 2 PR s &
(excluding those related to discontinued operation and deferred tax DZIERBEE(TEFEED L LELE
assets and financial instruments) by geographical locations of the EBHEENREEREEERSRT
assets are detailed below: B)ERNT

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIREFZ
EER FREBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T FET FHT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 75 (FfEH) 29,365 24,492 1,187,158 1,206,469
Singapore s 1,328 2,702 73,843 137,041
30,693 27,194 1,261,001 1,343,510
Information about major customers FEEFZER
No revenue from customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue MEETEASBEVRERBBRE XS
of the Group for both years. 10% A EZRF »
OTHER INCOME 7. HflgA
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Continuing operations SELE R
Bank and other interest income RITREAMF B UA 6,067 3,037
Dividend income from investments REJEZRBWA 1,373 2,598
Services charge AR 75 % B 414 =
Government grants (Note) BT e B (B 3) - 728
Written-off of other payable A A 32 i 8E - 1,732
Others HAh 247 258
8,101 8,353
Note: The Group recognised government grants of HK$728,000 in respect of Covid- M3k : BZE2023F3A31BILEFE @ REEH
19-related subsidies, which are related to Employment Support Scheme EBBFER2019E MBS HRIRHAR
provided by the Hong Kong Government for the year ended 31 March 2023. BMEZEEIE @A RER T 728,000
BITHBT B ©
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EZRkEEZHS
(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) EFEEEHMeZER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company were as KABESEWEEHIIOT -
follows:
Executive directors (Note i) Independent non-executive directors (Note ii)
HrEs (W) BUFHOES (M)
Kwong
Jimmy Wu Koon Yin
LailawKau ~ CheungTim  LuiYuk Chu KanKaHon  LauSinMing Welly Total
RER BRA % BES B=6 REE a%

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TERL ThER TER TR T TERL TR

Year ended 31 March 2024 HE04E38318

i34
Fees EEZ0ES = = = 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments Efbie
- Salaries and other benefits -G REMER 480 600 5,580 = = = 6,660
~ Contrioutions to retrement - RIVEAHEIER
benefits schemes 18 - - - - - 18
Totaldirectors' emoluments RSk 498 600 5,580 155 155 15 7,143

Year ended 31 March 2023 BZ2023F38318

LEE
Fees EEpe - - - 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other bengfits -HERAMER 480 600 3643 = = = 4723
~Contriutions to retrement - RIVEAEEIER
benefts schemes 18 - 8 - - - 26
Total directors’ emoluments ESHeLE 498 600 3,651 155 155 155 5214
Notes: P 3E
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their [0] LB RZATESHERAES
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BRRRBRAEEEREHZ
Company and the Group. fR# °
(ii) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above (ii) FMBRZ B NITEENS

were for their services as directors of the Company. RBEEERARARAES 2R -




8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.

SILEEERAT 2023/2024 F1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b)

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, £ 20243 A31 B I FE

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2023:
one) director whose emoluments was included above for both
years. The emoluments of the remaining four (2023: four) highest
paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows:

ESRES 2T (B

(b)

FREEMEER
rEELEESHEALTBE—
#(2023%F : —R)EE - BERN
MEFEZHMEEBEELX
A o HERPT A (20234 - [04E)
TIESE K2 ATHIIN
T

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FiHET

Salaries and other benefits e RHEMER 6,701 9,568
Contributions to retirement benefits 3R IREFI 5T 7k

schemes 47 54

6,748 9,622

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZMEN T TIIEE :

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

Z%1,000,000% 7T

1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T
5,500,001 7T 26,000,000/ 7T

2024 2023
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

EEAH EE A
- 1

2 2

1 _

1 _

]

4 4

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other four (2023: four) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both years,
no director waived or agree to waive any emoluments.

RREFEE - AEBRE M
& TEEREMIOE (20235 :
mE)BEmMez AL fEAN
ABAE AR L B B 2 52 Eh sk 2k
KIS 2 FE o 1o - RRREER
M REEEREXRENER
A% o

U
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMK
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEF S 104,931 71,743
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 218 58
Effective interest expense on convertible notes A IR E1E ~ BEEF| B 17,941 6,833
123,090 78,634
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of AW REEREEZ
qualifying assets KAERM 2 £58 (68,016) (55,649)
55,074 22,985
10. TAXATION CHARGE (CREDIT) 10. HIEFAX (E%)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Continuing operations BEREER
The tax charge (credit) comprises: MBS (B R)B1E -
Current tax: WITRIA :
Hong Kong B 1 68
PRC withholding tax on dividend B A AR S TEIEE 8,241 -
Other jurisdiction HEMEDE 8 303
8,250 371
Overprovision in prior years: BAFEBREEE
Hong Kong B (2,003) (79)
Other jurisdiction HAbRlA (88) @7)
(2,091) (106)
Deferred tax ERERTE 7,326 (1,914)
13,485 (1,649)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

RMEFTE 2 BBMER IR EMET
JERBIEFI 2 16.5%:1 & -
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10. TAXATION CHARGE (CREDIT) (Continued) 10. HEBZ(GER) (8)

FoAt B3I 8 2 IR AR FA 2
RTBEHE -

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdiction.

Taxation charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the results
from continuing operations per the consolidated statement of profit or

RELHIAMN (HR) BREFELE
(Bt BRakAteEEaRE

loss and other comprehensive income as follows: BHEMT -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
(Loss) profit before taxation BFiaT (1) & F) (205,319) 57,321
Tax (credit) charge at the applicable rate of RERBIE16.5%
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (2023% : 16.5%)stE 2
HIAGE ) B 2 (33,878) 9,458
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FARBBMAZBIEZE
purposes (10,821) (23,598)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ NEMFF X 2 B2
purposes 9,856 11,634
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEEBBHIBEZE 25,005 8,708
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences i 3 LA B AR B3R &9 ] K 40
previously not recognised TR R = (6,665)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences REER AT E RS M= 2~
not recognised HEpE 16,985 14
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously {8 i@ KR IEEE 2
not recognised HEpE (61) (1,304)
Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture ~ —FEIA &R AR D HEEZ
HEE (23) (19
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EENEMBENEZWBRFZ
operating in other jurisdictions BEzR FE 122 195
Withholding tax paid on dividend % B TEIRL 8,241 -
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (2,091) (106)
Others Hith 150 34
Taxation charge (credit) for the year REEMEBERAZ(ER) 13,485 (1,649)
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11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022
by the Group and the municipal government, the lands and buildings
in Huzhou would be resumed by the municipal government. The
investment properties were reclassified as assets classified as held
for sale as at 31 March 2023 (see note 17). Other than the property
investment business, the management has also abandoned the
investment in securities and others and loan financing businesses in the
PRC during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, the operation
in the PRC was considered to be a discontinued operation.

As at 31 March 2023, an amount of Renminbi (“RMB”) 199,586,000
(equivalent to HK$226,802,000) has been received by the Group
as deposit received and remaining balance of consideration
RMB187,396,000 (equivalent to HK$203,692,000) has been fully
received as at year ended 31 March 2024. The legal title of the land
was transferred to municipal government on 7 February 2024.

The profit for the year from the discontinued operation is set out below.

11.

EARIEEE R

RIER S B BRI T P 20224F 10 A 5
AEEM T FEREE - LR M
B 1 ih R B W) A% R ST U E o A
2023F3A31H(RMFE17) - "WEME
BEFHBEARELEZEE - B
BYEERIN  EBEINNEE2023
FIASIALEFERIETEPEANESFR
HMBEURBERBEER - Bt -
EFBEMEBHEARADKRIELE S
7‘% °

M2023F3A31H  AEEBDWEA
R ([ AR® 1)199,586,0007T (& K
226,802,000/ 7T) fE R B WRE - Rt
BE#EE ARK187,396,0007T (HHE R
203,692,000/ 7T) B A B 2£2024F 3 A
31HIEFEREHWE - ZLHHEE
FrA#ER2024F2 A7 BB EBT -

KECRIEGZEBHENEIIRNT
# o

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Revenue (Note) EEXEGED)
Rental income HEaBA = 4,602
Management fee income EEBRA = 10,807
Interest income from loan financing REERRME ZFBUA = 503
- 15,912
Other income A 2,518 1,472
Other expense, gains and losses EMAL - W kEE 41,616 (256)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,358) (12,170)
Gain on changes in fair value of investment &Y% 2 A FEZFH WS
properties - 8,864
Net gain (loss) on changes in fair value of CRBEZ ATFEZE K
financial assets (E518) F58 204 (5,392)
Reversal of impairment loss on loan FEWE RURERE 2B Y
receivable - 221
Profit before taxation PR AT & T 42,980 8,651
Taxation charge ER X (37,325) (4,049)
Profit for the year REEZRAF 5,655 4,602

Note:  Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the scope of
HKFRS 15 and the revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended
31 March 2023 amounted to HK$10,807,000.

it EERARKREERBEZFSWAL
FENBEMBRELENFE16 KB
BN MARAERFAKNN WAREE
202343 A 31H IE ¥ & £10,807,0007%

JT ©
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DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11. BERLKEEL(E)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Profit for the year from discontinued REERE DR IS E X RF
operation has been arrived at after BB GTA) ¢
charging (crediting):
Staff costs, including retirement benefits BIA - BIERRER A
costs 288 1,942
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RS 54 255
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZITE
equipment - 52
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYE RS (66,611) =
Loss on write-off of property, plant and MEEME - BE MR EEE
equipment 38 -
Net exchange gain & H a5 5 - (256)
Bank and other interest income RITRE A F 2 WA (2,518) (1,421)

During the year, the operation in the PRC contributed a net cash
outflow from operating activities of approximately HK$43,100,000
(2023: HK$38,200,000) and a net cash inflow from investing activities
of approximately HK$174,100,000 (2023: HK$253,000,000) to the
Group.

RAFE PREBERMEEEHR
&7 F B 443,100,000 7T (2023
4 : 38,200,000/ 7m) ' HEEHH
LR ABEHI174,100,000% 7T (2023
£ : 253,000,000 7T) FALEE -

U

1158
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12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12, RNEE(EEB)BEF
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations BHEREXER

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at AN (E518) BB GTA) -
after charging (crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) ZE2WE (Hi5E8(a) 7,143 5214
Other staff costs, including retirement HaB T &R - 2ERKEF

benefits costs AR 32,787 22,773
Total staff costs (including directors’ BIKAEE(BEESHE)

emoluments) 39,930 27,987
Auditors’ remuneration ZER NS

— audit services - B 1,700 1,837

- non-audit services - FERT 57 22
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERBBIINE

equipment 700 754
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAEEEZTE 2,470 2,542
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB REE WG

equipment (10) -
Net exchange loss (gain) b 518 (M) 38R 10,078 (1,409)

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

No dividends were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 March HE2024F K2023F3A31HILEE
2024 and 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of BREZNHEZRE  BREHRE
the reporting period. BEEBEMRE -

h—.
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For continuing operations
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, £ 20243 A31 B I FE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

14.

BR (BB AT

RS HSE R
FARREMEREBERE LR
SREAREEERF (EE) HRENLT
ERE -

161

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT F&T
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to AR RIRREIHFE
owners of the Company (&518) & F (213,149) 63,572
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued B KRB BRI EER
operation BFEERH (5,655) (4,602)
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic MREFELEER
(loss) earnings per share from continuing FIRER(EB)&ZF
operations mE 2 (BB &F (218,804) 58,970
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBTTRROTE
Interest on convertible notes ARRER ZFE
(net of income tax) ($0BRFETIS ) - 1,894
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of diluted MRERFELEER
(loss) earnings per share from continuing BREE (E18) BT
operations s 2 (B8 &F (218,804) 60,864
Number of shares
RHER
000 000
F +
(Restated)
(& E7))
Weighted average number of ordinary shares s &I E A (E18) & F
for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per s 2 hniEF
share BRI BB 86,162 42,344
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBTTRROTE
Convertible notes AR 1R - 5,402
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st &A% 858 (J518) & F
for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings per 5 2 JI#EF
share TR B 86,162 47,746

U
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14.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

14.

BR (5B BF (&)

HRGHEREXERRCRIEREER
ARABBRREGEREFELERER
IFRERB 2 BRERREE (BB &
MIMBIBEATERGE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) i & EA (E518) 2 7
earnings per share &2 (E18) & F (213,149) 63,572
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: wEErTTERNTE
Interest on convertible notes (net of income AT R 2 A 8
tax) (B TR FR) - 1,894
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of diluted (loss) &t & B #5# (8518) 2 7
earnings per share ms 2 (&8 &F (213,149) 65,466

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is HK6.56
cents per share (2023: HK10.87 cents per share) and diluted earnings
per share for the discontinued operation is HK6.56 cents per share
(2023: HK9.64 cents per share), based on the profit for the year from
the discontinued operation of HK$5,655,000 (2023: HK$4,602,000)
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share for both years have been
adjusted for the consolidation of shares on 19 July 2023 as disclosed
in note 30 (jii).

The computation of restated diluted (loss) earnings per share for the
year end 31 March 2024 and 2023 does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s certain convertible notes listed in note 26 as the
exercise would result in decrease in loss per share in 2024 or increase
in earnings per share in 2023.

(55305 B8 S R EA R U
BRI S BHER -

BERIECEEBHERERRBNA
B8 6.5681L(20234F : Fi%10.87
BIRERIECEEBNTRES
B ASR6.5681U(20234F : B
9.6471l) » BBELIEEEEHHAE
FERF B5,655,000/ 7T (20234 :
4,602,000/ 7T) * AR EXEEHSEE
REAMBESRFNDE o

FENBT FES0(i) FT I FE - R AR ET
HEREAREE (BB R ER
DEFHEE R #2023F7 A 198 B A%
DEFBERETHE -

HZE2024F %2023F3A31HILEFE
WEREEYEE (BB BANNTE
W AR R BT E AL sE 265 5
HRATERER - EAITHEBERN
2024 F R BB D R 2023F ik
AT o
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15. % MEKRE

Furniture,
Owned fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
A -
BEW¥E HERRE RE Pk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET
COST R
At 1 April 2022 R2022F481H 3,650 4,166 2,727 10,543
Exchange adjustments e H AR - (27) (56) (83)
Additions NE - 125 437 562
Write-off b€ - (343) = (343)
At 31 March 2023 H202343A31H 3,650 3,921 3,108 10,679
Exchange adjustments [& 5 % - @) (41) (43)
Additions NE - 43 638 681
Write-off/disposal M = (32) (1,010) (1,042)
At 31 March 2024 H202443A31H 3,650 3,930 2,695 10,275
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2022 R2022%4H1H 288 3,858 1,417 5,563
Exchange adjustments AR - 21) (54) (75)
Provided for the year NEERE 133 171 502 806
Write-off bk = (343) = (343)
At 31 March 2023 H202343A31H 421 3,665 1,865 5,951
Exchange adjustments HE 54, 38 2 - @) (39) (41)
Provided for the year NEFERE 133 112 455 700
Eliminated on write-off/disposal  #fi$8,/H & B #fi iR - (32) 972) (1,004)
At 31 March 2024 202443 A31H 554 3,743 1,309 5,606
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2024 H2024%43A31H 3,096 187 1,386 4,669
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 3,229 256 1,243 4,728

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account the residual value over the

following useful lives:

Owned properties

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

Over the lease term

3to 10 years
5 years

tREEYNE  BERREBEESEE
BEROUEHRERBUA T ZAERF

I EFE -

EEYE R0 2
R EERRE 3Z10%
aE 5%
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. EREEE

Leased
properties
HAOWE
HK$°000
FET
As at 31 March 2024 R2024%3H31H
Carrying amount BRMEE 5,634
As at 31 March 2023 7202338 31H
Carrying amount AREE 1,228
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE2024F3831HLFE
Depreciation charge mEER 2,470
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2023F3A31HLEFE
Depreciation charge eEsEMA 2,542
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Total cash outflow for leases MR SR B5E 2,628 2,628

Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FREEEL M)

6,876 -

Note:  Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 3 years (2023: 2 to 3 years)
without extension and termination option. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Mzt : ©EBEBE2024F3A31H ILFEH
RIS HFHE o

EREEEREBORRZERER
RITE -

MEFEHE > NEEOEAERIE
EITRE - RAINHEOEREEHR
733EF (20234 : 2E3%F) - ARBILEH
AR E R o THARKRE @ R1E
TETTH A o EREEH QORI R4
FAHBUEHIRE - AEERKAARMN
TEE W HETE G [FIHI AT 58 FI AT -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and industrial
units under operating leases with rentals payable monthly, quarterly
or semi-annually. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1
to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights to extend the
lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

17.

REM=

AEERBLCEHELASEEE
BMEMTEEN MENHEESAS
B SZEELFFFUER - BHEE
AE1E 39 (2023F : 123F) - WA
BEFEEFNBROCHEEHEA
ABFEMIIE BN o A RFEF AT
e EERE  AIXZHBELERY
BEMHFERGEK

HRAEROOUNEEERZ BN
REBE  #AREIERENR
BmAZINERR - HOERITES
BRERE R SR AER QR
BEREMRNEEE -

Completed

investment

properties

ERBBRENE

HK$°000

FET

FAIR VALUE »HE

At 1 April 2022 R2022F4/1H 1,367,563
Exchange adjustments e H R (26,236)
Disposal HE (68,150)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) U BE B B X B (B 5E31) 346,547
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBERERZ AFEEM 87,831
At 31 March 2023 R202343A31H 1,707,555
Exchange adjustments 5 SRR (19,470)
Disposal & (428,079)
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ AT ERD (9,563)
At 31 March 2024 R20244 38318 1,250,443
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGE)
Analysed as: DA
HK$’000
FET
At 31 March 2024 HR2024F3H31H
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,250,443
Assets classified as held for sale DEARELEZEE -
1,250,443
At 31 March 2023 HR2023F3H31H
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,337,441
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBELEZEE 370,114
1,707,555

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out on the respective dates by the following independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of
Name of valuers investment properties
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

The unrealised loss relating to investment properties held at the end of
the reporting period of HK$18,299,000 (2023: gain of HK$81,055,000)
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level 3 fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

REEZIREAMENR2024F3A31B K
2023F3A31 A Z AFETIEATEA
SELBHUEZBLABREEME
HEMTRZSASBTHEZEE
B

REMHEZ
fRIERR1T B8 FRTEHE
BURETEEAT R B

BRAT]
BURET B E AT
BRAT]
Edmund Tie & bk
Company (SEA) Pte
Ltd

RBEHRSENEREMERAD
SR8 518 18,299,0005% 7T (20234 :
1%£81,055,00078 7T) I B 22024 F 3
A31B L FERIBER -

REBEMEREMERNE=HRAF
EER - AFRLBEALBELE=
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs
REBRAZRENF NTERIASIA NTEER FEFERIEBA
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TARL

17. REWEGE)

TERIANTIABEERENEZ A FE
ZEMLER  EAZBERER
BA) - URREBAZ ATBEEEE
DHRFEER(F1EFEIR) <A FE

HE -
Significant
unobservable inputs Sensitivities
EATTERAA HEE

Classified as non-current

assets
PEAERDER
Commercial units in 373,000 383200  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Hong Kong - based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as road
locations and conditions of ~ frontage, size of property,
the subject property etc., which is ranged from
HK$92,155 to HK$381,714
(2023: HK$89,744 to
HK$381,714) per square foot
REBBEEN 3k ERNEE BYRRER RAMSEE STHREERR ATE
- ERREN R TS HBRNER  TERNE AR
TERR 5 REHE SR B DR E M AR
INRBEENECNER  RENGEER 0%
R K& BEARNE
92,155/ L2 381,714/ T
(20235 : 8O,T44BTLE
381,714747T)
89,300 92,500  Level3 Income approach —term yield  Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield, the

£3% WNE -

of yield generated by market lower the fair value
average selling price and
the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 3.1% (2023: 2.7%)
THlGE ZRALEYEC  EBNERR ATERE
M THEBRMETH
BEEEZWE IR
RENER R
53.1%(2003% : 2.7%)
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties Fair value at
held by the Group 31 March
AEERACRENE DFER3ASE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL

Valuation techniques

and key inputs

NTEER HEHERTEHA

17. REWE(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs Sensitivities
EATTBEEHA HEE

Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)

PERFRDEE R

= reversionary yield

= monthly term rental

-BATHEE

Reversionary yield, takinginto ~ The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
by market average selling value

price and the market

average rental from

comparable properties and

adjustment to reflect the risk

account of yield generated

associated with the future
rental, which is 3.1%
(2023: 2.7%)

BBk ZRALEYEZ  BRNERR ATERE
mETEEBRMETH
BezWERRYERRES
Rz HRE - B31%
(2023% : 2.7%)

Monthly term rental for each The higher the monthly term
rental rate, the higher the
average of the rental as stated ~ fair value
in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged
from HK$29.7 to HK$115.3
(2023: HK$27.6 to HK$104.8)
per square foot

BRENGATHESIRE SATHESAR ATE
BEROMSI TR E a5
i BEARN 6
07BTEN53 T
(20235 : 276BLE
104.8%7)

unit is derived from the

ot
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENE NFER3ASE NTEER RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HEE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL

Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)

PEAFRBEEE)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unitrate  The higher the reversionary
for each unit is compared with ~ market unit rate, the higher
direct market comparables the fair value
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factor, which is
from HK$26 to HK$130
(2023: HK$24 to HK$118)
per square foot

-EETHELER ZBl7ERTSENEE - EBETSENERDER D
BTEERITLENEHE  TEAS
E - WEEMERH
fr AR ERIRE -
BYARRBETEINET
(20235 : 4BTE8ETT)

Industrial units in 73,500 76,400  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Hong Kong ~based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as size
locations and condiions of ~ of property etc., which is
the subject property ranged from HK$4,087 to
HK$5,296 (2023: HK$4,457
to HK$5,508) per square foot
REBIEEN E3 ERNEE - RRRE BYHREE RAMHEE STHREERR ATHE
NECTHAIBERSR  AHBEMEH TZE i
EREHURMEENE,  WE- LEUAREMER
g RER REMEHES D%
A% GIARNT
4,087 BT 25,2068 T
(2003 : 4 4BTHETLE
5,508%7T)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWHE(E)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRRCRENE ATHER3A31H ATESER MESERIEBEA EXTABEBA HRE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
PEAFRDEE(B)
Industrial-office units in 571,000 576,000  Level3 Income approach —term yield  Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield, the

Hong Kong

REBIEMAZEN

of yield generated by market lower the fair value
average selling price and
the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 3.5% (2023: 2.6%)

TR ZRANENE:  EHkE
mETEEBRMETH NT{ER
BEEE 2 M RRE
REMERZRE B
3.5% (20235 : 2.6%)

ERE WNE - B

) cmy
ot

P23l

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair

Reversionary yield, taking into
account of yield generated

- reversionary yield

by market average selling value
price and the market average
rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with
the future rental,

which is 3.5% (2023: 2.6%)
Bla  ZRALENEZ
mETEEBRMETHE
S 2 E R R ARE 2
Rz - B3.5% (2023
£:06%)

EENERS  RTEDE

1
i
£
>
Bk
5
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGEE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENE NFER3ASE NTEER RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HEE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL

Classified as non-current

assets (Continued)
PERERDEE(R)
= monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each The higher the monthly term
unitis derived from the rental rate, the higher the
average of the rental as fair value

stated in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged
from HK$19.9 to HK$23.1
(2023: HK$9.1 to HK$25.1)
per square foot
-BATHES BEENEATHESIRE SATHELAR ATE
REROMH TS a5
i BTARN A
19.9% L2281 B
(20035 : 91ETLE
25.17%7)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unitrate  The higher the reversionary
for each unit is compared with ~ market unit rate, the higher
direct market comparables the fair value
and taking into account of
character, location and
other individual factor,
which is HK$7,012 (2023
HK$7,200) per square foot

i B 1% ZBlIzERTSENEL - EBW
BTMAERALENERE  TEAR
WE - WEEMERH
fr AR ERIRE -
BYARRT0I2ET
(20235 : 7,000 )

-85

SP
Sin
+EHn



172

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, 2202438318 It F &

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRRCRENE DFER3ASE DTESR RELERIEGA EATTBEEHA HRE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TERL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
PEAFRDEE(B)
Residential units in 30,800 32,300 Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Hong Kong ~ based on market market direct comparables square foot,
observable transactions of and taking into account of the higher the fair value
similar properties and character, location, age and
adjusted to reflect the other individual factors, which
locations and conditions of ~is ranged from HK$8,370 to
the subject property HK$18,681 (2023; HK$9,014
to HK$20,562) per square
foot
REBEEEN E3 ERNEE - RRRE BYHREE RAMHEE STHFREERR ATHE
NEZTSABERSR  IHEMER LZENE A5
SRELRMEENE,  WHUE - EBRIREM
A ERER @RREE  §FARNT
8,370 TE 18,6814
(2023 : 9,014 E
20,5627 71)
Residential units in 73,843 137,041 Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Singapore (Note ) - based on market using market direct square foot,
observable transactions of comparables and taking the higher the fair value
similar properties and into account of character,
adjusted to reflect the location and other individual
locations and conditions of  factors such as road frontage,
the subject property size of property, etc.,
which is ranged from
HK$25,591 to HK$27,218
(2023: HK$21,971 to
HK$25,429) per square foot
RETIREEEN () B3k ERNEE - RRRE BYFRER RAMSER

NEZTETBER AR
EEEIRBARNELZ
fERER

AHBMER T2k
B MEHNREMIER
RxmBAEE 9%
ANE BEARNT
25,5018 TL 227 2185 TT
(023% : 21971TE
25,429%70)

STSRERRE ATE
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBEE 2 RENE ATERSAA NTESR AEFERIE&A EXTTEZAA HRE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FiEL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
AEAFRBEE(E)
Land with attached 39,000 40,000  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, The higher the price per
structure in Hong Kong ~based on market using market direct square foot,
observable transactions of comparables and taking the higher the fair value
similar properties and into account of character,
adjusted to reflect the location, age and other
locations and conditions of ~ individual factors,
the subject property which is ranged from
HK$1,349 to HK$1,600
(2023: HK$1,349 to
HK$1,600) per square foot
REBMERELY E3h EENEBE-ERAE BYAREE RATHEE  STHFREERR ATHE
NEITGABESSR  FAHBHER TEENE i
BRENARMEBENEZ  BE UE - BERAREM
i B RER ERRZ - §FARNT
1,349/ L 21,600 T
(2003F : 1,349 L2
1,600/7)
Classified as held-for-sale
PERBELE
Industrial units in the PRC - 370,114 Level3 Depreciated replacement Replacement cost per square  The higher the replacement
(Note i) cost approach metre, which is ranged from cost per square metre,
RMB1,800 to RMB1,850 per  the higher the fair value
square metre
Depreciation rate, which is The higher the
ranged from 3.6% to 14.1% depreciation rate,
the lower the fair value
KRB TEEN Bk F=/ REEERAL BYAREERA, NTH BYAREENAMS
EAKARE1800E ATHERE

AEH#1,8507

WEE N TASE%E WEXER  ATELE
14.1%

1,250,443 1,707,556
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i

On 31 March 2023, the management of the Group offered an option to an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to purchase an investment property
located in Singapore with the fair value of Singapore dollars (“SGD”) 11,500,000
(equivalent to HK$67,494,000), the offer has not been mutually agreed by the
Purchaser before 31 March 2023. On 14 April 2023, the Purchaser signed the
option to purchase agreement and exercised the option granted by the Group
and agreed to purchase the investment property at a total consideration of
SGD13,009,000 (equivalent to HK$75,323,000). The disposal was completed
in July 2023. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
14 April 2023.

The assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 represented lands
and buildings in Huzhou to be resumed by the municipal government at a total
consideration RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to HK$439,752,000) pursuant to a
land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022. As at 31 March 2023,
an amount of RMB199,586,000 (equivalent to HK$226,802,000) was received
by the Group as deposit received. EIT of RMB22,373,000 (equivalent to
HK$25,424,000) was prepaid by the Group. The transaction was expected to
be completed within twelve months from the date of classification, accordingly,
the investment properties ware reclassified to assets classified as held for sale
as at 31 March 2023.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 March 2024, except for the industrial properties in the PRC

amounted to nil (2023: HK$370,114,000) and the land with attached
structure amounted to HK$39,000,000 (2023: HK$40,000,000), all
of the Group’s investment properties have been pledged to secure

banking facilities granted to the Group.

17.

REWXGE)

Wi

(i

REREREMEZ A VER

#2023F3A31A ' AEBMEBERE R —
EBYE=F(EFDRTFEEMRIT
Nk e — B A FE 511,500,000 il
7o (Tt ) (& 7 4967,494,00078
TR E W EMIEERE - N2023F3
AB1BAT » B MARZELEREE
WE » R2023F4 148 - EHEFR
EREERRLITEAEER FHRE
- R B E DA KA E13,009,0005 Hn i
JT(HBE75,323,0008 L) BEEEREY
¥ 2P EEBEN2023F7 AT °
HIEBLMARR BE B2023F4 714
BHEJDRM ©

20233 A3 BN EARIEHEZ
BEREBETBRABRENR2022F10A8
SAFTMLKFEHEABREAR
#£386,982,0007T (18 & 439,752,000
P 7T W B BB ON T B 3 R AR o B
2023%F3A31H - AEBEBUMESEA
R #190,586,0007T (16 226,802,000
BITIEARBRIES - AEEEEND
¥F1EHRARE22,373,0007T (HHER
25,424,000 7T) © Z X 5 TEBBER D
BAMEFTBARTER - At - R
2023%F3A31H - RAMECEFNHEA
RIBELEZEE -

mEZ

REBERRABEEMBIDERR ZERH

e

MR2024F3A31H » Bz R FEE
BERZEBTZIEWH(2023F :
370,114,000/ 7T) % 39,000,000/ 7T
2 M B 5L+ 15 (20234F : 40,000,000
BIT)  NEBRAREMEES IR
BEEFASENEGEIFHRTHRE -
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LOANS RECEIVABLE

18. FEWER

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FHT

Fixed-rate loans receivable EBEWE R 32,100 105,730
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE (1,077) (53,480)
31,023 52,250

Analysed as: kv

Current assets MENVEEE 17,384 38,586
Non-current assets SEMBEE 13,639 13,664
31,023 52,250

Secured BHEA 16,971 30,661
Unsecured mEA 14,052 21,589
31,023 52,250

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of business of loan financing.

At 31 March 2024, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 0% to 14% (2023: 0% to 8%) per annum.

Impairment assessment

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed
by the management regularly. The management closely monitors the
credit quality of loans receivable. Except for those credit-impaired loans
receivable, there are no loans receivable which are past due at the end
of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 35.

BAANBEERR  REXMEES
MEMmME  RE&EDTAIREHEIE
1B MRERE DT -

MR2024F3A31H ' AEBZEWER
FEMENTO%E14%(2023%F : 0%

=8%) °

RAERF(
ERMERTHRERN - AREFE
BEMKAZEHEERERETS

UEFRAZEER - BEEETEHRT
ERAZEEE EEEETEERE
WEFREEEER - BEEEERED
EMEFRS  RBSHRBEARZ

BB AT A BB RESS
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18. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 18. EWER(E)
Impairment assessment (Continued) LB RT 1 ()
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable is as BREFRERE2EBHHT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL -
12mECL  credit-impaired Total
12{8 A E REBHEE
FEFE FE-GERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THEL TEL
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4A1H 2,309 44,930 47,239
Changes due to loans receivable recognised as at~ 12022F4F1H R EBRERE R
1 April 2022: &)
- Repayment (Notes iii and iv) - B =i Riv) (1,137) (6,799) (7,936)
- Written off (Note iii = W88 (O i) = 2,201) 2,201)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note ) -BHEEBEZENIEFE
GiE3) 298 16,000 16,208
New loans granted (Note il B R E R (R 80 = 80
At 31 March 2023 R2023%F3A31H 1,550 51,930 53,480
Changes due to loans receivable recognised asat ~ #2023F4 A1 AR EBREWRER
1 April 2023: [k
- Repayment (Note iv) - BR () (652) = (652)
- Written off (Note ) - WsH (P 3Ev) = (51,930) (51,930)
~ Net remeasurement of ECL (Note i) -BHEEEECENEFE
(Fff3E0) 46 = 46
New loans granted (Note ii el -E (k) 133 = 133
At 31 March 2024 2024437318 1,077 - 1,077

LD
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the net impairment loss of HK$46,000
(2023: HK$16,298,000) was related to loans receivable with gross carrying
amount of HK$28,800,000 (2023: HK$103,230,000). Details of the credit-
impaired loans receivable are set out in note 35(b).

The impairment loss of HK$133,000 (2023: HK$80,000) was related to loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$2,300,000 (2023: HK$2,500,000)
which are newly granted during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$6,799,000 was related to credit-impaired
loans receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$9,000,000, of which
HK$6,799,000 has been repaid during the year ended 31 March 2023 and
HK$2,201,000 written off during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$652,000 (2023: HK$1,137,000) was
related to loan receivable under 12m ECL with gross carrying HK$21,000,000
(2023: HK$27,472,000) which has been fully repaid during the year ended 31
March 2024.

The written off of HK$51,930,000 was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$51,930,000.

W E R (&)

WA R ()
BT

B

0} HZE2024F3A31A LFE - FREE
846,000/ 7T (20234 : 16,298,000/%
JT.) £R 8 [ 44 58 /528,800,000 7T (2023
108,230,000 7T) K EE KA
B o BEEEREZ EREFFERR
P 3E35(0) °

(i) BB A518133,0007% 7T (20234 : 80,000
L) EE E 202463831 BILEE
%t & BR T 48 8 75.2,300,000% 7T (2023
4 : 2,500,000 7T) K EKRE R AR o

(i) SRR 18 16,799,000/ T EEE H 4 58
/49,000,000 THE AZ BRKERE
% - H 6,799,000/ 7T B R E £2023
F3A31H ILFEEE 2,201,000/ T
EREE 20233431 H ILFEHsY o

(iv) HZE2024F3A31ALFE - HERSIE
#[2652,0007% 7T (20234 : 1,137,000
B E12EAEHREESREZEER
821,000,000/ 7T, (20234 : 27,472,000
BTINERERER EREZE2024
FIAMBLEFELBEE -

v) M $451,930,000B T HEEE AR A
51,930,000 L HY E W B R B 4 ©
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19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 19. BATEFAEMEERE 2B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =}
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

EHRE - BLFE:
REBIEI LT 2B
5 BEEFMENTA
2.5% %9.5% (20234 :
6.5%%£9.5%) * FIHA

Listed investments, at fair value:

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or
overseas with fixed interests ranging
from 2.5% to 9.5% (2023: 6.5% to
9.5%) per annum and maturity dates
ranging from 11 July 2025 to 31 January 2025F7A11BE
2031 (2023: 11 April 2022 to 11 July 203141318 (20234 :

2025) 2022F4AF11BE

2025%7A11H) 100 1,095

Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENEE = 624
Non-current assets ERBEE 100 471
100 1,095

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values which were determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas
recognised stock exchange.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit loss
allowance measured on 12m ECL basis when the credit risk on financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. For
those credit-impaired bonds, credit loss allowance is measured using
lifetime ECL. The Group assesses the ECL for debt instruments at
FVTOCI by reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating
agencies, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective industry for
each issuer, corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of
default of each bond investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, reversal of credit loss allowance
of HK$1,775,000 (2023: credit loss allowance HK$3,530,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 35.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”), a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

20244 220233 A31H + AT
Bt AEMEERAZEHBTALRR
FAE B BR T 4B 5 Bk 22 T 28008 51 3R T 2B
HFR M TRETHEETE -

BAFEFAAEMEERSE ZERT
AR1I2EAEHEEBEELEHNS
FERERBEzLTES  BBEVHK
HRARSBRITAZESRR I ER
ZHmM - HNEERENES 8
BEEREBINARERBHNAREES
BERE - AEESZFRARBEE
FREZEEFR FERBETAS
BTEZRBEERE  C¥ELE
HERBERLREEFREZEDHE
o FHEERATEFAEMEZE RS
ZEHIAZRREREES -

HE2024F3A31BLEE -
1,775,0008 T2 EEBEEHBERER D
RIB2E TR (20234 - EEHERE
3,530,000 7T) °

IERHA BRI 35 o

RIEHR - FERAFEFAEM
2ERRZEBTAUEAEEES
M EE N EE T (T
@ -
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DEBT INSTRUMENT AT AMORTISED COST 20. REEKLFTELEBIA
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET T

Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong: BEBFELTEBIA

Fixed-rate unsecured promissory note & 7E B R IEER A R IE 23,490 23,490
Less: Impairment allowance B OREREE (914) (914)
22,576 22,576

In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited (the “issuer”),
an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
entered into a promissory note agreement with principal amount of
USD3,000,000 which carries interest at 8% per annum and will be fully
repayable on the maturity date of 25 September 2025. At 31 March
2024, the carrying amount of the promissory note was HK$22,576,000
(2023: HK$22,576,000).

The promissory note is measured at amortised cost since the
Group’s business model is to hold the debt instrument for collection
of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The issuer is operating in hotel business. The Group assesses the ECL
with reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer assigned by the
Group.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no credit loss
allowance was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 35.

M20214578 » N&EEELion Best
Global Limited ([31T A (—HER KB
HRRBESEMALNBIE=H)T
AR ZE R - ANE % A3,000,000
EIT - EF R A8%I HE2025%9 A
25BB|HIR 2 5B(E 8 - W20244 3 A
318 - AEKREEA22,576,0007
7T (20234 : 22,576,000/6TT) °

HRAEERBERFEBTAZER
BABREBMAHNRSREMIFHE -
HARRERBHEAAE  ARe
MEERRASBELRKEERTNE
ZRR e BT ANEEBEEY - K&
E2EZHTAZABEREFRFMGE
HEEESE -

B %2024 %20233A31ALEFE
W \NBEEREEBRRE -

BRI FE35 o
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21.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2024, HK$665,266,000 (2023: HK$1,475,219,000) of
properties held for development for sale are expected to be completed
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period, while the
rest are expected to be completed more than twelve months after the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group performed assessment of
net realisable value on its properties held for development for sale with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arrived at by using the residual method. As at 31 March 2024, there
was a decrease in the estimated net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale, a net write-down of HK$102,937,000
was recognised in profit or loss due to the volatile property market in
2024 (2023: a net written-back of HK$40,394,000 due to the recovery
of property market from Covid-19 pandemic in 2023).

21.

FIEHERRME

AEFEZHEHERRMEDURE
e

202443 A31H » 665,266,000/ 7T
(20234 : 1,475,219,000/8 7T) Z #{E
HERRYERPRREHRI2@A
WIERK - #REERITEEIR RS HIRE R
BH=EAEK -

20244 2 2023F3A31H » K&EE
ERFIELERRMELEITAIZERTF
BFEN2ERAEEREREZE
VABRBEEMELBEMZGEE - %
SHEDRESHEELSE - AREH
ETHR2024F HEEE « HELHE
BRMENMBIEREFERD B
20243 A31 HE = AR M F 8
102,937,000/ 7T (20234F : AR FEHE
EMHN2023F {20198 RN ES KR
1B1EF - 8150 F%840,394,0007%
JT) °

Analysis of leasehold lands component HETHH Do

HK$°000

FET

As at 31 March 2024 2024F3H31H
Carrying amount BRmEE 2,520,754
As at 31 March 2023 7A2023%3H31H
Carrying amount AREE 3,036,573
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE2024F3A31HLEEE
Operating cash outflows KRR RN (68,483)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2023F3A31HLEFE
Operating cash outflows KBRS R (65,391)
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 21. BE{EHEBRWEGE)
(Continued)
Analysis of leasehold lands component (Continued) HEL IS 247 (@&
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FiHET
Additions #n 68,483 65,391
(Write-down) write-back (i 88) B [ (30,920) 36,480
The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any AETHMREENKARETMNR
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual T EMEREBRTE - FRE
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold BERETABEELHIBHMEHFTLERE
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold 8 - ZE5|2024%F k20236 3A31H
lands taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March BT RIEAE - REHEE TR
2024 and 2023. EB8H-
All properties held for development for sale have been pledged to AEEMEFEZHELEERDE
secure banking facilities granted to the Group in both years. HERERRUERRITEE -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BEFRHMEWFIE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Lease receivables FE U AR & 0B 859 816
Prepayments AR RIA 1,342 26,547
Interest receivable FE R B 110 209
Staff loans (Note) BT ERME) 9,000 9,000
Deposit we 1,691 1,001
Other receivables EAth R MR 20,565 10,469
33,567 48,132

Note:  The Group entered into several loan agreements with certain staff. Pursuant to

the loan agreements, the staff loans were unsecured with fixed interest rate at

2% per annum and repayable on demand (2023: 2% per annum and repayable

on demand).

K ARESRET BT AT B B 1t -

RIRE 5 -

BTEFRREIR

TEFFNE2% - KAV R (20234 : F

F 2% R BREA 3K ©
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EZRHEMEWRFIEGE)
The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property AEBEWRBELTRYUERENEZ
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables and lease THAPRIRE - IRBERZERH BEF5E
receivables, based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting WHEREREEFRENRRERR S
period is as follows: BRECAITIAT -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
0-60 days 0-60H 859 562
61-90 days 61 -90H - 109
91-120 days 91 -120H - 145
859 816
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are B 5 M E A BRI 2 RERT h B
set out in note 35. HAMIFES5 ©
No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade and other HRARARESRAEZRNEMTR
receivables as the directors of the Company consider that the amount EUWERZES REMERRERE
is immaterial. BEEEgE -
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 23. BRAFETABRZEREE
OR LOSS
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Listed investments, at fair value: FHRE - RAFE
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and ~ — R & &g oM E TR ANE 5
overseas (Note i) (B 3ED 47,124 23,914
Unlisted investments, at fair value: ELEMRE  BRAFE :
- Unlisted securities (Note ii) - Ik ETEEFH (Mt i) 6,264 6,264
~ Investment in limited partnership (Note iii)  — AR & & & (ff 5=%iii) 42,732 28,230
~ Film right investment (Note v) - BERERE (V) 14,697 15,504
~ Life insurance policies (Note iv) - NS RBRE (M sEiv) - 14,436
110,817 88,348
Analysed as: bakiiv=1
Current assets MENE B 104,553 39,418
Non-current assets EmENEE 6,264 48,930
110,817 88,348

h—.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

23. BRAVEABRZZEHEE(E)

AREEATEFABENORAE
BAHE B 4 5 R B M LA S 9
sHERFIT

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

UsD e 52,589 55,428

RMB AR 14,697 15,504
Notes: MisE -

(i)

(i)

The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas
recognised stock exchange.

In March 2024, the Group invested a minority stake of an unlisted investment
holding company which holds an entity with subsidiaries engaged in beverage
business in the PRC at a consideration of USD800,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,264,000) (2023: USD800,000 (equivalent to HK$6,264,000)).

The amount as at 31 March 2024 represented HK$42,732,000 (2023:
HK$28,230,000) for interest in a limited partnership (the “Limited Partnership”)
as a limited partner.

The interest in the Limited Partnership is recognised as follows:

(i)

(i)

ERRAE S AT EER Rk
5 5N R ] 55X 5 B ) T 45 R 7T (B R
T

2024538 + A& E A800,0003% T
(#8% 726,264,000/ 7T) (20234F:800,000
KT (HEE6,264000870)) IR E 7 — Kk
EAREZERARNDEAE - ZAF
BAE-—REDERERHEBOHBR

e -

M2024F3A318 - BRER([BRE
#])& % 542,732,000/ 7T (20234 -
28,230,000 TTIE R AR & % A K

3¢

= e

HERBBNIARRMOT

HK$’000
FHT

At 1 April 2022 R2022F4A81H 27,087
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss NEERFNBESER 971
Exchange adjustments FE X, 5% 172
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3H31H 28,230
Addition 0 15,178
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss NEEBENBRSER (712)
Exchange adjustments IE 5, & 36
At 31 March 2024 MR2024F3A31H 42,732
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23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

In prior years, each of Goldchamp International Limited (“Goldchamp”), a
subsidiary of the Company, and the Company entered into life insurance
policies with insurance companies to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the
Company, and Mr. Koon Wing Yee, former general manager of the Company.
Under the policies, Goldchamp and the Company were the beneficiaries
and policy holders and the total insured sum is US$2,120,000 (equivalent to
HK$16,413,000). Goldchamp and the Company were required to pay upfront
deposits of US$2,120,000 (equivalent to HK$16,413,000) including a premium
charge at inception of the policies amounting to US$400,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,096,000). Goldchamp and the Company could terminate the policies
at any time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the policies
at the date of withdrawal, which was determined by the upfront payment of
US$2,120,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge. Goldchamp’s insurance policies
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to Goldchamp.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Goldchamp and the Company
terminated the life insurance policies and received cash of US$1,847,000
(equivalent to HK$14,465,000).

In prior years, the Group entered into an agreement with a film production house
for a total investment cost of RMB13,600,000 (equivalent to HK$15,504,000).
The film right investment represented the 20% interest of film production which
entitled the Group to predetermined percentage of income to be generated
from the film based on the Group’s investment portion as specified in respective
film right investment agreement. As at 31 March 2024, the fair value of the film
right investment which amounted to HK$14,697,000 (2023: HK$15,504,000) is
measured with using the discounted cash flow method.

23.

BAVEFAREZERMEER

BEE - ()

(v)

RBEFE  KAARZHBRAALE
BERaRAR((EE])RAATYE
RBRABFILABREUNBRAEAAF]
EEEEULLRAABNBLEE
KERE - REBEZERE  HERK
RAAZH ARRERFAARBIRR
¥E7%2,120,000% 7t (16574 16,413,000
B) c ERAQABALNEMN RS
2,120,000% 7T (165 716,413,000/
) BERZERERUBAINZ
R # 400,000 7t (F8 5 7 3,096,000/
7o) o & KA AR BME R R R AR 1 7R
FRERBBRARFZEZREZESE
BRERE - TR TER 82,120,000
E T R TR 25 R RIDAREHR
BRIREBAMSMET - H2HRE
EEANRER T ENEEMRTRH
ié °

HE2024F3A31ALFE  tHEHERK
ARR I NFRE RIURER £ 1,847,000
%77 (185 714,465,0008 7T)

NBEFE  ARBEER-HEZRE
ARIFT— D h# - BREBEAAR
#13,600,0007T (8% #15,504,00078
J0) ° BERERAREREFZEIE0%
gD EASEEREANEREY
IRAER B HAETTRORE LD 'R
A EREYBEERANETASD
Lt - 20243 A31H » BRRERE
2 AF1E 514,697,000 7T (20234 -
15,604,000/ 7T) * HERBHBRRLRE
ERTEMRG -
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TIME DEPOSITS OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

The time deposits with maturity of more than three months and within 1
year carry interest at market rate of 1.50% (2023: nil) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short-term
bank deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash
commitments, which carry interest at market rates range from 0.001%
t0 0.925% (2023: 0.001% to 0.875%) per annum.

The Group’s time deposits and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

24,

BB=EANERER RERR
TEEY

FHEBA=EARIFANTEHER
AT B EFE1.50%(20234F &)t
B o
BeRkhAeEEUREITHERR
REHBRTERUARERAEERNHER
AN - EWISFERENF0.001%
£0.925% (20234 : 0.001% =
0.875%) °

AEBEAEBEEERDEEEIUIN
ZERFENEREFARBRERR
SEBWHIIMT

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000

THET THAT

SGD ¥ T 963 4,695
usD eV 100 6,033
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B RHEMEMNRKIEA
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Trade payables (Note i): & 5 aoE (D ¢

0-30 days 0-30H 24,260 20,005
31-60 days 31-60H 6,167 715
30,427 20,720
Retention payable (Note ii) FER1E S (B =EiD) 32,110 23,629

Rental deposits received and rental received T W& %S KIEKEE
in advance 8,750 7,836

Accruals TEIREA 9,326 16,826

Other taxes payable E AR 2,767 10,036

Other payables E A TR 10,370 6,219

93,750 85,266

Notes: BRE -

[0] The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date i) BORMNFTERRERRZRRDITT
at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of REBEZAHEE - BEZ FHRES
goods is 30 days. A308 -

(ii) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be released by the (i) ERRESRNT FRERRAEEER

Group within twelve months upon completion of their works. IRE#ER+_EAARIH -




BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS

(a)

In prior years, the Company issued certain convertible notes
to Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”), a subsidiary of
Easyknit International. The conversion price of the convertible
notes is HK$0.25 per conversion share with interest at 4% per
annum and maturity date of 28 August 2024. The effective
interest rates of the liability component of the convertible notes
range from 18.79% to 31.69% per annum.

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, adjustment has been made
to the conversion price of convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 from HK$0.25 per share to HK$0.24
per share with effect from 20 April 2022 as a result of placing of
shares.

On 25 July 2022, all outstanding convertible notes were
converted into a total of 400,786,666 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital and share premium of
HK$159,756,000 was recognised in the Company. Upon
the completion of the conversion, the Company released the
relevant reserve and deferred tax liability of HK$93,151,000 and
HK$13,289,000, respectively. The conversion rights attached to
the convertible notes were fully exercised.

26. TMREBESEERERND

(a)

BEETF - ARRIRKEBRY
MEBARERERERAB(E
ENBETTETARRER - 7]
BB BRRRE AT RIRRR
90.258 7T + FMEH4% 5
BH £2024F8 281 o AJ#H%
EREEBINEENENTE
F18.79%Z231.69% °

1R P AT 30 AR 22 PR R R I R 1R A9
PRGN - B20229F4H20R
B HREERD  A2EA
70,000,000 7T 89 A #2 i R AR )
BRECRER025BTHEE
BRRO.24BTT °

R2022F7A25H  BAFFA
ERTARREREERAS
#400,786,666/% T A E{EO0.01
BT EBR - WRARDQ A E
PR 1% B £159,756,000/8
TC o EIASERIE - ANARIRRR AR
HREERECREEES A
93,151,000/ 7t %.13,289,000/%8
T o AR REBFT A EIRED
BEBITHE ©
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(b)

On 20 February 2023, the Company issued 5% convertible note
due 2028 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$209,000,000
to Goodco (the “2023 Convertible Note”). The 2023 Convertible
Note was used to settle of acquisition of investment properties
during the year ended 31 March 2023. It is a non-cash
transaction with details set out in note 31.

The 2023 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time between the date of issue of the 2023 Convertible Note
on 20 February 2023 and its settlement date on 20 February
2028 at a conversion price of HK$0.106 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, adjustment has been made
to the conversion price of convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$209,000,000 from HK$0.106 per share to HK$4.24
per share with the number of conversion shares adjusted from
1,971,698,113 to 49,292,452 conversion shares with effect
from 19 July 2023 as a result of capital reorganisation. Further
adjustment has been made to the conversion price from
HK$4.24 per share to HK$3.70 per share with the number of
conversion shares adjusted from 49,292,452 to 56,486,486
conversion shares with effect from 3 August 2023 as a result of
placing of shares.

26.

TRREBERES AT

(&)

(b)

Y E9%)

If

[T

20232 H208 + ARQR]AIE
RHITHR2028F R iR & 58
209,000,000/ 7T #95% AJ 42 i
ZH(2023F MR EE]) -
2023 A MREERANEER
F2023F3A31H L FEWRER
By - EREIRERS
FEIBEE ST ©

2023 F Al MR F R LA B T E
B BB AGER20235F2H20
HE172023F Al R Z 1 B &7
£2028F 2208 &5 B HARIBE
RIZERESEER AR QN RY
BT ERR7H0.1068 T (8
EITREERE) -

BIEATRREBIERRIEHED
FEIENX - B2023F7H19A
B AREAEME A2EA
209,000,000 7T #) A #2 Ak SR 1%
B (B 2 B T A%0.1067 T
BEGRA24BTT - GHBREHD
& B E/Mm1,971,698,1130%
49,202,452 8k 15 - B
202348 A3B K - HREER
MmIELE—FRE  BKRE
CHERIABTAREER
3.70% T - BIMRHEE BB
49,292,452% ¥ % % 56,486,486
AR IR (D o
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the 2023 Convertible Note with
principal amount of HK$209,000,000 remained outstanding.
Assuming full conversion of the 2023 Convertible Note at
a conversion price of HK$3.70 at 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$0.106), the 2023 Convertible Note will be convertible into
56,486,486 (2023: 1,971,698,113) new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2023 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 5% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The 2023 Convertible Note contains liability component and
equity component. The equity component is presented in equity
heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component of the 2023 Convertible Note is
11.38% per annum at the date of initial recognition.

Upon issuance of the 2023 Convertible Note, the Company
recognised equity component of the convertible note and
deferred tax liability of HK$56,878,000 and HK$9,385,000,
respectively.

The movement of the liability component of the above convertible
notes is set out below:

26. TERREEEEE
(48)

(b)

I BREDKD

(%)

2024 2023 3A31H + K
© %8 4209,000, oooi%ﬁ:aﬁzozs
FARBREBRDRER -
2023&7%&&%}%%2024@3
A31B8Z1 Mk E3.70% 7w (2023
F:0.1068T) 28 EKR - A
2023 A MREFEE G AIBRA
RARBRAPEGREEO.01E
JLH)56,486,486% (20234
1,971,698, 1130%) 1 L @AL -

BRI TE SRR A 2
KEE1T o INE2023F AR E
BHEEBRENEZHARE
B AR A EEESERE
EEGFBER o FRE5%H
FEBREFFIN—IK BEEH
HRAL -

37
a

=

H

2023&7%&%&% Z8f

DIERE D o I D R
BEEAIMREEERHERITRE
H o RHIIAIER H - 20234 1]
BEEEAEBINERFERER
511.38% °

i

BIT2023F AT MR T &
RARHERAUBRBRERNER
BHOREEHBEBEES B A
56,878,000/% 7T [2.9,385,0007%
s

LHTBERERABERD 2B
HHNT -

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At the beginning of the year REL] 159,949 66,911
Accretion of interest FBEZBAREE 17,941 6,833
Interest paid EARFLE (9,936) (2,382)
Conversion (=5} = (70,613)
Issue of 2023 Convertible Note BIT2023F Al R E = 159,200
At the end of the year RER 167,954 159,949
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27. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27. BEARITEE
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Carrying amount repayable as follows (based [E(EiE K8 2 BREE L T (RIE
on the scheduled repayment dates setout ~ E XA Z EEBH) -
in the loan agreements):
— within one year -—FRN 1,161,664 544,578
— within a period of more than one year - ZR—FETHEAWFEHER
but not exceeding two years 834,368 475,059
— within a period of more than two years - ZRMEETHEARFIHER
but not exceeding five years 50,800 827,634
- within a period of more than five years - BBAFHER 19,902 24,648
2,066,734 1,871,919
Less: Amount due within one year shown W REBABEETZ—FA
under current liabilities B &% (1,161,664) (544,578)
Amount due after one year shown under RIERBEBEERT 2 —F1&
non-current liabilities El| D e k| 905,070 1,327,341

At 31 March 2024, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry interest
ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 0.7%
to 1.8%, Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus 0.8% (2023:
HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.8%, London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
plus 0.8%) per annum, with effective interest ranging from 5.3% to 6.4%
(2023: 4.2% to 5.7%) per annum. The loans are secured by certain
assets as set out in note 36. The proceeds were mainly used to finance
acquisition of investment properties, development of properties and
acquisition of financial products.

M2024%43A318  AEBZHEKE
BOBEFNENTEBSRITRAE
FE(BBRITREREDMO.7%E
1.8% ERBERBEMNE([HERR
REEFIE])MN0.8%(2023%F : HE
RITRZEREMNI.0%NET1.8% * B
BITRERS(RBRITAERS]D
hno.8%) EEBEBREMENF5.3%%
6.4% (202345 : 4.2%E5.7%) - EFUA
MizESeFE s TEAEEER - RI\=E
TREKRBREME  MEZERE
BERMERZIAME
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SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. BEFBITEEE)
The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated in AEBUNEBESEEBEEE SN
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group ZEEIEcBEERRITEEHIIN
entities are set out below: I
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
HKD BT 4,614 4,372
usD eV 7,007 21,530
LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEAE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EBHzHEEEE
Within a period not exceeding one year BB —FEHER 2,335 1,162
Within a period of more than one year but ZR—FRTEBBMFHRA
not exceeding two years 2,366 98
Within a period of more than two years but ~ Z R EF BB A FHMA
not exceeding five years 1,025 -
5,726 1,260
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 3 - 1218 A R B|EREE 2
months shown under current SHATRRBDABET
liabilities (2,335) (1,162)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ 12{E B 14 2| B4 & v £ BB RA

under non-current liabilities JEmBAET 3,391 98
The Group leases a property to operate its business and these lease AEEERBMEUNLEELER  mE
liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments that LHEEENMAINOAENRE
are not yet paid. KIRETE -

Lease and rentals are negotiated and fixed for a term of 3 years (2023: A rE B A HIF (20234 : 2%
2 to 3 years). 3%F) °

B
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20.

DEFERRED TAXATION 29. RIEBIIE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Deferred tax assets BEREFRIEEE 328 8,975
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBERE (7,936) (33,7993)
(7,608) (24,818)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

REAREBEFECHERARIZBZE
ERIREERE) AREEBHMT

ECL Revaluation Convertible
allowance of properties notes issued Total
FEHEE BT
BEREE MEER AR EE FELE]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
At 1 April 2022 R20224 4 A18 8,020 (23,955) (13,900) (29,835)
Recognition upon issue of BITAIMR TR
convertible note B R = = (9,385) (9,385)
Release upon conversion of  BZHa R K
convertible notes B R IR - - 13,289 13,289
Credit (charge) to profit or loss R A E B zEH &t
for the year A(FX) 955 (2,191) 739 (497)
Exchange adjustments FE 5, 38 B - 1,610 - 1,610
At 31 March 2023 R202343A31H 8,975 (24,536) (9,257) (24,818)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss R AEE BzEH
for the year (GEIE PN (8,647) 23,470 1,321 16,144
Exchange adjustments bE 5 AR - 1,066 = 1,066
At 31 March 2024 M202443H31H 328 - (7,936) (7,608)

At 31 March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$393,131,000 (2023: HK$241,864,000) available for offset against
future profits. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

M2024%€3A318 » AEBMABEXREE
FHI8/E518393,131,000% 7T (20234 :
241,864,000/ 70) LA A 1B 88 R 2
o BIBEBBITERRALE - AR K
BETERI AR IHE A - R EEIBR
ERREBELEHIBEE -
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 29. EFIEBIIE (4)

At 31 March 2024, the Group has deductible temporary differences MN2024%F3A310 » AEBEHAIE

of HK$181,088,000 (2023: HK$131,456,000). A deferred tax has R M2 R A181,088,0008 7T

been recognised in respect of HK$1,991,000 (2023: HK$54,394,000) (20234 : 131,456,000/87T) - B 5t

of such temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been 1,991,000/8 7T (20234 : 54,394,000

recognised in relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference B ZEERMERERELTCHIE -

of HK$179,997,000 (2023: HK$77,062,000) as it is not probable that R K AT B8 7 FE SR B s A A A VB3R

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary MeJENERMEER - R0 E R

differences can be utilised. AR E R Z£179,997,000/8 T

(20234 : 77,062,000/ 7T) HERIE AT
MIBAE -

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BIEPBEMPEMEHE - B2008561A

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 1H Bt BB A R RIS EE IR

January 2008 onwards. At 31 March 2024, deferred taxation has not HIRR BB TEINEL - 202443 A 31

been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of BERPREETK - WERE MR

temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC RWABAEKBRF RHEFEMNL

subsidiaries amounting to RMB17,121,000 (2023: RMB58,794,000) as TR EE ARE17,121,0007T (2023

the amount involved is insignificant. F: AR¥58,794,0007T) 5HRELER

Ig o
SHARE CAPITAL 30. KA
Nominal value Number
Notes per share of shares Amount
B 5 BREE RmHEE FEk
HK$ HK$’000
BT FHT

Authorised: JETE

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 M202244H1H -
and 31 March 2024 202343HA31H &
2024F3 A31H 0.01 40,000,000,000 400,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE :

At 1 April 2022 R2022F4H1H 0.01 931,458,010 9,315
Issue of shares upon placing fic & B 31T AR 1D (i) 0.01 793,680,000 7,936
Issue of share upon conversion BRI ERE

of convertible notes BITRG (ii) 0.01 400,786,666 4,008

At 31 March 2023 #R2023F3A31H 2,125,924,676 21,259

Reduction of share capital upon B AR E AR DR
capital reorganisation (iii) 0.01 (2,072,776,560) (20,728)
Issue of shares upon placing fo &R 31T D (iv) 0.01 50,000,000 500
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3H31H 103,148,116 1,031
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

On 20 April 2022, the Company allotted 186,280,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.1 per share. The Company raised HK$18,380,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of placing to be used for the Group’s general working
capital. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the annual general meeting held on 13 August 2021.

On 26 September 2022, the Company allotted 607,400,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.068 per share. The Company raised HK$40,800,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used for the Group’s general
working capital. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed at the special general meeting held on 14 September 2022.

On 25 July 2022, the convertible notes with principal amounts of
HK$16,000,000, HK$11,280,000 and HK$70,000,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.25,
HK$0.25 and HK$0.24 per share, respectively. Accordingly, a total of
400,786,666 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued.

On 17 July 2023, a special resolution has been passed by the shareholders of
the Company for a capital reorganisation which involves share consolidation,
capital reduction and share subdivision. Consolidation of every forty issued and
unissued existing shares of par value of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated
share of par value of HK$0.40 each (the “Consolidated Share(s)”) in the share
capital of the Company. Immediately upon the share consolidation becoming
effective, the par value of each issued Consolidated Share is reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by a cancellation of HK$0.39 of the paid-up capital on
each issued Consolidated Share so that each issued Consolidated Share is
treated as one fully paid up share of par value HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “New Share(s)”) and the credit arising from the
capital reduction be transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. Immediately following the share consolidation and capital reduction,
each authorised but unissued Consolidated Share (including those authorised
unissued Consolidated Shares arising from the capital reduction) is subdivided
into forty authorised but unissued New Shares of par value HK$0.01 each.
The capital reorganisation is completed on 19 July 2023. Details of the capital
reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated 21 June 2023.

30.

IR (&)

Wi

(i)

#2022F 4 F20R8  ARB AR DRN
% A e A BL 5 186,280,000/% F AR E &
0.01BTHE @R - BEBATRE
JT ° A2 7 # 518,380,000/ 7T (FN Bk 7
X)) BMREENAEAEE—REE
B o HBERM DHREAR BRI
20218 A1BABRITHRRAFAE £
BBRARR TERNH —RBEERT -

M2022F 98261 KRB MTLRIR
% 7% BE At 5607,400,0000% & B E &
0.0 TR E MR - A& (B REAR0.068
7T o AN F1E540,800,0007 7T (F1BR
%) BREERAEREE—REE
B® - HELE RN ZIBRIK2022F9F 14
BERTHRREINAS HBBHAAQR]
IRECREE T E R R TH

W2022F7H25H0 - A& B A
16,000,000 ¢ ~ 11,280,000 7T &%
70,000,000 7T K Al 2 AR ZIRIZ 5 Bl
BER0.258TT ~ 0.258 7T K% 0.244 7T
MR ESRARAREREEO.01
BILERG o Bt - A R RET
400,786,666/ & X EE0.0148 T H) iR

B e

M2023F7A17H » AR BIREFR A
BHEBB-BERIAER  BEPHK
B E 0F - BRASHIR & AR D 75 48 o
m+REREEC.OIBITHEHEITR
RBITRERDEHARARBKRASR
— TR EE0.40B T A B ([&
BERD]) - BRERMD A HFERIE - R
BT A FRR 17 80 I B F1 0407 TT R
Z0.01%T - HBBEHERERTE
BRI OB R R AN0.3978 7T © EERE
BITAHRNDERAERABRAR —
A% & AR TET 1B 0.01 78 7T /0 480 2 AR A ([ 3 AR
31D+ T B AR AN IR i 2E A 1o BR 3R
HEBERRAEHRRE - BERNH
& O RRAEDR R - BROAEERETT
AR (B IEZEERABRMELER
EERBITEHRMD) D IF AN IRE
FEEREFETHRD - FREER0.01E
7T o BAREERN2023E7 A19A A -
RAEE N FBERR AR R B HH2023
FeA21ARAEL ©
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

31.

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) On 3 August 2023, the Company allotted 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.5 per share. The Company raised HK$24,750,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of placing to be used for repayment of the Group’s
bank loan. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed at the special general meeting held on 24 July 2023.

All shares issued during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 November 2022, the Group entered into conditional sale and
purchase agreements with Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited, a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Group will
acquire 100% equity interests and shareholder loans of On Channel
International Limited (“On Channel”), Day Glory Investment Limited (“Day
Glory”), Well Honest Investment Limited (“Well Honest”) and Asia Million
Investment Limited (“Asia Million”) at consideration of HK$44,703,000,
HK$25,189,000, HK$24,580,000 and HK$252,606,000, respectively.
The principal assets of these subsidiaries are investment properties.
The transactions were completed on 20 February 2023. Details of
these transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
14 December 2022 and circular dated 20 January 2023.

30.

Sil

ENCEY
GERNC)

(iv) 202348 A3H + RAFIAFO0.5%
TR E B W RN & A EE A B
50,000,0000% & A& E {E0.01 /8 7T 89 & i
& o A 7] % 524,750,000/ 7T (FN Bk 7
%) BRRESERAEBERNEEIRT
B o HiERO DRBEADFRRR
2023F7A24ABITHRFFRAE £
BBERER TERORRIRERT -

BN E £20244F % 2023F3A31H
HEFEETZRONE T HEERT
BITRD ZERISHEF)

ERWENBARWBEERER

2022611 5308 » REBMEARQ
71 [E & [t B A & Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited?] 32 B (&1 B & #
FCBE AEEBUBREREE
RABRI(TEZEN100%KRERBERE
FBEEEARAR(HED - B
KEBRAB(RH) REEREBR
~A([BE]) - 1B S RIA44,703,000
YT~ 25,189,000/ 7T + 24,580,000
7 7T ]2252,606,000/ 7T © :ZEH B A
AMEZEERREME - ZERS
B R202342 208 K © % ERXHH)
HBHNAAR A AE2022F12714
B8 & B HI 8202341 A208 MR
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31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 3. EBRENMBLARKWBEEREE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (#&)
The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as follows: RE BB FEEBART ¢
On Channel Day Glory  Well Honest ~ Asia Million Total
Z8 A& b &8 %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TET TET
Assets acquired and liabilities REBERRNENEER
recognised at the date of acquisitions: ~ BRMNELE :
Investment properties REME 44,258 24,958 24,390 252,941 346,547
Trade and other receivables E 5 REMEREE 168 27 33 67 295
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB 2%EN 468 395 509 275 1,647
Other payables HibERF0E (191) (191) (352) (677) (1,411)
Net assets acquired Wiz BEFE 44,703 25,189 24,580 252,606 347,078
Consideration: RE:
Cash consideration ReRE 23,254 13,304 12,992 81,450 131,000
Issue of convertible note (note 26) BT E & (MEe) 21,449 11,885 11,588 171,156 216,078
44,703 25,189 24,580 252,606 347,078
Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on KR 2 FRES (R )
acquisitions: B
Cash consideration BeRE (23,254) (13,304) (12,992) (81450)  (131,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired W Re RASEED 468 395 509 275 1,647
(22,7806) (12,909) (12,483) (81,175) (129,353)

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test for the
acquisitions of On Channel, Day Glory, Well Honest and Asia Million
in accordance with HKFRS 3 and concluded that the land and
building components of each unit, together with the in-place lease,
are considered a single identifiable asset. Consequently, the Group
determined that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in that unit and concluded that the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Acquired investment
properties are initially recognised at cost at the completion date, which
is the fair value of convertible note at the date of completion date.

AEBEEERBETEMHERE LS
3B LE - A - ZHEBENHK
BETEEMEPENR  AF/H
Eam o sBUM L REEDI S E
R EED B ERE A #AIE
EoRg AKBERETELD LAKE
MBEBEEMBATEDETEZE
i - 1T H AR AR — &5
EBNEETR —EER - WENHK
BYEZNRTHK A AR ARER
BNATHA R R STk B IR P (E -
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32. REMEEB2EEZRER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TREFVNAEBRAMETH 2 AE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 BREASKIERSEH - KB
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows MEZH EBBENEBRRETES -
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated SARRREREFSHERELEER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. REHERERZKREMEFTDH B
@/}lui °©
Secured
Convertible bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
ARREE FEMRTEE HEAR ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT FHT FEL AL
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Hi5E26) (P5E27) (Hizk28)
At 1 April 2022 R2022F 4 A1H 66,911 1,662,307 3,830 1,733,048
Bank borrowings raised E8RITEE - 564,298 = 564,298
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBIEE - (346,759) = (346,759)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE - - (2,570) (2,570)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERZHER - (8,179) = (8,179)
Interest paid ERFIE (2,382) (71,743) (58) (74,183)
64,529 1,799,924 1,202 1,865,655
Non-cash changes: FReE
- Issue of convertible note - BT MRER 159,200 = = 159,200
- Conversion - @ (70,613) = = (70,613)
- Interest expense on convertible notes -EREEZ
FEREX 6,833 = = 6,833
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITEEZFBRE = 71,743 = 71,743
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HEBRBIAERE - = 58 58
- Exchange adjustments -EH AR - 252 - 252
At 31 March 2023 2023%F3A31H 159,949 1,871,919 1,260 2,033,128
Bank borrowings raised E8RITEE - 306,798 = 306,798
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRITEE = (111,256) = (111,256)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREAE - - (2,410) (2,410)
Payment of loan arrangement fee INERRZHER - (500) = (500)
Interest paid EHFIE (9,936) (104,931) (218) (115,085)
150,013 1,962,030 (1,368) 2,110,675
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32. REMETH2EEZAERE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Secured
Convertible bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
AAREE FERRTEE HEARE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Mik26) (EE27) (FizE28)
Non-cash changes: IR
- Interest expense on convertible notes -EREEZ
MERX 17,941 = = 17,941
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITREZFERX = 104,931 = 104,931
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HEBRBIAEHE - = 218 218
- New lease entered -HIHE - = 6,876 6,876
- Exchange adjustments -ERRE - (227) - (227)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 167,954 2,066,734 5,726 2,240,414

=15 |




33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 33. B
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(a) Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, (a)

(b)
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during the year, the Group had the following transactions with

AERSBRERS

Brir e BT mARFTERS) - I
W AEEEKERBERZ 2B K

wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: BRRETINTRS :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Consultancy fee BB 2,621 2,554
Building management fee NEERE = 60
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaBEZFEMAX 218 58

The Group rented certain of its office premises from Easyknit
International. At 31 March 2024, lease liabilities amounted to
HK$5,726,000 (2023: HK$1,260,000) and refundable rental
deposits paid (included in “trade and other receivables” line item)
amounted to HK$416,000 (2023: HK$416,000).

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, also holds 13.52%
(2023: 18.78%) equity interest of Easyknit International through
an entity wholly-owned by her.

Details of the convertible notes issued to Easyknit International (b)
are set out in note 26. During the year, the interests on these
convertible notes are as follows:

AEBRKERRABEET
WARE - R2024F3A318 » K
FEMBERER5,726,0007%
7L (20234 : 1,260,000/ T)
ENRMARERSRS(BEE
[BS5REAMBEHFIEEF) A
416,000 7T (20234F : 416,000
PETT) °

AAREEE T UL LBAE
EEBEANERBREAXEER
Z213.52% (20234 : 18.78%) A%
1 o

BITHKEBR 2 TR R RN
FHIBEMTE26 - RER - ELEA
BERREOMENT

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FHT

Accretion of interest FEzBAREE 17,941 6,833
Interest paid BATF & 9,936 2,382
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 33.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Compensation of key management personnel (c)
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

A Bt

ALR 5/ BEXRS (E)

TEEBABZHMN
WITEENEMBEIEERAERN
FRAZHMEWT :

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Short-term employee benefits REEERT

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 14,488 15,405

Contributions to retirement benefits RREFFT B
schemes 83 98
14,571 15,503

The remuneration of directors and key executives are determined
by the remuneration committee and executive directors,
respectively, having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment (d)
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may
be terminated by either party at any time by three months’
notice. The monthly salary has been adjusted a few times to
HK$475,000 with effect from 1 April 2023 (2023: HK$450,000
with effect from 1 April 2022). The remuneration of Mr.
Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2024 was HK$2,391,000 (2023:
HK$5,850,000) and was included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (c) above. On 1 September 2023, Mr.
Koon Wing Yee resigned as general manager of the Company
and the employment agreement was terminated.

In November 2020, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, to act as a senior special advisor of the Company.
The employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 25 November 2020 but may be
terminated by either party at any time. The monthly salary is
HK$30,000 with effect from 1 April 2022. The remuneration
of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as a senior special advisor of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 was
HK$360,000 (2023: HK$360,000).

EERTIETRABZHZD 5
BEFME S & RATEFRRE
MATZRBARTSBEME

=

E °

R2011F1 A » AR FIHEEEIK
TEZRBEKELEIIEA
Wi BERREARARBLE -
ZEN—HEER S 2 RAE
M20115E2A21 B 5 - Ba R
R RAEREA—FBETF=
BABMmMKL - §FAFSED
THRFAEETH2023F4A1H
#A475,000% 70 (20234 : M
2022F 4 1B A450,0007%
JL) e BLE2024%E3A31HILE
NEBKELEEEBRRBIBLE
2 B4 &2,391,000/% 7T (2023
% : 5,850,000/ 7T) REBIEE
MWECQEZIEEEEABZFH
B I - 202398 1H » Bk
EREBERQAAELE M
EABZERIL -

2020118 » "ARIEE XL
TEWMEZAEAIMREZLEHETE
A BEITAQE SRR
M - ZEABEERELER
5 - 2020511 A25 B Mt 4+
B B — A AT BER AR IE o
H2022F4 A1 B A - A%
£380,0008 7T - B A IR&EZ LR
HZE2024F3831H IEFEHEMT
AAREBENBEEOTINE
360,000 7T, (20234F : 360,000
IT) e
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 33. MBALIRS BERS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

(9)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group received rental
income totalling HK$288,000 (2023: HK$288,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

On 29 August 2023, City China International Limited (“City
China”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a revolving loan agreement with Main Profit
Investment Limited (“Main Profit”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International (note 33(f)) to grant the
revolving loan facility in the principal amount up to a maximum
of HK$80,000,000 from effective date on 20 November 2023 for
a term of two years with fixed interest rate 6% per annum. The
revolving loan is guaranteed by Easyknit International. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 August
2023.

As at 31 March 2024, the outstanding balance of loan provided
to Main Profit amounted to HK$30,000,000, giving rise to
interest income amounting to HK$404,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group received
service charge of HK$414,000 (2023: nil) from a joint venture for
the rendering of administration services.

(e)

U]

(9)

B ZE2024F3A31HILLFER -
NEBUBBMEER LT Z2ET
Iz WA H£288,0008
7t (20234 : 288,000/ 7T) °

H2023F8H29H © WA BE A
R BN (M ) (A 52 B A — R
ERENBAR)HERBERES
FRAEN (MBI - skEBIER (5
33K —HEEEENBE AR
FINERER G UETEAE
& F &% /80,000,000 7T 2 &
REREE - £ HH /2023
F11A208 - BEHMF - BE
FIEEBTE6% - ZBERENA
KEBBRER - FEBAL2HAN
A& BEIA2023F8 A29A KA
ff5 o

20246 3H31H « BHBEERMH
B K AR (838 #2 %8 £30,000,000
BT REE2024F3A31H
IEFEE AT B UL A 404,000
=

REZE2024F3A831HILFE -

AEBER—HEEARRRHET
IR R 765 U ER Pl 7% 5 414,00078 7T

(2023%F : M) -
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34.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes
convertible notes and secured bank borrowings disclosed in notes
26 and 27, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues and
raising or repayment of bank borrowings and other debts.

34.
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A REMEE AR RREEN

ez o

ARBEEEMRAERLERE - EH
B — 8D BEEEEEARAR
BEARAMMERER - RIFEZFNES
AEBEBERETHRREEHER
RITEEREMER  LWPEERE
RIRHE o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. ®RTHE
a.  Categories of financial instruments a. SRMIAEZEHR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT F&T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATESFABESREE 110,817 88,348
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEAFEFAHMEEKEZ
BEBTA 100 1,095
Amortised cost (including cash and BHEAAN(RRERER
cash equivalents) REZEED)
- Trade and other receivables -85 REMERRIE 20,919 11,269
- Amount due from a joint venture - —HEEREHE 1,850 1,921
— Amount due from a fellow - EY— R R E A R 5kIE
subsidiary 30,000 -
- Loans receivable - B ER 31,023 52,250
- Debt instrument at amortised cost ~ — IR#EK AN E 2 B T A 22,576 22,576
— Time deposits over three months - BB =1EAMNTEBFER 31,183 =
- Cash and cash equivalents -RekREEEY 299,717 354,002
548,185 531,461
Financial liabilities Ea =N
Amortised cost BESHR AR
~ Trade and other payables - B REMEMNIE 79,240 56,904
- Convertible notes - BRRER 167,954 159,949
— Secured bank borrowings - BIERRITEE 2,066,734 1,871,919

2,313,928 2,088,772
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

35. @I E(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREEEEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due AEE2FESRTABEEK
from a joint venture, amount due from a fellow subsidiary, —HEEARNIE  EH—HEE
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade AIBARIKIE - RATFEFA
and other receivables, loans receivable, debt instrument at BansemEE BATFETA
amortised cost, time deposits over three months, cash and cash Ef2EKEERTIE - B5
equivalents, trade and other payables, convertible notes and REMBKRIE - BIRER - &
secured bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments BIERATEZEBLIE - BiR
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with “EAMNTEHEFER REkRE
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate ZEY - BHRHMEMNFKIE -
these risks are set out below. The management manages and AMRERREEPRITEER -
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures ZESMIAZFBEEEENE
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. AR - ZEeRIAEY R
JR\ B LA R 40 fr] PR K 3% 5 R BR 2 TR
BEHNNT - BIREBEIE N B
% % [ AR (RSB I R B RO R
BUEE 1R o
Market risk 5 E
1] Currency risk () B
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign currency REEHR - AINESIE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at CEBERBCEREER
the end of the reporting period is as follows: E¥aECRABLOT ¢
Liabilities Assets
af& BE
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET FE&xT FHET
USD against HKD ETHBTT - - 52,689 61,461
SGD against HKD IR TTH BT 4,614 4,372 963 4,695
RMB against HKD AREEH BT - - 14,697 15,504
USD against SGD ETCHFME T 7,007 21,530 100 1,095




BILEEGRAT 2023/2024 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, Z2024F3A31H It F[&

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk

v

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk on
USD against RMB for the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HKD and USD
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared. No sensitivity analysis for the currency risk
of SGD against HKD and USD against SGD is prepared
as the directors of the Company consider the net impact
of such foreign currency risk is insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against HKD. Sensitivity
rate of 5% is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive (negative) number below indicates a decrease
(increase) in post-tax loss or increase (decrease) in post-
tax profit where RMB strengthens 5% against HKD. For a
5% weakening of RMB against HKD, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss or profit.

35. @MITE(E)

b. HERREERERIEGE

45 3 (4)
O  EBEEERGE
BURE DT

AEBEMIEINEZES
BERE¥ABZEXRE
REIBEREBEXTHLAR
Wz ER -

BREREZGE BT
HXTERERZ B
BAYTEKR - #ULER
HYPBEDIN - ARAR
AEERAZIINE R
FREY BN Al
L ET IR TT LB TT A K
SETT 3 NI T AR ) BRURR
BN °

TRFEMIE T AREY
AR ETIHEMER
5%MBRRE - MESRE
EEIEA B WESNE R
i EAE%HURE
REBEEHAIEMWER
HEH TG - MBEST
EREREENINEFE
B WHERSHRAE
HIE - AR SMNE[E R
#$5% - THHER(BE)
RABARBEBTIE
5% - Bii& &R 4 (O )
SRR BAMIEMORD)
WMRARBHEBTRE
5% - Bl g HHREBERBX
BANELREMERNE
=,
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Continued)

U

35.

TRMIAME

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EKREEEEZEREEGE
Market risk (Continued) 5B fE ()
Currency risk (Continued) 0  EBEEmEEGE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (B)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
Increase in post-tax loss SRE3 -z bl 614 647

(i)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis reflects
the exposure at the year end, but not the exposure during
the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates to
it secured bank borrowings. The interest rates and terms
of repayment of the secured bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 27.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to certain financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instrument at amortised
cost, amount due from a fellow subsidiary, time deposits
over three months, cash and cash equivalents, fixed-
rate loans receivable, fixed-rate staff loan and convertible
notes. The Group has not used any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

(i)

ERERS  BRBRENN
REREZFEABER - M
PRIREFEANBER -

REEE B AT SN S
BEOEGREERR - A
- ERER I ERIAH
SRR AN EFER
BEEEhERINER

i o
2

FIF & g
AEENEZREREN
RREESEAHEGE
HRITHEE - AEEAK
HETEENFNERER
R 3E27 4R 5R o

AEBETHIR A FERTA
BRzseREE BAF
B AHMEEKEZE
BITAR REAHEKATE
ZEBTE - EBR—MR
R BARIE - BE=
BEAMERER Rek
ReEHEY  BREER
RER - BEMNEKBTE
AR AR R B AR A
BENXRER - AEEILE
£ RERPTEA KR E O+
ZEMNXRER  BEEE
BEEMNEAR  TEE
8 HI 3R E KR R B B
EERBEMSETE -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and SOFR (2023: HIBOR and LIBOR) arising from secured
bank borrowings.

35. @MITE(E)
b. HEERSEBERBEE

SR B (4)

(i) FIEER )
AEBRERBEZFE
R ERAMFEZ REE
SRKBER AL -
AEBZBRERENER
R ZRBEEGEMRT
BEZEBRITRAER
BRERBERRME M X
(20234 : BEHRITAE
FERMBBITRER

B)RE -
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that R EK A S IE AT AR
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOC! is as AHE2HERETEZS
follows: BMEEZHBRE, KA
MEAINE -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
Interest revenue F B U 2=
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ Z# K AT E 2
STREE 1,930 3,289
Other income H A
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ Z# K AT E 2
TRIEE 8,585 4,394
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAVEFAEMER
Wz emEE = 64
Total interest income T B A 10,515 7,747
Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments as referred to above at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis points
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

AT SRR ERER
VA £ P 3t 4 % 5 B R 3 3F
TETAZNEERIP IR
FERBR ZHOEHER
BEHRESTEmE
TE o 1OOfE £ %= B 48 hn sk
BAOZARMEZEEA
8 P AR IE SR & & B A
REHEBFENEZ AR

AREH -
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower
for its variable rate borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2024 would increase/decrease by
HK$17,257,000 (2023: post-tax profit decrease/increase
by HK$15,631,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in listed equity and debt securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on listed
equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange of
issuers engaged in operation and investment in food and
beverage brands and banking and finance industry sector.
In addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

35.

TRMIAME

b. HERBREEBEREEGE

15 /2 f% (4)
(i) FIEE R (E)
BURE DT (4B)

(i)

R FEFIRE BT R
FE sk EE100MEE2 B
FiEHEMmEERETE
AR EE £2024%3A
STHLEFENREER
#5348 hn, % 417,257,000
BT (20234 : Mg & A
B 015,631,000/
7o) °

EEERS  ZHRED
b TeERKRBEF X[
e AFERRSERBR
FRER -

H b ER b
AEBRKER EHBRA
Ko (75 3% 75 T [ e B o (B
BRER - EIREBBMER
EFTRARNKERS
REEIRAR - REBH
BARE R T 2 EPRER
R LW ERE kKR
BRmEARE @RI KR
TREBENEITAME
MR T A - gbsh - K
SECEZEEEPAER
EBRER  LREHEER
ZEEHERKO -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments have been
5% (20283: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2024 would decrease/increase by
HK$2,356,000 (2023: post-tax profit would increase/
decrease HK$1,196,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of listed equity instruments.

In the management’s opinion, the financial impact on price
risk of debt securities as at 31 March 2024 and 2023
would be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, lease receivables,
loans receivable, other receivables, time deposits over three
months, bank balances, debt instruments at amortised cost,
amount due from a joint venture, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary and debt instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risk associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risk associated with loans receivable is mitigated because
they are secured over marketable securities or properties.

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information including forecast of unemployment rate index and
other relevant factors are considered.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group performed
impairment assessment for financial assets under ECL model.
Information about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

TRIAE

MEEREE R ERBEGE

45 2 fe ()
(i) EEESELR(E)
BURE N

AT 8 REE 5 i 2 AR B R
WERAMMAR ZRAE

REREE

HEMBRATEBKE
T/ T 5% (20234 :
5%)  REBIE2024%3
A31BLLEEZHEE
BERALEMBRAIAEY
AFEEREH MR,
hn2,356,000% 7t (2023
F o Big BT, 5D
1,196,000/ 7T) °

ERERE  R2024F &
202343 A31HEKBES
HERRBROMEFEY
REKX - I E R B SR
EDHT ©

=B R B E AL

20244 20235 3A31H + K
SEAEEEAS T RERTE
EMEXMBELINZAEER
fRErERENEZEUKFE - H
SRWFHIE - BURER - EftE
WHiE BBR=EANERE
R RITAERR - IRBHNAE
ZEBTAE  ER-HEZEQH
FIA - AR R B A FR
BN AT E AR 2K S
ZEBITAR AEBWERFEFE
AT HR S B A (5 1 SR #E e
NEZHSREERBEER
B ERME KA EERRE
B RESKERIALTES
B/ ES(Siiwii

RMEHR - HELBERIIHEZ
HERETTEHE  XEET
BREREREHIEAME tEE
E=AERRATIEMEESHEL -

BRRATEAABRSEZEMEE
sh - AEBIRIBEMEERERE
XY EREEETT T RERE °
FRAEEEERBRER &KX
EE R B 50 K AR B R E A
(@A) 1= B I8 2AR:
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment for the

Group’s financial assets comprises the following categories:

35. @I E(E)

b. HBEREERFERBEGE

EEE R R E L (E)

rEES

MEEZAEERR

R BYEAT R

Financial assets
other than trade

Trade and and lease
Internal credit rating Description lease receivables receivables
TREETEEES
REEERTR B3 E5 REERKFIR RIEEEWRFIE)
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
of default and does not have impaired
any past-due amounts
9N RS FEDRRIEE I & EEBHHNEREEERE 128 AEEE E BB
Efal i EARIE - EERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
date impaired
L BEBALERIERBER RERRNEREEESE 12{8 AFEEE B 518
- EEERIE
High risk There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not credit- Lifetime ECL - not
increases in credit risk since impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed internally
or external resources
= kR FERABEKOER SRR BEBBOEHEEERE BEBHNEHEER
EERMR A BRERURER - FEERE &8 - EEERE
7(%3 1% jJD
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired
&8 EREBETEERREERE RERPNBEBEESS EERMNEREE
- EERE &8 - EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
T 4 ERBRTEBABABREYE SFME RS

WEE - AEEZAEERKE
AlEE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. @I A
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EKRSEAEZEREEGE
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B[R b2 K Bt B 7F 12 (4B)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TR TEEBSREEREE
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: HEEERIGMNEERBR
15
External Internal 12m
Notes  credit rating credit rating ~ or lifetime ECL Loss rate range Gross carrying amount
12BASEERSEN
M HBEETR RPEETR BREEERR BAZEHE REAE

2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000  HK$'000

TR Tin
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATEFAEMEZERG  E
KIE
Investments in listed bonds 19 CtoCa N/A Lifetime ECL - credit- 100% 100% 1,093 10,931
(Note (i) impaired
EERZRE () CZCa TR RERDNES
REEE-FE
e
Financial assets at amortised
cost
REERAHE CBEE
Loans receivable 18 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3%t08% 2%to6% 32,100 53,800
ElER TR EERE PEARHEE 3%%E8%  2%%6%
Bk
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL - credit- N/A 100% - 51,930
impaired
T B READNES TEA
REEE-FE
e
Lease receivables 2 NA (Note i Lifetime ECL - not N/A N/A 859 816
credit-impaired
RERKTE T (GiE) RERDNESE TEA T

EBR-JER
AfE
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. &@TA(E)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMEREKREEBZEREEGE
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B 7 2 K 1B 771 (4B)
External Internal 12m
Notes  credit rating credit rating ~or lifetime ECL Loss rate range Gross carrying amount
12B S EEBSN
i HEEETR REEET BREEER BAZEE REAE

2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000  HK$'000

ThAr  ThAx

Other receivables 2 NA (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 20,060 10,453

AR TER (R3xi) 12EARHEE TER  TER

B
Debt instrument at amortised cost 20 NA (Note i 12m ECL 4% 4% 23,490 23,490
REENAHBZERIA il (i) 12EARBEE

B
Amount due from a joint venture N/A (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 1,850 1,921
ER-RagRARE TER (R3xi) 12 ARHEE TER  TER

B

Amount due from a fellow 33  N/A (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 30,000 -

subsidiary

ER-ERZNBAARE TER (Firsi 12EARSEE TER TR

B
Time deposits over three months 24 Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A N/A 31,183 -
BR=EANEHER HEE-1 TR 12EARHEE TER  TER
B
Bank balances 24 Prime =2 to A1 N/A 12m ECL N/A NA 299,717 354,002
(2028 Prime =
210 Al)
BT HEE - 2ZAT TR 12[EARHEE TER  TER
(2023 5 : ZEE B
-2ZA1)

Notes: PHEE -

(i) The amounts stated in the above table represent the initial purchase [0] FHREPOSERVRBEEK
cost. For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers the Ko pRIEHEEEBETIEmS -
gross principal amount and the related contractual interests of the debt REBEZREBIANKSE
instruments. As at 31 March 2024, the gross principal amount of these ERABBA R - KR2024
debt instruments amounted to HK$11,900,000 (2023: HK$13,675,000). F3A31H8 ¥EBHILANK

% #8%8 511,900,000/ 7T (2023
F 113,675,000/ 7T) °

(ii) For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group considers (ii) RABEERENS @ AEEZE
if there is any past due record or other relevant information available BRAATMBHLENBAE
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased ERAREB NG EMIEREE
significantly since initial recognition. RS e VR EEERKRE

BEBREEM -



BILAEERAT 2023/2024 Fif 213

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &, £ 20243 A31 B I FE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. @I A
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EKRSEAEZEREEGE
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B /7 b2 & Bt 1B 7P 1 (4B)
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BN FEFFARMEE W2 &
BITA
The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt REBPRE BT EERES
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instruments at KRENEERR - A&BZRAFE
FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded by credit- Bt AEMmEEKE 2 EBIA
rating agencies as per globally understood definitions and some FE2EHERTRKERES
bonds without external credit rating are assessed by internal KRR TERETIRO ETE
credit ratings. % —RFINER(E AR AR BIE
HARBAEDEAFRETT
fly ©
Lifetime
ECL - credit
impaired
BEBEN
BHEERE -
EERE
HK$’000
F&T
At 1 April 2022 R2022F481H 10,145
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI ) SEYNSRER PN
recognised as at 1 April 2022 EPEREZEETEN
HE 202264 A1 H
— Net remeasurement of ECL -BHEEEERZ
SFE 3,530
At 31 March 2023 #20234E3 A31 R 13,675
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI BRRIEAFERT AEM
recognised as at 1 April 2023 2EN=EEETAN
B B)M2023F4 811
R
~ Net remeasurement of ECL -FEHEEEEZ
FE (1,775)
At 31 March 2024 20243 A31H 11,900

U
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Debt instrument at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instrument at
amortised cost comprises a promissory note without external
credit rating, which has been assessed by internal credit rating.

35.

TRMIAME

M EREE BB RBRGE)

= B R R B E T 1 ()
KB ARG EZ EFT A
REENRE BT ESR
EWERRR - REBIZEEK
R BZ BB T ARIERAINEG
ERFRNALTE - MG
R TRIE -

12m ECL
128 AFEHEERE
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 R2022F 47818 ~ 202343A31H
}2024%3A31H8 914

Loans receivable

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to HK$31,023,000 at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$52,250,000), from a few borrowers with 55% (2023:
60%) of the balance secured by properties with estimated fair
values of HK$17,745,000 (2023: HK$28,445,000). The Group
is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in the absence
of default by the borrower. There has not been any significant
changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivable. In addition, the unsecured loans receivable as at 31
March 2024 amounting to nil (2023: HK$30,750,000) are with
personal guarantee. The largest borrower of the Group by itself
accounted for approximately 31% (2023: 26%) of the Group’s
loans receivable at 31 March 2024.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation
of financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default rates,
of the borrowers and relevant information from public domain at
the end of each reporting period. The borrowers are assigned
different grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of default
and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals.

FEUE
AEERERKEZRNEER
Mt M2024%3A31H
/431,023,000 7T (20234 :
52,250,000 7T) * KA D EiE
FAEI55% (20234 : 60%) H
st AT {EA17,745,00058 7T
(20234 : 28,445,000 7T) 8949
EERE - EERALGEEND
BRT  AEBETSHESBE
IR - BRE RIS E I
mEEWHESE KR o o - B
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivables as at 31
March 2023 are HK$51,930,000, net of accumulated impairment
allowances of HK$51,930,000 due from a group of borrowers
including an individual (the “Borrower”) with gross amount of
HK$27,380,000 and other individuals (with personal guarantee
from the Borrower) with gross amount of HK$24,550,000. In
prior years, the management assessed, taking into account the
relevant information from public domain, such balances became
credit-impaired. Since then, the management has taken various
actions (including legal actions) against the Borrower to recover
the balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was a negotiation
between the Borrower and the Group on settlements which
consisted of (i) a change in the pledged asset on a loan of
HK$16,000,000 and (ji) the Borrower’s commitment on pursuing
the repayment of certain other borrowers’ credit-impaired
loans. Subsequently, during the year ended 31 March 2023,
HK$6,799,000 was received. As the pledged asset had been
multiple-mortgaged, an impairment loss of HK$16,000,000 was
provided.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the management
reassessed and considered the Group has no realistic prospect
to recover the credit-impaired debts and hence the balance of
HK$51,930,000 was written off.

Trade and lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Staff loans
No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the amount involved is insignificant.

TRIAE

PR EE B EREER @)

= BE R R EF S ()
FEWE % (48)
R20234F3A310 » ElERE
BB 451,930,000 7T © Bk
—HERANRREREAR
51,930,000/ 7T + BIE@EA ([1&
KAL) &5 A27,380,00078 T &
HAunE A (BZERAREEA
JE{R) £ % /524,550,000 7T °
RBAEEE  SEEBEEZEAH
B MAEREBRTE 254
BREOBEFERARE - Lk BE
EBERRESEEE(REEET
&) W B 4 o

REZE2023F3A31HIEFE -
BRABAEEREHETH
B AP eE{)—%16,000,000
BT ERE IR B E 2B K (ifE
RANERESRERES THME
HANEEREER - H1% -
REZE2023F3A31HIEFE -
B 42 E16,799,000% T (40 ff 5
18(iv) i) - AREHREBELED
WERER - WETIRAEER
16,000,000/8 7T °

REE2024F3A31BILEFE -
EEESFIELTE - URAR
SEWEWEEEREGHEHR
EAIS - #UME551,930,0007 7T
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amount due from a joint venture

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the joint venture’s financial background and

creditability.

Amount due from a fellow subsidiary

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the fellow subsidiary’s financial background and

creditability.

Time deposits over three months and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is negligible
as such amounts are receivable from or placed in banks with

good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has available unutilised bank

loan facilities of HK$1,157,367,000.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

35.

TRMIAME

PR EE R EREEE

=B R B EE G ()
EY—RE E AR
REEAERAMNMBERRE
R - WRAEHRERBEA
RAEERREOHXGD -

JEYL — 7[R Z [11)8 2 Al R
2hi NIk e S DS
RBEZHBERREERRRE
IR BE MR IR - HURA SURMEE
B

BB = A A B E R FH RRITA
£

HRARBEERR  ARZF
FIRWE B HIFRAEERFN
RIT - AU OB RMF AN
B A R E R -

RBET AR

RRBESRBREEME @ A&
B BEn R A R B IR AR R B Sk
F2HREMREFEMUHRAKE
BrREmE ERERZEE
Z BRI RERELE T B URK o

M2024F3A31H ' A5 E
EABRHARTEREE S
1,157,367,000/& T °

TRHANAEEZEBREBEZH
HRAWBIHHR - IERTIIRALE
BRI ERNRZHERHAZ
SRABERTAASREINR
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. @I A(E)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREERZREEGE
(Continued)
Liquidity table mEETE
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
Effective  or less than but less undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate ~ 3months  thaniyear  1-2years  2-5years Over5years cashflows  amounts
REXS)  BEMER RITR

ERAE  RER EHRME 1-2F X5E BESE REREAE  REE
% HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO0O
TEL  TAm  TET  TER  TAm  TERT  TER

2024 2024
Trade and other payables BERAMEMNTE = 79,040 = = = = 79,240 79,240
Convertible notes THREE 11.38 S = - 219479 - 29479 167,954
Secured bank borrowings BERROEE 613 896775 341,729 883270 43333 23338 2188445 2,066,734
Lease liabties HERR 557 657 1938 2,49 1,039 S 6,130 5726
076672 343667 885766 263,851 23338 2493204 2,319,654
2023 2023
Trade and other payables 85 REMERFE - 56,904 = = = = 56,904 56,904
Convertble notes RREERE 1138 = = - 017 - 017 159,949
Secured bank borrowings EERRRE 494 66075 558212 499431 82333 7283 19743% 1871919
Lease lbilties HERE 222 657 515 9 = = 1271 1,260

123,636 558,727 499,630 1,033,452 21283 2242628 2,090,082
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The Board
has delegated the valuation work to the management to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in

35. @I E(E)

c. A¥E

0}

REFRIGAEF I E R
RFPEABZEMEES
RFE

MAOREBEzEREER
BEHPREATFEANE -
EFECBAEIERT
RERE  UHREQTE
SHEREE AERMNE
ABIE

BT AFER - AEE
B REATSUBRER
& WEEERE A&
ABE  AEEZES=
TRERMGEMETRH
B BEERGERIN
HEMERRIE - L
HE O EER RERE
AE- EEEBEEHRAR
FAEEWEASHER A
RN ERESHREA -

R M A B ] B E
EeMEEATECCHE

particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used). AR EERMN R A
HiR) °
Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
tREE RIASIAZATE NPERE  HERGREARE EXTUBRBA
2024 2023
HK$'000 HKS'000
TiEn AL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BATESARE2EREZ
BHIA
= Listed debt securities 100 1,095 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FiERES £ RERTSPARZLE TER
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATE ABEZERER
- Listed equity securities 47,124 23914 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FilrES £ WNERTSRMELE TER
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ERMTAGE
c. Fair value (Continued) c. DFE(E)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () FEERGEZMEERE

RFPEABZEMEE
R AE ()

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and

Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
SREE RIFASIAZATE NPERE  HERGREARE EXTUBRZBA
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn AL
- Unlisted securities 6,264 N/A Level 3 Market comparable approach Market multiple of 3.0 and discount
for lack of marketability of 30%
- rmES TR 3 WEILRE MBEHS0REZ TEAE0%
N/A 6,204 Level2  Based on recent transaction price N/A
TER oy ENTERRER TER
= Investment in limited 42,732 28,230 Level 3 Net asset value quoted from fund Net asset value of the underlying
partnership manager investments
-ARARRE £ ESHEMBNEESTE RERANEESE
= Film right investment 14,697 15,504 Level 3 Discounted cash flows = future cash Discount rate of 4.35% (2023 4.35%)
flows are estimated
-SYERE E3h  WEBERE-HHARAERE  AHEB435%(023F : 435%)
- Life insurance policies - 14,436 Level2  Quoted asset value provided by a N/A
financial institution
- \ERRE Fofh  CRMEREZFMBAEER TER

BE—ERMT R AR
mn- BEREZRERE
BAFERNERE TR
[RZ IR »

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value
measurement of the film right investment, and vice versa.

mSERES - ATEY
CRZIA o M
CRFEBRE R2ZIT

The higher the market multiple, the higher the fair value,
and vice versa. The higher the discount, the lower the fair
value, and vice versa.

X oo oot S

o

B
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

P

35. £@EiT A (&)

Fair value (Continued) c. AFEGE)
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) B3R A-FETENE AR
Principal Investment
protected  Investment in limited Film right Unlisted
deposits funds  partnership investment securities Total
REHES REES ERABRE EYRERE ALoEs ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TAL TAL Thn TAL TAL
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4F1R 27,171 7,339 27,087 15,756 - 77,353
Additions #1 563,516 - - 789 - 554,305
Interest received BYFHIE (551) (161) = = = (712)
Realised fair value gain recognised in -~ MBS AR
profit or loss BERATEKE 551 = = = = 551
Unrealised fair value (0ss) gain REEARER
recognised in profit or loss LREHE
NE(ER) - (6,601) o7 = - (5,630)
Settlements &g (578,549) = = = = (578,549)
Exchange adjustments 5% (2,139) (577) 172 (1,041) = (3,584)
At 31 March 2023 R2023E3R31H - - 28,230 15,504 - 43,734
Additions #m - - 15,178 - - 15,178
Transfer into Level 3due tochange ~ RIGERMEGEEZ
of valuation technique 38 - - - - 6,264 6,204
Unrealised fair value loss recognised ~ MEZ AR
in proft or loss CREEATERE = = (712) = = (712)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - 36 (807) = )
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3R31H - - 42,732 14,697 6,264 63,693

Except for the unlisted securities which were measured by
recent transaction price at the end of preceding reporting
period, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
in both years.

BRIELTMESULERE
MRZBEOXHEFE

9|\ ,

REEFEANET -2

K3 7 A S o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35.

ch Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
Except for the convertible notes issued, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

At 31 March 2024, the fair value of liability component of
the convertible notes issued by the Company, which is
recognised at amortised cost of HK$167,954,000 (2023:
HK$159,949,000) (note 26), was HK$160,729,000 (2023:
HK$160,729,000). The fair value is determined using
management estimation (2023: Trinomial Option Pricing
Model) at Level 3.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the Group:

I A

C.

BEERA

D FE ()

(i)

RERBFEAZMEEERZN
FETEZEHEERT
BEEZAFE

BREBTHABRERERE
S RRREBERR R
A MBI REHKA
I ERmEERSRA
ERREEREEL A F(ER

s

Eo

M2024%€3A318 * AR
RIBITHARREENE
B0 B9 A B 1R S AR
AR 167,954,000 7T
(20234 : 159,949,000
Br) (M =E26) A
160,729,000 7T (2023
4 1 160,729,000/ 7T) °
AT EREFEIRERE
B E L5 (20234 : =
A EEEIDRETE -

R|EHRR > REBBERTIEET
RITERBERATFTAEEZEFERE

=

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT F&T
Investment properties wEYHE 1,211,443 1,297,441
Properties held for development for sale BIEHEERYME 2,520,754 3,307,920
Properties held for sale FELEME 1,065,891 -
Life insurance policies ANEREBE = 13,626
4,798,088 4,618,987

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and AN - P EYERS R LiliRE

future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above properties held
for development for sale and properties held for sale are also pledged
to these banks.

HEBRMEURBELRENERR
ZHERMSREARES TER TR

7o
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. REHIZH
The Group as lessor AEEERSEBAA
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHT
Property rental income earned during FRRIZMERS WA
the year 28,751 29,010
Less: Qutgoings e (2,406) 2,171)
Net rental income WA FEE 26,345 26,839
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees RBEHR - MERREEZYWEY
for 1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years) from the end of the reporting B A A A1 Z34F (20234 : 1£3
period without termination options granted to tenants. F) BRAEFPE FRILEERE-
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: EREERITBHEENZKOT :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 27,424 21,716
In the second year REZF 15,145 11,367
In the third year RE=F 4,551 2,242

47,120 35,325
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38. COMMITMENT 38. &IE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Capital expenditure contracted for but BRI AE M ARRIRE B TREF
not provided in the consolidated financial BE2ARA AR
statements in respect of — interest in - BRAB AR
Limited Partnership (Note) 4,418 19,635
Note: The amount at 31 March 2024 represented USD564,000 (equivalent to Mi5E © R20244 38310 2 £ %815564,0003

HK$4,418,000) (2023: USD2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,635,000)) for
subscription for interest in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner. The
purpose of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital appreciation
and participation through investments in equity and equity-related securities
in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar investment focus.
The business of the Limited Partnership will be conducted and managed by
one single general partner (the “General Partner”) who will act as agent of the
Limited Partnership while the investment committee of the Limited Partnership
(comprising individuals who are not connected with the Group) shall decide
and approve all investment and divestment decisions of the Limited Partnership
with reference to the investment objective. The limited partners of the Limited
Partnership, including the Group, shall take no part in the operation of the
Limited Partnership on the management or conduct of the business and
affairs except with the written consent of the General Partner. Details of this
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 March 2019
and 10 May 2019.

T (15 1744,418,000% 7T) (20234 -
2,500,000% 7T : #H5719,635,000/%
TRREREREBARBERE R
NREm - BRABARZENEER
BIRAAIGE RS2 DA RBUMN R A K&
RAEBEEFRERIREEHERUZ
HBEBE - ARABAANERHHE—

LRABA(TBEABANDEERE
B EBABABEREBREZARN
RIEBA - MAREGBARNKEZE (H
B 7 5% [ 4 B 38 0 1B A AELBK) G R R 4R
EBZAARA BN RIEL /R E R
BRE - BRIKLEREBAETARE -
BRIERAEARZAREBA(BIER
SE)TS2EERAEBARBRERK
FREBREBZEE - RHZHBH
RARAF B #A20199F3 4278 K%2019
F5H10B KR4 ©
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39.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’'s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for both years. The employers’ contributions which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income were as follows:

39.

RKBRETE

AEBRBESRBEABEFEE
Bl BERTEHI A MEAESRIK
BHREFEI((RBERTE]) - RAESE
T EEEABBEAFTSHRE%K
&% /51,5008 70 - BB ALEEED
BIMIR - BEXEBAMHRABRERZ
BRFSHEHRFKS%KFZES A1,500
B (& HIMEHEIR]) o 8 BR655RER IR
B SRR ERITARE IR - A
ZHEFBRBIEH-RRZ100% °

RRBEZHB AR ZEES BT EEM
R 2BEREBERKREFEIKE - M
BRARAZFEETAOLRERS
FHEIER - ARBE 2B FEREK
SETENWEH TR E 2 B3R -

M EF Z IR B BOR MR A R E
HEFHREIHZ - ERGEaERK
HihzmbmREENEEHFIM
T~

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Employers’ contributions recognised in profit FAi8z g 2 B E
or loss 462 429

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

R2024F M2023%F3A31H © 8B R
U 9 R ZR AT A R R A R SR B A ) FE A

B -
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2024

are as follows:

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

40. FEMBRARZFEE

M2024F3A318 » ARREBHBLR

BZFIBIT ¢

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRORA/HEERRAE/ ALNABEEEORE/AR
WEARERE EMRL/ RIREE Y BRRAEE EMRAREEA L EFEEH
2024 2023
Directly held:
BERE
Fanju Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
Hong Kong others
RERERRAT LEREUHS LERIZT BrRAthRE
(RBRLES)) /3%
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
others
ARREBRAT Bk LERIET BrRAhRE
Indirectly held:
FERE
Asia Million Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
(GE Bk LERIET nERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EM(ER)BRAT ik LERIER nERE
City China Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loanfinancing
e ik LERIER EHEE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERBRLA RBRABE/BE LBERIZET nERE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EEMMBARZFEE)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRAREK/GREMRE/ AAASERRORE /AR
WEAR AR FMABL/ RUREE BRRAEE AMBAEERAN EEEER
2024 2023
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE (8
Day Glory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
AE X LERIBTL nERE
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEERAA X LERIBL nERE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
others
KEEARAR 3 LamkoET BEREMRE
Goldchamp Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
g i EER10,0008 T NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BIEBXARAR B L@kt NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Property investment and
investment in securities and
others
RBARES /AN LERIET NEREREFRAMRE
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. TEMBARZFHFEGE
Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal
share capital/paid-up value of issued share
Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRORE/HREMRE/ ALNASEERORE/AR
WEAREHE HMAL/ RIREE S BRRAEE dMEAEERAN TEER
2024 2023

Indiirectly held: (Continued)
F#RE (8

Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment

RBEEXBRAA B L@kt NERE

Lion Capital Investment (HK) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment

REREEBDERLA I TaRET nERE

Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development

BRbEARAR i LTRRIET NEER

On Channel Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment

ZE I LRRET nERE

Qvation Motion Picture Enterprise Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Entertainment and film right
Limited investment

EEEYEERAR 3 TaRIET RERBYMERE

Success Mark Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development

B EBRAT i Li®iR10,0005 7T NEER

Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment

G tEERAT BB LRBET ES {4
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. FEMBE AT ZFHBGE)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRAREK/GREMRE/ AAASERRORE /AR
WEAR AR FMABL/ RUREE BRRAEE AMBAEERAN EEEER
2024 2023
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE (8
Treasure Arts International Group BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Property development
Limited
EEEREEERAR ABRREE/BR LaRIET NEER
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REERARAA 3 LaRIET NEER
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100%  Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
shares HK$2")
BEREERAT X LR 99BET nERE
(BRZEELRET)
Well Honest Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
A X LaRIET nERE
KEEE(BMNEBR AR PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
(THNER)) USD25,544,208
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) ™ iR A25,544,206% T nERE

Co., Ltd.) (‘Enterprises
Huzhou')**
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited carry no
rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting and have very
limited rights to participate in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the
repayment of the amount paid up on the shares.

ok

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. Majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

40.

FTEMBLR 2FHE @&

- RERERRARZEREERETRE
REWBEMBERAG 2 BE - HERR
ARELERR - BEAFTERENED
TR & - RERE - BREEHKS
LB

b MMNEEAE—BRPERKIZINEERE
BHLE  CEHASF - HE2054F
124148 -

BREARAEREZER  EXRMIIR
ZARBMBAR  REEXEA
FEZEERBERAKBEEETR
Bo - BREBEALFNEEFZERIILE
M BARZ B EEERBRIT
£ o

RIBEER - RARMA EME AL
EmMEYTEEEZHBLE - IhE
MBRBAARBONEBEE - WEH
BRRZ EEEBHENT -

Principal activities Principal places of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEEK FTEEEME B AREE

2024 2023
Investment holding Hong Kong 31 29
REER B
Inactive Hong Kong 14 8
JEEER i
Inactive PRC 2 2
JEEER H

47 39

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2024 or 31 March 2023.

RAEMBRRK2024F3A318 3%
2023F 3 A31 BB TEMBEKFES ©
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41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 23 January 2024, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement pursuant to which a total of 235,000,000
placing shares will be placed by the placing agent to not less
than six (6) placees at the placing price of HK$0.18 per placing
share, representing approximately 69.5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the placing shares. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deduction of the placing commission and other related costs
and expenses of the placing, amounted to HK$41,700,000 will
be used for repayment of the Group’s bank borrowings and
general working capital of the Group.

On the same date, the Company also entered into a deed of
amendment with Goodco pursuant to which the conversion price
of the convertible notes issued by the Company with principal
amount of HK$209,000,000 will be adjusted from HK$3.70
to HK$0.18 per conversion share and an early redemption
provision is altered to give the Company and Goodco the right to
redeem the convertible notes at any time, in whole or in part. The
number of conversion shares will be adjusted from 56,486,486
to 59,885,386. The placing of shares has been approved in the
special general meeting of the Company on 21 March 2024 and
the conditions precedent under the deed of amendment have
been fulfilled on 17 April 2024. Accordingly, the placing of shares
and amendment of terms of the convertible notes are completed
on 17 April 2024. The modification of the terms is determined
to be substantial and hence will result in the extinguishment of
the original liability component of the 2023 Convertible Note and
the recognition of new liability and equity components (the 2023
New Convertible Note). Accordingly, the difference between the
fair value of the liability component of the 2023 New Convertible
Note and the carrying amount of the original liability component
will be recognised in profit or loss during the year ending 31
March 2025.

On 31 May 2024, the Group entered deeds of assignment
with independent third parties pursuant to which the Group
agreed to assign and transfer all of the rights, title and interests
in the Limited Partnership at a consideration of USD3,700,000
(equivalent to HK$28,860,000). The transaction has not been
completed on the date of report.

4.

BREHRRSEE

(@)

R2024F1H23H » ARRFIL
BlEHRERE Bt BEE
KRB AT AL E B 150.1875 7T
ZEREERTDRIN(6)REER
A& 4 $£235,000,0000% fic &
[P (W /NS P YN ST
ERMBEABZEEITRALY
69.5% ° Bt & FIFFTFHIE (K
MRS RS R E BB AR
F 2 1&) #) A 41,700,0008 7T
SRAEEEREENRITERK
AEE-—REEED -

KRB « ARBJFERERETME
IR B ARRBITAS
£8209,000,0007% 7T A] #A% ZE 1%
ZABRERBRERERR7N3.70
BEITHAEAR0.188TT - WE KR
RIERER - BFARAIRER
BERFEE [0 2 EP sk 20 o AT R AR 22
B2ERN - RBRHEE KB
56,486,4860% # % 2 59,885,386
i o B 2 BL & 2 M 202443 A
CIHRARRIBREERRE £
BRHE - MISFT BRI RIE
HER2024F4 A17TRHERETT -
Bt - B Z B S RIEF] TRk
RGO R2024F4 A17H
B o BRI REREE M -
A5 B 2023F r] IR ZIE Y
RBEBEIDRIEER - WER
e B EMER IS (B1202345F
AR REg) o AL - 20234
FABRREREEDONRFEE
HRFEESHSEAEEZEN
EEBNEE202563A318 1

MR2024F5A31H » ALEEET
MEZ AR BRI R
AEERELEREEERAR
NAIMERHFTAERN - B
Nz - K{8A3,700,000%F T
(1 & 17428,860,000/8 7T) ° 2 1A
RBRAARIRE B E AR 5T
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 42. AQTZEBAMR K

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Interests in subsidiaries and amounts due RHE AR R R EWRME A
from subsidiaries RIFE 3,600,334 3,419,996
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H A U GRIB 194 281
Tax recoverable AR [ F 18 186 276
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFESFABRZEREE - 4,972
Cash and cash equivalents RERFCEEY 39,015 17,618
39,395 23,147
Current liabilities mENBE
Other payables HAb e3R8 8,654 7,473
Bank borrowings RITEE 77,500 =
86,154 7,473
Net current (liabilities) assets mEN(BBEEFE (46,759) 15,674
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBAME 3,553,575 3,435,670
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE 7,936 9,257
Convertible note AR RE 167,954 159,949
175,890 169,206
3,377,685 3,266,464
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital [E%N 1,031 21,259
Reserves (Note) s (P 3E) 3,376,654 3,245,205
3,377,685 3,266,464
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 42, KRB Z AR RE GE)

(Continued)
Note: Bt E
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior year are as follows: ARBZRBERFARBEFEZEHNT ¢
Convertible
Share note equity Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
TRREE
RIEE BafE RAGE HARS ESp )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEx FiEn FiEx FiEx FiET
At 1 April 2022 W202F4A18 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 438,102 270,359 3,162,211
Loss and total comprehensive expense for ~ AEEFER2EE X
the year ek - - - - (95,637) (95,637)
Recognition of equity component of ATRRER 2 Ei
convertible note % - 56,878 - - - 56,878
Deferred tax liability on recognition of equity ~ R AARE L 2 B2
component of convertible note KA ZEEHEAR = (9,385) = = = (9,385)
Issue of share upon conversion of convertidle SR AR E HE 1T
notes i 150,756 (93,151) - - - 66,605
Deferred tax liabilty released upon conversion  JLIAF AR EHE R
of convertible notes BERARE ° 13,089 ° o = 13,289
Issue of shares #kH 51,244 - - - - 51,244
At 31 March 2023 12023F3A31A 2,531,694 47,493 53,194 438,102 174,722 3,245,205
Profit and total comprehensive income for the A EBFI R 2 %
year ek - - - - 86,471 86,471
Reduction of share capital upon capital A S 485 2 RAEIA
reorganisation - - - 20,728 - 20,728
Issue of shares BAIR1A 24,250 = = = = 24,250

At 31 March 2024 #202453A31H 2,055,944 47,493 53,194 458,830 261,193 3,376,654
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

RESULTS ES -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAET FBT
Revenue L 80,682 80,253 64,475 43,106 30,693
(Loss) profit before B AT (B 18)
taxation pekil (209,657) (190,743) 123,497 65,972 (162,339)
Taxation (charge) credit  FIE (B #E R 3,465 9,950 (7,050) (2,400) (50,810)
(Loss) profit for the year A ISR (S
attributable to owners AEE (BB &F
of the Company (206,192) (180,793) 116,447 63,572 (213,149)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
MR=A=+—H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
Total assets BAE 4,602,993 4,613,337 4,879,808 5,624,267 5,408,807
Total liabilities weE (1,661,124)  (1,732,044)  (1,864,621)  (2,389,101)  (2,361,611)

Equity attributable to Pi/NET Y
owners of the Company S 2,941,869 2,881,293 3,015,187 3,235,166 3,047,196
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A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A REYXE
Approximate
gross floor/
Location Ik Purpose saleable/site area  Lease-term
WHgm
Az BER/MEERE HIFEH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

1. Ground Floor BERET Commercial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road HzeE [EES KHA
Wanchai 148584~
Hong Kong

2. Ground Floor B8R Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road ShEE [EES KHA
Causeway Bay 65t T
Hong Kong

3. Sixth Floor B Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 SE I% A
Castle Peak Road, and 650-6525% * ~NIER
No. 18A Wing Hong Street JK ERH718A%%

Kowloon

4. Second Floor B Industrial 2,981  Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 RAEE I% ikt
Cheung Sha Wan Road 79057 ~ 79257 K 79455
Kowloon —#

5. Roof BEKEEA205 KA Industrial 2,910  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street I% HHA
Kowloon

6.  Fifth Floor TBEK R ET205% AiE Industrial 3,402  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street I% HHA
Kowloon

7. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor ~ #T#0> HAIEAB80035%  Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space ¥ Tt B DEE 12 1557 F0 *= HHA
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor — 25% B MK /@ th T &1z
Shatin Heights E 465
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin
Kowloon

8.  Third Floor BEREEBBI615R =& Residential 781 Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road F= HHA

Hong Kong
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Summary of Properties

YE O

At 31 March 2024 7202443 H31H

Hong Kong

A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) A BREVEGE
Approximate
gross floor/
Location b HE Purpose saleable/site area  Lease-term
g m,
A BERA/EEE HOFH
(sa.ft.)
(EAR)

9.  Easy Tower, No. 609 NERDE Industrial/ 74,458  Medium
Tai Nan West Street KNP 609%% commercial o HR
Cheung Sha Wan e T¥ /B
Kowloon

10. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885  Freehold
Singapore 259959 b3 259959 *= g

11.  Lots Nos. 1278, 1279 and ERF R ITHAD.D.1245% Land with 27,879  Medium
1280 in D.D. 51278 + 1279112805k i attached R ER
124 Yuen Long 154 structure
New Territories Bt B8 5k 3
Hong Kong

12.  Shop A and B on Ground Floor, JLBefr] X B F3E 155 - Commercial 4,297 Medium
and Shop C on First Floor 1ASR R 35k TAKBE N B h HR
One Victory, Nos. 1, 1Aand 3 ~ —#ZC#i
Victory Avenue, Ho Man Tin,

Kowloon

13.  Ground Floor of No. 50 BRMBEERTE Commercial 905 Long term

Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, 505%ih ~ [EES ~E

235
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YE O

At 31 March 2024 7202453 H31H

Hong Kong

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. BEEERRWZHE
Approximate Stage of
Location 3k Purpose site area Lease-term completion
A BN EEE HOFH 5 R PR BR
(sq.ft.)
(FHR)
Nos. 646, 648, 648A TEE Industrial 9,206  Medium Under
Castle Peak Road HE T A A development
Kowloon 646 ° 648 * B48AR EEH
No. 121 King Lam Street B Industrial 5,483  Medium Under
Cheung Sha Wan B T H A development
Kowloon BMET12158 EEA
Nos. 1B-1E B Residential 4,940 Long Under
Davis Street BR B b 35 F= KH development
Kennedy Town ZtH EEH
Hong Kong 1B - 1E5%
No. 93 and 95 BB B Residential 2,182 Long Under
Catchick Street HEA93R F= KH development
Kennedy Town K 9557 EEH
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